
1 
 

Pwyllgor Cynllunio, Trwyddedu Tacsis a Hawliau 
Tramwy 

 
Man Cyfarfod 
By Teams 

 

 
 

Neuadd Y Sir 
Llandrindod 

Powys 
LD1 5LG 

 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod 
Dydd Gwener, 22 Ionawr 2021 

 
Amser y Cyfarfod 
11.00 am 

 
I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch â 
Carol Johnson 
01597826206 
carol.johnson@powys.gov.uk 

 Dyddiad Cyhoeddi 
 

 

Mae croeso i’r rhai sy’n cymryd rhan ddefnyddio’r Gymraeg. Os hoffech chi siarad 
Cymraeg yn y cyfarfod, gofynnwn i chi roi gwybod i ni erbyn hanner dydd ddau 
ddiwrnod cyn y cyfarfod 

 

AGENDA 

 
1.  YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb.  
 
 

2.  COFNODION Y CYFARFOD BLAEOROL  

 
Awdurdodi’r Cadeirydd i lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod blaenorol y Pwyllgor a gynhaliwyd 
ar 3 Rhagfyr, 2020 fel cofnod cywir.  
(Tudalennau 1 - 4) 
 

Cynllunio 
 

 

3.  DATGANIADAU O DDIDDORDEB  

 
(a) Derbyn unrhyw ddatganiadau o ddiddordeb gan aelodau mewn perthynas ag 
eitemau sydd i'w hystyried ar yr agenda.   
(b)  Derbyn ceisiadau gan aelodau i gofnodi eu haelodaeth ar gynghorau tref neu 
gymuned lle cafwyd trafodaeth ar faterion sydd i'w trafod gan y Pwyllgor hwn.   
(c)  Derbyn datganiadau gan Aelodau'r Pwyllgor y byddant yn gweithredu fel 
'Cynrychiolydd Lleol' mewn perthynas â chais unigol sy'n cael ei ystyried gan y 
Pwyllgor.   

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



(d)  Nodi manylion aelodau'r Cyngor Sir (sydd ddim yn aelodau'r Pwyllgor) a fydd yn 
gweithredu fel 'Cynrychiolydd Lleol' o ran cais unigol sy'n cael ei ystyried gan y 
Pwyllgor. 
 
 

4.  CEISIADAU CYNLLUNIO I'W HYSTYRIED GAN Y PWYLLGOR.  

 
Ystyried adroddiadau’r Pennaeth Eiddo, Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd ac i 
wneud unrhyw benderfyniadau anghenrheidiol ar hynny.  
 
(Tudalennau 5 - 6) 
 

4.1.  Diweddariadau 

 Bydd unrhyw ddiweddariadau yn cael eu hychwanegu i’r Agenda, fel 
Pecyn Atodol, lle bynnag y bo modd, cyn y cyfarfod.  
(I Ddilyn) 
 
 

4.2.  20/0659/FUL Neuadd Maldwyn, Ffordd Hafren, Y Trallwng, SY21 7AS 

 (Tudalennau 7 - 66) 
 
 

4.3.  20/1870/HH Annegra, Borfa Green, Y Trallwng, SY21 7QE 

 (Tudalennau 67 - 80) 
 
 

4.4.  20/2074/TRE Mulberry Place, Arthurs Gate, Trefaldwyn, Powys, SY15 
6QU 

 (Tudalennau 81 - 88) 
 
 

5.  PENDERFYNIADAU'R PENNAETH EIDDO, CYNLLUNIO A GWARCHOD Y 
CYHOEDD O DAN BWERAU DIRPRWYEDIG  

 
Derbyn rhestr o benderfynadau a wnaed gan y Pennaeth Eiddo, Cynllunio a 
Gwarchod y Cyhoedd o dan bwerau dirprwyedig, er gwybodaeth.  
(Tudalennau 89 - 118) 
 

6.  PENDERFYNIAD AR YR APEL  

 
Derbyn penderfyniad yr Arolygiaeth Gynllunio ynglyn ag apeliadau. 
(Tudalennau 119 - 126) 
 

7.  ANSAWDD DWR - AFONYDD - ARDALOEDD ARBENNIG AR GYFER 
CADWRAETH  

 
Derbyn adroddiad llafar. 
 



 

Tacsis a thrwyddedu arall 
 

 

8.  COFNODION YR IS-BWYLLGORAU TRWYDDEDU TACSIS  

 
Awdurdodi’r Cadeiryddion sy’n cadeirio’r Is-Bwyllgorau Trwyddedu Tacsis canlynol i lofnodi’r 
cofnodion fel cofnod cywir:  27 Hydref, 2020 a 30 Tachwedd, 2020. 

(Tudalennau 127 - 132) 
 
 
 



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee Thursday, 3 December 2020 

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE PLANNING, TAXI LICENSING & RIGHTS OF 
WAY COMMITTEE HELD BY TEAMS ON THURSDAY, 3 DECEMBER 2020 

 
PRESENT 
County Councillor K Lewis (Chair) 
 
County Councillors L V Corfield, E Durrant, L George, D R Jones, G Jones, 
M J Jones, F H Jump, H Lewis, D R Price, P C Pritchard, G Pugh, D Selby, K S Silk, 
E Vaughan, G I S Williams, D H Williams, J Williams, R Williams and J Wilkinson 
 

1.  APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from County Councillor E M Jones. 

 

2.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The Chair was authorised to sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting 
held on 12 November, 2020. 

 

Planning 
 

 
 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
(a) There were no declarations of interest. 
 
(b) The Committee noted that no Member requested that a record be made of 
their membership of a Community Council where discussion had taken place of 
matters for the consideration of this Committee. 
 
(c) The Committee noted that no Member (who is a member of the 
Committee) would be acting as ‘local representative’ in respect of any application 
on the agenda. 
 
(d) The Committee noted that no Member (who is not a member of the 
Committee) would be speaking as the ‘local representative’ in respect of any 
application on the agenda. 

 

4.  PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Property, Planning and 
Public Protection (copies filed with the signed minutes). 

 
4.1 Updates 

 
There were no updates for this meeting. 
 

4.2 20.1251.FUL Welshpool Church In Wales Primary School, Maesydre 
School Site, Howell Road, Welshpool, Powys SY21 7SU 

 
Grid Ref:   E: 322795 N: 307042 

Tudalen 1

2



Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee Thursday, 3 December 2020 

 

 
Valid Date:   31.07.2020 
 
Community Council: Welshpool Town Council 
 
Applicant:   Powys County Council 
 
Location: Welshpool Church In Wales Primary School, 

Maesydre School Site, Howell Road, Welshpool, 
Powys SY21 7SU 

 
Proposal: Refurbishment of existing school building, demolition 

of existing outbuildings and associated structures and 
construction of a new school extension in order to 
provide 150 place Welsh Medium School with 
associated MUGA, playing field, landscaping, car park 
and infrastructure works 

 
Application Type:  Full Application 
 
The Professional Lead - Planning advised that if the Committee were minded to 
approve the application, it be delegated to him to determine the application 
provided that Welsh Government approve the listed building consent as 
submitted.  However, if the Welsh Government refused consent or required any 
significant amendments to the latter, this planning application would be brought 
back to the Committee. 
 
In response to a question the Professional Lead – Planning advised that there 
was no requirement for the Built Heritage Officer to be consulted on this 
application, as CADW would be considering the listed building consent 
application to inform Welsh Government.  The Built Heritage Officer advised that 
she had however been involved in numerous site visits with CADW, the 
architects and Powys County Council.  The Committee noted that accessibility 
throughout the building would be addressed through Building Regulations and 
that the Design and Access Statement referred to the installation of a lift. 
 
In respect of the footpath on the site, the Solicitor advised that if the Committee 
was minded to approve the planning application, it would be incumbent on the 
applicant to abide by the separate rights of way legislation.  The Committee 
noted that a Rights of Way informative was included with the recommended 
conditions. 
 
In response to questions the Highway Authority Officer confirmed that although 
the internal parking arrangements were an issue for the applicant, it had 
confirmed that there would a drop off point, a one way system and that a safety 
audit would be undertaken.  The Professional Lead – Planning advised that the 
Design and Access Statement referred to the design of the building achieving 
passivhaus standards.  The Senior Land Drainage Officer confirmed that a flood 
consequence assessment had been completed and the site was outside the C2 
floodzone.   
 

Tudalen 2



Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee Thursday, 3 December 2020 

 

The Professional Lead – Planning, in response to a question confirmed that 
Network Rail had not raised any concerns regarding the proposed development 
prejudicing the use of the railway. 
 
It was moved and duly seconded to approve the application as recommended by 
the officer. 
 

RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 

that the application be granted 
consent, subject to the 
conditions set out in the report 
which is filed with the signed 
minutes and that it be delegated 
to the Professional Lead - 
Planning to determine the 
application provided that Welsh 
Government approve the listed 
building consent as submitted. 
However, should Welsh 
Government refuse consent or 
require amendments then the 
application will need to be 
considered by the Committee 
again. 

As officer’s recommendation as 
set out in the report which is 
filed with the signed minutes. 

 
 

4.3 20/1896/AGR Agricultural notification for a proposed new bridge 
which replaces daily river crossings, to reduce pollution. 

 
Grid Ref:   E: 316426 N: 319032 
 
Valid Date:   23/11/2020 
 
Community Council: Llanfyllin Community Council 
 
Applicant:   Miss Lisa Barlow 
 
Location:   Green Hall, Llanfyllin, SY22 5LG. 
 
Proposal: Agricultural notification for a proposed new bridge 

which replaces daily river crossings, to reduce 
pollution. 

 
Application Type:  Agricultural Notification 
 
The Solicitor advised that as the land, the subject of the application, is within the 
ownership of a Councillor, he had reviewed the application documents and 
correspondence and confirmed that it had been processed “normally”, as 
required under the Planning Protocol. 
 
It was moved and duly seconded to approve the application as recommended by 
the officer. 
 

Tudalen 3



Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee Thursday, 3 December 2020 

 

RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 

that that prior approval is not be 
required. 

As officer’s recommendation as 
set out in the report which is 
filed with the signed minutes. 

 

5.  DECISIONS OF THE HEAD OF PROPERTY, PLANNING AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION  ON DELEGATED APPLICATIONS  

 
The Committee received for information a list of decisions made by the Head of 
Property, Planning and Public Protection during the period between 4 November 
2020 and 24 November 2020. 

 

6.  APPEAL DECISION  

 
The Committee received a copy of the Planning Inspectorate’s letters regarding 
the appeals in respect of the following applications: 

 19/1071/REM - Coed-Y-Dinas, Mochdre, Newtown, SY16 4LA - the 
Committee noted that the Inspector had upheld the appeal. 

 19/1316/RES - Gobaith (Plot 5), Bron Y Gaer, Llanfyllin, SY22 5DF – it 
was noted that the Inspector had upheld the appeal. 

 19/0483/FUL - The Old Drill Hall, Cabin At, U1843 From Junction with 
Bridge Street to the Drill Hall, Rhayader, LD6 5AG - the Committee noted 
that the Inspector had dismissed the appeal. 

 
 

 
 

County Councillor K Lewis (Chair) 

Tudalen 4



Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee 
22 January 2021 

 
For the purpose of the Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the 

background papers relating to each individual planning application constitute all the 
correspondence on the file as numbered in the left hand column. 

Applications for consideration by Committee: 
 

Application No:                                     Nature of Development: 
Community:                                          Location of Development: 
O.S. Grid Reference:                            Applicant: 
Date Received:                                     Recommendation of Head of Planning: 
 

20/0659/FUL 
 
 
Welshpool Community 
 
 
322826 307337 
 
 
28:04:2020 
 
 

Full: Redevelopment of former office building 
and site to provide an extra care facility, which 
will include 66 no. self-contained 1 & 2 
bedroom apartments with supporting facilities. 
Alterations to Chalfont, and the demolition of 
the single storey outbuildings. 
 
Neuadd Maldwyn, Severn Road, Welshpool 

 
Clwyd Alyn Housing Association 
 
Recommendation: 
Conditional Consent 
 

20/1870/HH 
 
Welshpool Community 
 
 
322914 308207 
 
 
16/11/2020 
 
 

Householder: Demolition of existing porch, 
Extension to existing roof covering new 
porch to cover replacement structure  
 
Annegra, Borfa Green, Welshpool 
 
Mr and Mrs Seddon 
 
Recommendation: 
Conditional Consent 

20/2074/TRE 
 
Montgomery Community 
 
 
322482 297021 
 
 
16:12:2020 

Application to fell two trees within a 
conservation area 
 
Mullberry Place, Arthurs Gate, 
Montgomery 
 
S M Hayes 
 
Recommendation:  
Approve 
 

 

Tudalen 5

4



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 

Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee Report 
 

Application 
Number: 

20/0659/FUL 
 

Grid Ref: E: 322826 

N: 307337 

Community 
Council: 

 Welshpool Community Valid Date: 19.08.2020 

 
Applicant: Mr Arwyn Evans - Clwyd Alyn Housing Association 
 
Location: Neuadd Maldwyn, Severn Road, Welshpool, SY21 7AS.  

 
Proposal: Redevelopment of former office building and site to provide an extra care facility, 
which will include 66 no. self-contained 1 & 2 bedroom apartments with supporting facilities. 
Alterations to Chalfont, and the demolition of the single storey outbuildings. 
 
Application Type: Full Application 
 
 
The reason for Committee determination 
 
The application comes before Members of the Planning Committee as the building 
known as Neuadd Maldwyn is within the ownership of Powys County Council and is a 
major development. 
 
Consultee Responses 
 
Consultee Received 

 
Community Council 18th Sep 2020 

Welshpool Town Council discussed this application at the planning meeting on the 16th 

September and make the following comments: 

o That all comments and concerns raised by neighbours and Welshpool residents 

are taken into consideration 

o There is concern from the general public about the design of the extra new parts of 

the building with regard to the aesthetics of the area and the lack of privacy for the 

existing neighbours 

o We question the procedures of Powys CC as the Conservation officer is not able to 

comment on the application 

o There has been little or no dedicated consultation with neighbouring properties and 

Tudalen 7

4.2



 

 

none with Design Commision Wales. 

o The plans are contrary to the Welshpool Local Development Plan and do not 

conform with guidance from the Design Commission for Wales and do not make any 

attempt to meet the aims of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act for a healthier 

Wales, Cohesive Wales, more resilient Wales and a more equality Wales 

o There is concern about the amount of parking for the number of dwellings 

o The location of refuse is not acceptable and is detrimental to the neighbouring 

properties 

o There is concern about the development being for a single age group - not mixed 

accommodation 

o It is inappropriate for Welshpool as we know were informed by Dylan Owen (PCC) 

that we are loosing young people throughout Powys - 5000 fewer economically active 

young people are leaving and 10,000 come into the area to retire i.e. the economically 

inactive  

o There is already pressure on the existing local services and the healthcare service 

for the nature and type of this development - it is known that there is a shortage of carers 

locally which means that there is a continual need for and agency staff travel into 

Welshpool to carry out this type of work 

o There being 16 care homes / supported living homes/ nursing homes in Welshpool 

already and that our population is under 7K. This shows that this age group is adequately 

catered for already and the Neuadd Madwyn development should be considered for a 

mixed age group 

o Neither Welshpool Town Council or the neighbours are against this being 

residential units, but there are too many people going to be living on the site, it is for a 

single age group, there is no diversity of ages or abilities, it is not a good place to live for 

this has mixed age groups.  and it will have a detrimental effect on Clive Place  

o There is nothing to say what Chalfont House is going to be used for - there is 

serious concern about this 

o No notice has been taken about the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act for a 

healthier Wales, Cohesive Wales, more resilient Wales and a more equality Wales 

We also ask that the following comments from the neighbours are taken into 

consideration. 

'We the neighbours, know that the development will happen and are not adverse to the 

Tudalen 8



 

 

proposals, however aesthetically it's unsympathetic to its surroundings and we question 

Powys County Council's procedures and processes. Of concern and in no particular order 

-  

 

o It's ugly, over massed and in a conservation area 

o The Built Heritage Conservation Officer (BHCO) is unable to comment and is 

obliged    

            to be impartial 

o Emergency services' access has still yet to be resolved 

o No engagement with neighbours and no care for their sentiment 

o No engagement with the Design Commission for Wales 

o Is there a real need? 

o Is there ample parking? 

o Are the building materials sympathetic to the neighbouring houses? 

o Procedurally, has Powys County Council followed the correct processes to the 

letter  

            of the law and have best practices been implemented? 

o Is there enough privacy allowed to neighbouring gardens? 

o Is it fair that the refuse/waste area be sited adjacent to 3 Clive Place and Clive  

            House gardens? 

o The plans are in contravention to Powys Local Development Plan Supplementary  

                       Guidance Conservation Area, adopted by Powys County Council in 

January 2020 

o No attention nor plan has been proposed nor implemented to ensure the duty of 

care  

            to the adjacent Grade 2 listed buildings during the construction phase 

Powys County Council have been fastidious with numbers 2 Clive Place, 3 Clive Place 

and Clive House, the owners' being unable to replace a window, trim a tree nor change 

Tudalen 9



 

 

the surface finish of a drive way without oversight, yet this development appears to be 

pushed through rough shod, without style, grace nor engagement. The residents of 

Welshpool do not want another mini Oldford and we remain overwhelmingly sceptical of 

the need and quality of the end result.' 

 

PCC-Building Control 27th Aug 2020 

Building Regulations application required. 

 

 

WG - Highways Directorate                                                 21st Sep 2020 

I refer to your consultation of 26 August 2020 regarding the above application. The Welsh 

Government as Highway Authority for the A483 Trunk Road would not object to the 

proposed use and notes the development, would in fact be favourable in terms of 

reducing vehicular movements. However, we direct that planning permission is not 

granted at this time as further information on the emergency access to Chalfont is 

required. 

The applicant must provide the following information to support this application or 

resubmit the application with the following details; 

1. The general arrangement of the junction, evidencing swept path arrangements for 

the worst case design vehicle can be accommodated within the carriageway. 

2. Confirmation of the frequency of intend use.  

3. How the access is intended to be controlled to stop day to day use. Plan identifies 

a gated access, but no details given. Any arrangement would need to be setback from the 

existing carriageway to accommodate the worst case design vehicle, clear of the running 

lane of the roundabout arm.   

4. Consideration for the existing footway, should be given. When designing the form 

of the junction, please show on plans the intended interface between the junction works 

and the aforementioned footway, as required. 

 

  

Tudalen 10



 

 

 

WG - Highways Directorate 21st Dec 2020 

I refer to your consultation of 2ⁿᵈ December 2020 regarding the above application, and 

advise that the Welsh Government as highway authority for the A483 trunk road directs 

that planning permission is not granted at this time as the applicant has provided 

insufficient information to determine the application.   The applicant must provide the 

following information to support this application or resubmit the application with the 

following details; 

1) The general arrangement of the junction between the fire appliance access and the 

arm off the Trunk Road roundabout is required with significant dimensions (widths, corner 

radii / entry splay, longitudinal gradients etc.) clearly identified. As the access has been 

identified for use for emergencies and during construction only, the Welsh Government 

revokes the concern for the access to accommodate the worst case vehicle, clear of the 

running lane of the roundabout arm. However, it has been observed the swept path 

analysis identifies the proposed access width is insufficient to accommodate the 

overhang of the proposed design vehicle, which would result in additional manoeuvres 

required for access. Please supply your plans to rectify the issue.  

Additionally it has been observed the vehicle now being tracked, is smaller than the one 

previously i.e. it would be assumed the footprint will be less onerous, please confirm the 

vehicle type has been agreed with all relevant parties.  

2) Consideration for the existing footway, should be given. When designing the form of 

the junction, please show on plans the intended interface between the junction works and 

the aforementioned footway, as required. General Notes Any works undertaken within or 

forming part of the highway shall meet the requirements of Section 184 of the Highways 

Act 1980, and shall only be commenced with the specific agreement of the Welsh 

Government.  

The Section184 agreement is managed by our Trunk Road Agents on our behalf, for 

North and Mid Wales please apply to the North and Mid Wales Trunk Road Agent. 

http://www.nmwtra.org.uk/   

The Applicant shall commission and pay for a Safety Audit of the scheme, (Stages 1 – 4) 

in accordance with the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges GG 119. The Applicant 

shall agree the required measures with the Welsh Government before works commence 

on site and will be responsible for meeting all costs associated with these works 

WG - Highways Directorate 11th Jan 2021 

Tudalen 11



 

 

I refer to your consultation of 22 December 2020 regarding the above application and 

advise that the Welsh Government as highway authority for the A483 trunk road directs 

that planning permission is not granted at this time as the applicant has provided 

insufficient information to determine the application. 

The applicant must provide the following information to support this application or 

resubmit the application with the following details; 

1) Longitudinal gradient of the emergency access to assess the 'dwell' area in 

accordance with the DMRB. Steep gradients have the potential for vehicles to roll into live 

traffic lane and furthermore direct surface water runoff into the public highway. 

2) Kerb line is identified as a series of straights, resulting in a jagged line. Please resupply 

details with a 'sweetened line' to allow for constructability. 

3) Tactile paving required on either extents of the crossing. Please update proposals 

accordingly. 

 

WG - Highways Directorate                                           13th Jan 2021 

  

I refer to your consultation of 13/01/2021 regarding the above planning application and 

advise that the Welsh Government as highway authority for the A483 trunk road directs 

that any permission granted by your authority shall include the following conditions:  

No drainage from the development site shall be connected to or allowed to discharge 

into the trunk road drainage system, and the proposed access shall be constructed such 

that the access road does not drain onto the trunk road. Positive drainage systems will 

need to be in place to capture any surface water runoff from entering the public 

highway.  

1) General Notes Any works undertaken within or forming part of the highway shall meet 

the requirements of Section184 of the Highways Act 1980, and shall only be 

commenced with the specific agreement of the Welsh Government.  

The Section184 agreement is managed by our Trunk Road Agents on our behalf, for 

North and Mid Wales please apply to the North and Mid Wales Trunk Road Agent.  

The Applicant shall commission and pay for a Safety Audit of the scheme, (Stages 1 – 

4) in accordance with the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges GG 119. The Applicant 

shall agree the required measures with the Welsh Government before works commence 

on site and will be responsible for meeting all costs associated with these works  

Tudalen 12



 

 

 

 The above conditions are included to maintain the safety and free flow of trunk road 

traffic.  

If you have any further queries, please forward to the following Welsh Government 

Mailbox NorthandMidWalesDevelopmentControlMailbox@gov.wales 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) 

DPAS 

14th Sep 2020 

Thank you for consulting Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural Resources Wales (NRW) 

about the above, which we received on 25/08/2020. 

We have significant concerns with the proposed development as submitted. We 

recommend you should only grant planning permission if the following requirement is met. 

Otherwise, we would object to this planning application. 

Requirement 1 - BATS: The submission of bat surveys to include bat activity observations 

and provision of any necessary mitigation to demonstrate the proposal is not detrimental 

to the maintenance of the population of any species of bats concerned at a favourable 

conservation status in its natural range. 

Protected Species 

We have reviewed the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal report submitted in support of the 

above application dated April 2020 by Ascerta and we note that although no bat roosting 

evidence was found during the preliminary site inspection in January 2020, five of the 

buildings affected by the development were considered to have high bat roosting 

potential. 

Although a bat report has been submitted, we do not consider that there is adequate 

information to assess potential effects of the proposed development on bats that may be 

present at this site. Confirmation of bat use/ absence as well as species identified will be 

required to establish the likely effect of the proposal on bats and secure appropriate 

mitigation. 

Bats and their breeding sites and resting places are protected under the Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. Where bats are present and a development 

proposal is likely to contravene the legal protection they are afforded, the development 

may only proceed under licence issued by Natural Resources Wales, having satisfied the 

Tudalen 13



 

 

three requirements set out in the legislation. A licence may only be authorised if: 

i. the development works to be authorised are for the purpose of preserving public health 

or safety, or for other imperative reasons of overriding public interest, including those of a 

social or economic nature and beneficial consequences of primary importance for the 

environment. 

ii. There is no satisfactory alternative and 

iii. The action authorised will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the population of 

the species concerned at a favourable conservation status in its natural range. 

We note the bat surveyor identifies the need for activity surveys, however he suggests 

that these can be carried out prior to commencement of works and therefore after 

determination. 

This is contrary to paragraph 6.3.7 of Technical Advice Note 5: Nature Conservation and 

Planning (TAN5) states that your Authority should not grant planning permission without 

having satisfied itself that the proposed development either would not impact adversely 

onany bats on the site or that, in its opinion, all three conditions for the eventual grant of a 

licence are likely to be satisfied. 

Whilst we understand bat surveys may be required between determination and 

commencement of works in line with section 9.2.4 of the BS 42020:2013 and to provide 

additional evidence to inform mitigation, the determination of presence/absence of a roost 

at planning application stage is a material consideration for the LPA and must be 

established prior to granting planning permission, as the demolition of this building would 

result in a complete loss of a roost if present. 

Surveys will also inform any mitigation requirements which will have to be included within 

the proposed plans and details of lighting design to retain/enhance dark commuting 

corridors/ flight lines used by bats. 

Therefore, we have significant concerns with the development as currently proposed, and 

recommend the application remains undetermined until it can be demonstrated that the 

proposal will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the population of any species 

concerned at a favourable conservation status in its natural range. 

Protected Sites 

From the information provided, the scale and nature of the proposal, we consider that the 

proposal is not likely to have a significant effect on the Montgomery Canal Special 

Conservation Area (SAC). 

Tudalen 14



 

 

We also consider that the proposed development is not likely to damage the features for 

which the Montgomery Canal Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) is of special 

interest. 

To avoid any contamination of the Montgomery Canal's waters, all works at the site must 

be carried out in accordance with the relevant PPGs: which are available on the following 

website: http://www.netregs.org.uk/environmental-topics/pollution-prevention-

guidelinesppgs-and-replacement-series/guidance-for-pollution-prevention-gpps-full-list/ 

Our advice may change should modifications be made to the proposed development prior 

to the determination of the application. If there are any changes to the proposed 

development which may affect the consideration of potential environmental impacts, 

please consult us again before you determine the application. 

Flood Risk 

The planning application proposes residential development. Our Flood Risk Map confirms 

the site to be within Zone A of the Development Advice Map (DAM) contained in TAN15. 

We have reviewed the Flood Consequence Assessment (FCA) report dated 20/03/2020 

by The Alan Johnston Partnership LLP which accompanies the application. We support 

the various mitigation measures recommended to address any residual flood risks, such 

as sensible adjacent ground recontouring away from the main built development and 

ensuring internal floor levels are above adjacent ground levels. We recommend the 

advice within the FCA should be incorporated within the detailed design to secure its 

implementation. 

Other Matters 

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on our consultation topic 

list, Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics (September 2018), 

which is published on our website. We have not considered potential effects on other 

matters and do not rule out the potential for the proposed development to affect other 

environmental interests. 

We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning permission, it is their responsibility to 

ensure they secure all other permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. 

Please refer to our website for further details. 

Advice for the developer: 

Waste 

Tudalen 15



 

 

Waste produced during the construction phase of your development must be dealt with 

appropriately, and be in line with all relevant waste legislation including Duty of Care 

Regulations and Hazardous Waste Regulations. As part of your waste duty of care you 

must classify the waste produced: 

o before it is collected, disposed of or recovered 

o to identify the controls that apply to the movement of the waste 

o to complete waste documents and records 

o to identify suitably authorised waste management options 

o to prevent harm to people and the environment. 

Any waste removed from site will be subject to waste management controls. The links 

below provided information on how to classify waste and register as a waste carrier or 

hazardous waste producer: 

http://naturalresources.wales/waste/how-to-classify-and-assess-waste/?lang=en 

http://naturalresources.wales/apply-for-a-permit/waste/?lang=en 

Further guidance can be found on the GOV website here: 

https://www.gov.uk/managing-your-waste-an-overview/duty-of-care 

 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) 

DPAS 

21st Oct 2020 

Thank you for consulting Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural Resources Wales (NRW)  

about additional information on the above, which we received on 04/10/2020. We 

continue to have significant concerns with the proposed development as submitted. We 

recommend you should only grant planning permission if the following requirement is met. 

Otherwise, we would object to this planning application.  

Requirement 1: Clarifications regarding the extent of works affecting buildings B1 and B7 

(as identified within the preliminary ecological appraisal report dated October 2020), to 

enable us to advise your authority on the potential impacts to European Protected 

Species (bats). Protected Species 

Tudalen 16

https://www.gov.uk/managing-your-waste-an-overview/duty-of-care


 

 

We have reviewed the Bat Nocturnal Surveys and revised Preliminary Ecological 

Appraisal report submitted in support of the above application dated October 2020 by 

Ascerta. These reports have been submitted in response to Requirement 1 of our 

response letter dated 14/09/2020. 

We note three bat activity surveys were completed between July and September 2020, in 

line with Bat Conservation Trust, Bat Survey Good Practice Guidelines (3rd Edition). The 

surveys have identified the presence of common pipistrelle and soprano pipistrelle bats 

roosting in two of the buildings surveyed (B1 and B7). The reports make 

recommendations in relation to B1, proposing avoidance and mitigation measures as well 

as the need for pre-commencement of works surveys, but they do not describe the extent 

of works affecting this building. They also conclude that a European Protected Species 

(EPS) licence would not be required because of the low numbers of bats found to use the 

building. However, we advise that in Wales, development that results in the loss of a bat 

roost (regardless of the number of bats involved) can only proceed under licence issued 

by NRW, having satisfied the three requirements set out in the Conservation of Habitats 

and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). Therefore, further information is needed to 

understand the impact on roosting bats and if a roost is going to be disturbed, affected, 

adapted, temporarily lost or permanently lost etc. during development, a license issued by 

NRW will be required. 

Furthermore, the 'Bat Nocturnal Surveys' report states that building B7 (Chalfont) has 

now been removed from the planning application and therefore bats roosting within this 

structure will not be affected and won't be given further consideration. This is not in line 

with the Proposed Site Sections plan (drawing CAWLMA00XXDRA1400 Rev P8), as 

submitted. The plans include the refurbishment and partial demolition of B7 and therefore, 

confirmation on whether the Chalfon will be included in the development is required 

together with the submission of amended supportive documents which reflect the 

proposal as intended. 

We appreciate the level of refurbishment needed on each building may not be known at 

this outline stage, however, the latest information provided contradicts the submitted 

plans. We therefore expect to see an impact assessment that reflects the proposal as 

intended to enable us to confirm the proposal will not be detrimental to the maintenance 

of the population of the bat species concerned at a favourable conservation status in its 

natural range. Please refer to our letter of 14/09/2020 for comments on protected sites 

and flood risk. 

Other Matters 

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on our consultation topic 

list, Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics (September 2018), 

Tudalen 17



 

 

which is published on our website. We have not considered potential effects on other 

matters and do not rule out the potential for the proposed development to affect other 

environmental interests. 

We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning permission, it is their responsibility to 

ensure they secure all other permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. 

Please refer to our website for further details. 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) 

DPAS 

12th Nov 2020 

Thank you for consulting Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural Resources Wales (NRW) 

about additional information on the above, which we received on 06/11/2020. We 

continue to have significant concerns with the proposed development as 

submitted. We recommend you should only grant planning permission if you include the 

following documents within the condition identifying approved plans and documents on 

the decision notice: 

o Ascerta, Ref: P.1268.19 Rev A, 02/11/2020, Bat Nocturnal Surveys, Section 7 

Protected Species 

We have reviewed the updated Bat Nocturnal Surveys report dated 02/11/2020 by 

Ascerta which has been submitted in response to Requirement 1 of our response letter 

dated 21/10/2020. 

We are satisfied the clarifications added in section 5 of the report address our 

requirement for clarification and we agree with the conclusion and recommendations of 

the report. Provided all the recommended reasonable avoidance measures and mitigation 

in section 7 of the bat report are implemented, we do not consider that the development is 

likely to be detrimental to the maintenance of the population of the species concerned at 

a favourable conservation status in its natural range. 

If bats are found or seen during works, all work must stop immediately and advice sought 

from NRW before works can restart. 

Other Matters 

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on our consultation topic 

list, Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics (September 2018), 

which is published on our website. We have not considered potential effects on other 

matters and do not rule out the potential for the proposed development to affect other 

Tudalen 18



 

 

environmental interests. 

We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning permission, it is their responsibility to 

ensure they secure all other permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. 

Please refer to our website for further details. 

 

Natural Resources Wales (Mid Wales) 

DPAS 

3rd Dec 2020 

Thank you for consulting NRW on additional information on the above. We have reviewed 

the documents uploaded on your website on 02/12/2020 and we have no further 

comments to add. 

 

PCC-Ecologist 9th Oct 2020 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on planning application 20/0659/FUL which 

concerns an application for redevelopment of former office building and site to provide an 

extra care facility, which will include 66 no. self-contained 1 & 2 bedroom apartments with 

supporting facilities, alterations to Chalfont, and the demolition of the single storey 

outbuildings at Neuadd Maldwyn Severn Road Welshpool SY21 7AS.  

I have reviewed the proposed plans, aerial images as well as records of protected and 

priority species and designated sites within 500m of the proposed development. 

The data search identified 287 records of protected and priority species within 500m of 

the proposed development with 1 record found for the site itself. Species recorded within 

500m of the proposed development include bat species; common pipistrelle, soprano 

pipistrelle, noctule and brown long-eared bat, and otter, hedgehog, hare, badger, grass 

snake, house sparrow, linnet and spotted flycatcher.  

Two statutory designated sites were identified within 500m of the proposed development: 

o Montgomery Canal Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) - approximately 90m 

from the proposed development 

o Montgomery Canal Special Area for Conservation (SAC) - approximately 90m from 

the proposed development 

Given the proximity of the proposed development to the Montgomery Canal SAC, the 

potential for the proposed development to impact the Montgomery Canal SAC during the 

construction and operation phases of the development and the potential for a Likely 

Tudalen 19



 

 

Significant Effect on the Montgomery Canal SAC and/or its associated features has been 

considered.  

Having reviewed the information provided by the applicant and reviewing OS map and 

aerial images of the area, it is considered that there is potential for the proposed 

development to impact the Montgomery Canal SAC. Pollution/contamination from 

construction activities could result in a Significant Effect. Therefore, to demonstrate that 

the proposed development would not result in a Likely Significant Effect on the 

Montgomery Canal SAC and/or its associated features a Pollution Prevention Plan is 

required to ensure no negative impact is caused during construction activities on the site. 

This information is required to be submitted prior to determination of the application to 

enable a Habitats Regulations Screening to be undertaken. 

It is considered that further information is required to enable the Local Planning Authority 

to assess the potential impacts of the proposed development on the Montgomery Canal 

SAC, a European designated site, in accordance with Regulation 61 of the Conservation 

of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). This information is required to 

be submitted prior to any further development works being undertaken. 

It is recommended that preparation of the Pollution Prevention Plan refers to relevant 

guidance which can be found at:  

https://www.netregs.org.uk/environmental-topics/pollution-prevention-guidelines-ppgs-

and-replacement-series/  

One non-statutory designated site was identified within 500m of the proposed 

development. 

o Severn Farm Pond Wildlife Trust Reserve (WTR) - approximately 340m from the 

proposed development. 

Having taken into account the location of the WTR in relation to the proposed 

development and the nature of the works proposed, it is considered that there would not 

be a likely negative impact directly or indirectly to the WTR and/or its associated features. 

Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 

I have reviewed the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, Rev A, produced by Ascerta, dated 

April 2020, and consider that consider that the survey methods and effort employed were 

in accordance with current National Guidelines. 

The Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) report details the findings of a phase 1 

habitat survey and a protected species habitat suitability assessment undertaken on 22nd 

January 2020, as well as the results of an associated desk-based study. Habitats 

Tudalen 20



 

 

identified within and immediately adjacent to the proposed development site include: 

o Office buildings 

o Hardstanding (car parks) 

o Amenity grassland 

o Species-poor hedgerows 

o Introduced shrubs 

o Scattered trees 

o Residential dwellings 

o Roads 

o Retail and industrial premises 

o Public open spaces 

The proposed development site was surveyed for its ability to support a number of 

protected species including: 

o Mammals (badgers, brown hare, otter, hedgehog and bats) 

o Birds 

o Amphibians and reptiles 

o Invertebrates 

 

Although the survey took place in January (a sub-optimal time for vegetation surveys) it 

was considered that sufficient vegetation was present on site to enable a reliable 

assessment of habitat types to be made. The proposed development site was assessed 

as being unsuitable for supporting badger, amphibians (including great crested newts), 

reptiles, brown hare, polecat and otter. 

The habitats on site were considered to provide moderate commuting and foraging 

potential for bats. A preliminary bat roost assessment of the buildings and trees on site 

was undertaken to identify potential roosting features and/or access points. Of the trees 

assessed for presence of potential roost features, only two trees were identified that were 

considered to have potential to support roosting bats (T5 and T11 in the submitted 

Arboricultural Impact Assessment). T5 will be retained within the development, no further 

Tudalen 21



 

 

surveys were required. T11, a lime, will be removed to accommodate the proposed 

development and, therefore, further surveys were recommended prior to felling to 

determine the presence or likely absence of a bat roost. Areas of introduced shrubs east 

of the main building and a number of trees on the north of the site are to be removed to 

accommodate the proposed development and access road. None of these were 

considered suitable for roosting bats but contribute to potential commuting and foraging 

habitat. 

Internal and external inspections were made of seven buildings on site (numbered B1-

B7). Buildings B1 and B2 constitute the main office areas. No evidence of bats was 

observed during internal or external inspections of either building. However, a number of 

potential roost features and access points were identified on both structures. The 

buildings were considered to have high potential to support roosting bats. 

Building B3 was identified as an assembly hall and office. No evidence of bats was 

observed during internal or external inspections. Multiple potential roost features and 

access points were identified and the building was considered to have high potential to 

support roosting bats. 

Building B4 was identified as interconnecting portacabins north of B2. No evidence of 

bats was observed during internal or external inspections. The building was considered to 

have negligible potential to support roosting bats. However, further assessment for 

potential roosting suitability would be required if an EPS licence is required for works 

elsewhere on site and has not been obtained before May 2021. 

Building B5 was located within the car park north of B2. It was unoccupied and in a poor 

state or repair. No evidence of bats was observed during external inspection, internal 

access was not possible at the time. Multiple potential roost features and access points 

were identified and the building was considered to have high potential to support roosting 

bats. 

Building B6 was identified as a small brick storage building in the north west corner of the 

site. No evidence of bats was observed during internal or external inspections. The 

building was considered to have negligible potential to support roosting bats. However, as 

for B4, further assessment for potential roosting suitability would be required if an EPS 

licence is required for works elsewhere on site and has not been obtained before May 

2021. 

Building B7 was a two-storey detached former dwelling (Chalfont) located to the east of 

the site and accessed via the main car park. No evidence of bats was observed during 

external inspection, internal access was not possible at the time. Multiple potential roost 

features and access points were identified and the building was considered to have high 

Tudalen 22



 

 

potential to support roosting bats. 

The presence of multiple potential roost features on buildings B1, B2, B3, B5 and B7 and 

potential for presence of maternity and/or transitional day roosts requires further bat 

surveys to be undertaken. At least three nocturnal surveys between May and September 

were recommended, with at least two surveys falling between May and mid-July. A bat 

survey has subsequently been submitted to inform the application. 

It was considered that loss of introduced shrubs and trees will result in loss of nesting and 

feeding habitat for birds. Therefore, mitigation for nesting birds was advocated to include 

timing works to avoid nesting season and provision of nesting boxes. Additional surveys 

for nesting birds would be required prior to demolition or vegetation clearance if works are 

scheduled during the nesting season (March-August inclusive). 

Suitable habitat existed to support hedgehog (Environment (Wales) Act 2016, s.7 listed 

species) and removal of a brash pile and scrub could adversely impact any animals on 

site. Implementation of Reasonable Avoidance Measures to safeguard hedgehog during 

works were recommended. Mitigation through provision of a replacement hibernaculum 

and hedgehog friendly fencing were also considered appropriate.  

Is it, therefore, recommended that measures to safeguard nesting birds and hedgehogs 

during the demolition and construction phases are secured through an appropriately 

worded planning condition.  

The proposed development site was also assessed for presence of invasive plant species 

and stands of Rhododendron ponticum and Cotoneaster were identified within and 

adjacent to hedgerows. Both species are listed on Schedule 9 of the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) meaning that it is illegal to cause their spread in the 

wild. Therefore, it has been recommended that control measures are undertaken during 

works to avoid their spread both within and outside of the site. 

Is it, therefore, recommended that submission of a Biosecurity Risk Assessment and 

Method Statement for control of invasive non-native plant species is secured through an 

appropriately worded planning condition.  

Potential impact of the proposed development on the Montgomery Canal SAC was 

assessed. Given the design of the proposed development, it was considered that 

potential impact arising from increased recreation along the canal tow path would be 

unlikely to cause an adverse effect. 

No priority habitats were confirmed from the site and enhancement of the existing 

species-poor hedgerows (comprising privet, conifer, holly, beech and cotoneaster) would 

mitigate for loss of the introduced shrubs and northern trees. The hedgerows, scattered 

Tudalen 23



 

 

trees and grassland would be retained within the development. Overall, it was considered 

that the proposed development would not adversely affect the ecological value of the site 

subject to control of invasive non-native plant species, further assessment of buildings 

and tree T11 for presence of bats, adoption of a sensitive external lighting scheme to 

avoid impact to bats and timing works to avoid impact on nesting birds. 

Biodiversity enhancements were suggested: provision of a range of bird nesting boxes, a 

bat box and landscaping to include native tree and shrub species and wildflower areas. 

 

Bat Survey 

A bat survey report (Bat Nocturnal Surveys, produced by Ascerta, dated October 2020) 

has been submitted following the PEA undertaken in January 2020. It is considered that 

the survey methods and effort employed were in accordance with National Guidelines. 

Three activity surveys were undertaken on 2nd July 2020, (dusk survey), 6th August 

(dawn survey) and 10th September (dusk survey). The surveys focussed on buildings B1, 

B2, B3, B5 and B7, and tree T11 identified in the PEA and AIA.  

No bats were observed emerging from any of the buildings or the tree during the July 

survey. Commuting and foraging common and soprano pipistrelle bats were detected 

within the site throughout the survey period. Most activity occurred in the south and east 

of the site adjacent to B1 (main office building). Noctule bat passes over the site were 

detected twice. 

In August, soprano pipistrelles were observed entering building B7 (Chalfont) on three 

occasions. Entry location in all cases was via a gap within the roof ridgeline. A soprano 

pipistrelle was recorded from the southern elevation of building B1 entering a gap 

between roof tiles over the main entrance. Again, similar commuting and foraging 

behaviour by the same three species of bat was detected. No bats were detected 

entering B2, B3 or B5, or tree T11. 

The September survey recorded similar commuting and foraging activity as previous 

visits. A single common pipistrelle was observed emerging from beneath a roof tile on the 

south east corner of B1 (main building) which then flew over the building northwards. No 

other emergences were detected at any of the other buildings or tree T11. 

It was considered that low numbers of common and soprano pipistrelle bats were using 

features in buildings B1 and B7 as transitional day roosts. Most foraging and commuting 

activity was detected over the southern and eastern part of the site, although some 

activity was recorded in northern and western areas. The survey report identified that 

building B7 (Chalfont) which was scheduled for demolition, is to be retained within the 

Tudalen 24



 

 

development. Therefore, there no bat roosts will be lost at this location. However, it is 

unclear whether any remedial works are proposed to B7 instead and whether these will 

impact on the bat roost. 

It is unclear from the report whether proposed works will impact bat roosts. It was 

considered that a single bat roost may be impacted on the main building, although the 

report suggests two separate roosting locations were identified on the roof of the southern 

elevation of the main building (one above the main entrance and one on the south-east 

corner). It is not clear what works are required to the section of roof directly above the 

main entrance and the south-eastern corner (works are referred to in the report) although 

proposed plans identify installation of a glazed smoke vent on the opposite side of the 

roof, which may or may not be within the same undivided roof void. It was concluded that 

a European Protected Species licence would not be required because no roosts would be 

lost. If a bat roost is to be lost as a result of the proposed development an EPS licence 

will be required. Reasonable avoidance measures were proposed, such as toolbox talks 

for contractors and presence of a licensed bat worker on site to relocate any bats if they 

are found. However, no reference to timing of works to avoid likelihood of bats being 

present was proposed.  

The Preliminary Roost Assessment undertaken as part of the PEA does not provide 

sufficient detail with regard to the suitability of the basement area in the main building B1 

to be used by hibernating bats. The submitted plans indicate presence of a plant room, 

store and oil tank room. The proposed development is to widen the existing steps and 

entrance to the store-room. It is unclear if additional works/maintenance to an existing 

plant room light well (condition unknown) or works within the rooms themselves are 

proposed. Consideration should also be given to levels of future use of the rooms relative 

to current use. Given the location of the proposed works there is potential for harm and/or 

disturbance to bats hibernating in any of the rooms.  

It would also be helpful (and is good practice) to have information on the experience level 

of the surveyors undertaking surveys. It is noted that only one NRW licensed surveyor 

was present and only for the September survey, although surveys did appear to have 

been checked prior to submission. Powys LDP Supplementary Planning Guidance 

(Biodiversity and Geodiversity) states that where EPS surveys are required the 'survey, 

survey report, and mitigation and compensation proposals must always be undertaken 

and prepared by a licenced surveyor'. 

Further information is required regarding the impact to roosting bats in the main building 

(B1). Clarity is required regarding the number of bat roosts identified and to what extent 

these roosts and bat populations will be impacted by proposed works to the roof. 

Information is required regarding potential for hibernating bats to be present in the 

basement areas of B1. A hibernation survey will be required if potential use is indicated 

Tudalen 25



 

 

due to the nature of the works proposed. It is considered that there is insufficient 

information with regard to potential impacts to bats, a European protected species, to 

determine this application. 

Further comments will be provided once the required information relating to bats the 

Montgomery Canal SAC has been received. 

 

PCC-Ecologist 17th Nov 2020 

RE 20/0659/FUL which concerns an application for redevelopment of former office 

building and site to provide an extra care facility, which will include 66 no. self-contained 1 

& 2 bedroom apartments with supporting facilities, alterations to Chalfont, and the 

demolition of the single storey outbuildings at Neuadd Maldwyn Severn Road Welshpool 

SY21 7AS.  

I have reviewed the amended Bat Nocturnal Surveys report by Ascerta that clarifies that 

two transitional/day roosts are located in the roof area above the main entrance of 

building B1. A single soprano pipistrelle re-entered a gap under a roof tile above the main 

entrance during the August survey, and a single common pipistrelle emerged from 

beneath a roof tile on the south-eastern corner in September. Building works were 

confirmed to involve installation of a rooflight located on another elevation away from the 

two identified roosts. Loft insulation and creation of compartment walls within buildings 

B1, B2 and B3 are also proposed. No loss of bat roosts is predicted and appropriate 

mitigation measures have been proposed in the event bats are discovered during works 

within the roof section of B1 above the main entrance. Works to building B7 (Chalfont) are 

confirmed as removal of a single storey extension only. Three soprano pipistrelles were 

confirmed to enter a roost within the ridgeline of the main building during the August 2020 

survey. The proposed works will not result in loss of the identified roost. Again, suitable 

mitigation measures have been proposed in the unlikely event a bat is discovered during 

demolition works.  

It was confirmed that the entire basement area provides negligible suitability for 

hibernating bats and no signs of bats were identified in January 2020. The entire area 

was considered to be of negligible suitability for roosting bats but internal works to tank 

the interior walls and install fire lining materials were recommended to be undertaken 

between March and September in the unlikely event that opportunistic roosting bats were 

discovered during works. 

No EPS licence will be required for works as proposed providing the recommended 

reasonable avoidance measures are followed. It was advised that should re-roofing works 

be considered at any time after development has commenced then an EPS licence would 

Tudalen 26



 

 

be required. 

It is therefore recommended that adherence to the submitted reasonable avoidance 

measures for bats should be secured through an appropriately worded planning 

condition. 

Biodiversity enhancements were recommended in the form of provision of additional 

roosting and nesting opportunities for bats and birds respectively, as well as wildlife-

friendly landscaping measures. It is considered that the enhancements are appropriate to 

the proposed development and are in accordance with the requirements of Part 1 Section 

6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. As Neuadd Maldwyn is a Grade II listed building 

it will be necessary to confirm the appropriate location of biodiversity enhancements on 

architectural plans. 

It is, therefore, recommended that the identified biodiversity enhancement measures are 

secured through an appropriately worded planning condition. 

It is noted that the requested Pollution Prevention Plan has yet to be submitted. 

  

 

PCC-Ecologist 9th Dec 2020 

RE 20/0659/FUL which concerns an application for redevelopment of former office 

building and site to provide an extra care facility, which will include 66 no. self-contained 1 

& 2 bedroom apartments with supporting facilities, alterations to Chalfont, and the 

demolition of the single storey outbuildings at Neuadd Maldwyn Severn Road Welshpool 

SY21 7AS.  

The Montgomery Canal SSSI/SAC is located approximately 90m west of the proposed 

development site along with another watercourse approximately 60m away. Mapping 

indicates that the nearer watercourse may enter a culvert and extends underground, 

potentially beneath the site. I have reviewed the submitted Pollution Prevention Plan, 

produced by Ascerta, dated November 2020, which demonstrates that construction of the 

site will be undertaken in accordance with best practice and in a manner that avoids harm 

to the wider environment and biodiversity.  

It is, therefore, recommended that adherence to the submitted Pollution Prevention Plan 

is secured through an appropriately worded planning condition. 

Given the proximity of the proposed development to the Montgomery Canal SAC, the 

potential for the proposed development to impact the Montgomery Canal SAC during the 

Tudalen 27



 

 

construction and operation phases of the development and the potential for a Likely 

Significant Effect on the Montgomery Canal SAC and/or its associated features has been 

considered.  

Having reviewed the information provided by the applicant and reviewing OS map and 

aerial images of the area, it has been determined that the proposed development would 

not result in a likely significant effect to the Montgomery Canal SAC and/or its associated 

features. I have attached a copy of the Screening Assessment for your records. 

Arboricultural Impact Assessment 

An Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) of potential impact of the proposed 

development on trees present on and adjacent to the site has been made in accordance 

with BS5837:2012. The Arboricultural Impact Assessment, produced by Ascerta, dated 

10th March 2020, identified 17 individual trees, 12 groups of trees and five hedges. Six 

trees (locally native and ornamental species), two groups of ornamental trees and part of 

a coniferous hedge will be removed to accommodate the development, including the 

access road. These were considered to be of moderate or low value with the exception of 

one Douglas Fir classed as moderate-high specimen value. A further seven individual 

trees, four groups of trees and two hedges are to be retained within the development, 

including a Giant Sequoia and a Pinus nigra (considered high value specimens). The 

retained trees and hedges comprise a mixture of locally native and ornamental species. It 

was considered that lost trees can be compensated for by replacement planting within the 

proposed scheme. Measures were identified to protect retained trees from damage during 

demolition and construction works. These included following the provided Tree Removal 

plan and Tree Protection Plan and preparation and implementation of an Arboricultural 

Method Statement prior to commencement of works that would include details relating to 

access, siting of cabins and storage areas, parking areas, phasing of works, working 

areas and root protection zones. 

It is, therefore, recommended that adherence to the Tree Removal Plan and Tree 

Protection Plan, and submission of an Arboricultural Method Statement prior to 

commencement of development, is secured through an appropriately worded planning 

condition.  

Drainage 

It should be noted that in addition to planning approval proposed developments require 

approval from the Sustainable Drainage System Approval Body (SAB), prior to any 

construction works commencing on site, where there are new developments of more than 

1 house or where the area of the project proposals with drainage implications is likely to 

exceed 100m2 (including access tracks, areas of hard standing etc.). Standard 5 of the 

SAB seeks to ensure that, wherever possible the identified SUDs scheme makes the best 

Tudalen 28



 

 

use of the site to maximise benefits for biodiversity (as well as for amenity, water quantity 

and water quality). Further information on the requirements of SAB can be found at: 

https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5578/Sustainable-Drainage-Approval-Body-SAB  

Section 5 of the submitted Flood Consequences Assessment (FCA) recommends that 

earlystage discussions are held with the SAB and LLFA regarding management and 

disposal of surface waters associated with the proposed development. The requirement 

to include swales, rain gardens, ponds, etc. will require reconsideration of landscaping 

proposals and potentially other design considerations. Therefore, the applicant is advised 

to consult with the SAB at the earliest opportunity to avoid the potential costs associated 

with future variation of approved plans.  

The FCA confirms that foul drainage disposal is expected to be via the mains public 

sewer network with details of the connection specification to be finalised. 

Landscaping and Biodiversity Enhancement 

A planting plan has been submitted to inform the application. Details have been provided 

regarding species, location, numbers and site preparation, planting and aftercare 

specifications. It is considered that the species chosen will enhance the biodiversity 

present on site through improved habitat areas for birds, small mammals and insects. 

This is in accordance with the recommendations of the submitted PEA and bat survey 

report. Several trees have been identified that will be retained within the proposed 

development and reference is made to adherence to BS5837:2012 to inform protective 

working methods around such trees. The plan is in accordance with recommendations for 

replacement planting proposed in the submitted AIA. 

It is, therefore, recommended that adherence to the submitted Landscaping Plan is 

secured through an appropriately worded planning condition.  

Lighting 

The submitted Design and Access Statement refers to the requirement of external lighting 

to deter intruders and reduce the risk of crime. The Statement suggests that some areas 

may be subject to persistent periods of nocturnal lighting: main site access, car parking 

areas, all footpaths and associated areas to the main building and main commercial 

entrance. Other commercial access points/fire exits will be subject to control via PIR 

sensors, photoelectric cells and time switches. 

It will be necessary to minimise the amount of nocturnal light on the site to avoid adverse 

impact to nocturnal wildlife, particularly to bats, and to reduce light pollution, in 

accordance Powys LDP Policies DM2 and DM7.  

Any external lighting proposed will need to demonstrate compliance with the 

Tudalen 29



 

 

recommendations outlined in the BCT and ILP Guidance Note 8 Bats and Artificial 

Lighting (12th September 2018). Full details can be found at 

https://theilp.org.uk/publication/guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificial-lighting/. An external 

lighting design scheme should identify clearly the style of chosen luminaries (e.g. cowled, 

downlighters), their locations across the site (including height above ground level), the 

amount of light spillage measured in lux, types of bulb, and their colour 

spectrum/temperature. Controls such as PIR sensors, etc. should also be clearly 

indicated. 

It is, therefore, recommended that submission of an External Lighting Design Scheme is 

secured through an appropriately worded planning condition. 

Therefore, should you be minded to approve the application I recommend inclusion of the 

following conditions: 

The development shall be undertaken in strict accordance with the following  

i) Recommendations for bats (mitigation and enhancements) in Bat Nocturnal Surveys, by 

Ascerta, Ref: P.1268.19, Rev. A, dated November 2020 

ii) Recommendations for nesting birds and hedgehog (mitigation and enhancements) 

identified in section 7 of Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, by Ascerta, Ref: P.1268.19 

Rev. C, dated November 2020  

iii) Tree Removal Plan and Tree Protection Plan in Appendix 2 of the Arboricultural 

Impact Assessment, by Ascerta, Ref: P.1268.19, dated March 2020. 

iv) Planting Plan, Drawing no. P.1268.19.05 

v) Pollution Prevention Plan, by Ascerta, Ref: P.1268.19, dated November 2020 

The measures identified shall be adhered to and implemented in full and maintained 

thereafter. 

Reason: To comply with Powys County Council's LDP Policies DM2 in relation to The 

Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 

December 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part1 Section 6 of the 

Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

Prior to commencement of development, including demolition and ground clearance, an 

Arboricultural Method Statement shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and 

approved in writing. The Statement shall be prepared in accordance with the 

Arboricultural Impact Assessment, by Ascerta, Ref: P.1268.19, dated March 2020. The 

approved measures shall be adhered to and implemented in full.  

Tudalen 30



 

 

Reason: To comply with Powys County Council's LDP Policies DM2 in relation to The 

Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 

December 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part1 Section 6 of the 

Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

Prior to commencement of development, an External Lighting Design Scheme to avoid 

and reduce potential impacts on nocturnal wildlife shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Scheme shall be complaint with BCT and ILP 

Guidance Note 8 Bats and Artificial Lighting (12th September 2018). Full details can be 

found at https://theilp.org.uk/publication/guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificial-lighting/.The 

approved scheme shall be adhered to and be implemented in full. 

Reason: To comply with Powys County Council's LDP Policies DM2 in relation to The 

Natural Environment and DM7 in relation to Dark Skies and External Lighting, and to 

meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, December 2018), TAN 5: 

Nature Conservation and Planning and Part1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 

2016. 

Prior to commencement of development, including demolition and ground clearance, a 

Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall include as a minimum the 

following details: 

i) Details of construction management 

ii) Identified roles and responsibilities 

iii) Pollution prevention measures 

iv) Biosecurity risk assessment and method statement 

v) Tree removal and protection measures, and arboricultural method statement 

vi) Protected and priority species mitigation for bats, nesting birds and hedgehog 

The approved measures shall be adhered to and implemented in full. 

Reason: To comply with Powys County Council's LDP Policies DM2 in relation to The 

Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 

December 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part1 Section 6 of the 

Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

In addition, I consider it would be appropriate to include the following informatives: 

Bats - Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of Habitats 

Tudalen 31



 

 

and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended).  

It is an offence for any person to:  

 

o Intentionally kill, injure or take any bats.  

o Intentionally or recklessly damage, destroy or obstruct access to any place that a bat 

uses for shelter or protection. This is taken to mean all bat roosts whether bats are 

present or not.  

Under the Habitats Regulations it is an offence to:  

o Damage or destroy a breeding site or resting place of any bat. This is an absolute 

offence - in other words, intent or recklessness does not have to be proved. 

The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of Habitats and Species 

Regulations 2017 (as amended) that works to trees or buildings where that work involves 

the disturbance of a bat is an offence if a licence has not been obtained from Natural 

Resources Wales. If a bat is discovered while work is being undertaken, all work must 

stop and advice sought from Natural Resources Wales and the Council's Ecologist. You 

can also call the National Bat helpline on 0345 1300 228 or email enquiries@bats.org.uk. 

Birds - Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 

All nesting birds, their nests, eggs, and young are protected by law and it is an offence to: 

o intentionally kill, injure or take any wild bird 

o intentionally take, damage or destroy the next of any wild bird whilst it is in use or 

being built  

o intentionally take or destroy the egg of any wild bird 

o intentionally (or recklessly in England and Wales) disturb any wild bird listed on 

Schedule 1 while it is nest building, or at a nest containing eggs or young, or disturb the 

dependent young on such a bird. 

The maximum penalty that can be imposed - in respect of a single bird, nest or egg - is a 

fine of up to 5,000 pounds, six months imprisonment or both. 

The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to remove or work on any hedge, tree or building 

where that work involves the taking, damaging or destruction of any nest of any wild bird 

Tudalen 32



 

 

while the nest is in use or being built (usually between late February and late August or 

late September in the case of swifts, swallows or house martins). If a nest is discovered 

while work is being undertaken, all work must stop, and advice sought from Natural 

Resources Wales and the Council's Ecologist. 

  

 

Hafren Dyfrdwy 7th Sep 2020 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this planning application. Please find our 

response noted below: 

With Reference to the above planning application the company's observations regarding 

sewerage are as follows. 

I can confirm that we have no objections to the proposals subject to the inclusion of the 

following condition: 

o The development hereby permitted should not commence until drainage plans for 

the disposal of foul and surface water flows have been submitted to and approved by the 

Local Planning Authority, and 

o The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before 

the development is first brought into use. This is to ensure that the development is 

provided with a satisfactory means of drainage as well as to reduce or exacerbate a 

flooding problem and to minimise the risk of pollution 

Hafren Dyfrdwy advise that there is a public sewer located within this site. Public sewers 

have statutory protection and may not be built close to, directly over or be diverted 

without consent. You are advised to contact Hafren Dyfrdwy to discuss the proposals. 

Hafren Dyfrdwy will seek to assist in obtaining a solution which protects both the public 

sewer and the building. Please note, when submitting a Building Regulations application, 

the building control officer is required to check the sewer maps supplied by Severn Trent 

and advise them of any proposals located over or within 3 meters of a public sewer.  

The developer's attention is also drawn to the legal requirement for all sites to enter into a 

Section 104 sewer adoption agreement with Hafren Dyfrdwy before any sewer connection 

can be approved, in line with the implementation Schedule 3 of the Floods and Water 

Management Act 2010. Full details of this are provided on our website 

www.hdcymru.co.uk under the 'New Site Developments' section. 

To help us provide an efficient response please could you send all responses to 

Tudalen 33



 

 

APPlanning@hdcymru.co.uk rather than to named individuals, including the HD ref within 

the email/subject. 

If you would like a copy of this in Welsh, please let us know. 

 

 

Environmental Protection 17th Sep 2020 

I object to the application at the current time due to insufficient information being provided 

at the current time. I require the following information 

1. The proposed building to the rear of the site adjacent to Tesco overlooks the 

delivery yard and machinery (air extraction etc) servicing the shop. This yard and plant is 

noisy and operates on a 24 hour basis. The acoustic barrier currently in place was 

erected by Tesco to prevent noise affecting Chalfont as it was used for residential 

purposes.  

The proposed new building will overlook the service yard and plant area negating the 

benefit of the acoustic barrier and I am of the opinion that this will disturb residents in the 

proposed building especially those overlooking the site. I will require a BS 4142 noise 

assessment, the assessment must take into account that the proposed flats will overlook 

the Tesco site.  

2. Plan identifying any air intake or extraction ventilation and the technical 

specification system on the site. If there are any I will require a noise assessment of this 

proposed plant. 

3. Is there "commercial" communal kitchen/dining area? If so I will, need the 

proposed detail of the odour control to be used in the preparation area. 

4. Where is the waste storage area for the site? I require a plan identifying the 

location of the storage area and management process of managing this area of the site. 

On similar developments we have had issues of noise from early morning waste 

collections, odour affecting nearby residents and poor cleanliness resulting in vermin 

infestations which spread and affect neighbouring properties. 

5. The Tesco smoking area for staff is close to the boundary of the site. Previously 

when the old "Canteen" was used for office purposes the Environmental Health 

department received a number of complaints of tobacco smoke entering offices affecting 

employees. As this area is no longer is used by PCC staff this isn't an issue however I am 

concerned that this issue will start again especially when residents are living adjacent to 

Tudalen 34



 

 

the site. There were also noise complaints due to Tesco staff talking etc and due to the 

number of staff employed this continued throughout the day. This would be an issue for 

residents especially when background noises were lower. 

 

Environmental Health 4th Dec 2020 

Following receipt the noise assessment for the development I have no objection to the 

application provided that the recommended steps are followed. 

 

Cadw - SAM 8th Sep 2020 

Thank you for your consultation, I can confirm we have no comments to make. 

 

CPAT 27th Aug 2020 

Thank you for the additional consultation on this application and the associated LBC 

application.  

In this case the Built Heritage Conservation Officer will be the primary consultee, but we 

offer the following comments in addition.  

 

1. Chalfont 

It is good to see that Chalfont is now preserved from total demolition. We would have no 

objection to the demolition of the later extension. A level 1 photographic survey of the 

building in its current form would be required as a condition of consent.  

2. Northern Boundary Wall 

With regard to the brick and stone northern boundary wall behind Neuadd Maldwyn it is 

not clear what level of preservation if offered. In one profile view it appears to be 

drastically lowered and replaced by railings . The present wall forms the boundary of the 

Conservation Area and is a distinctive feature of the retail park boundary when viewed 

from the north. There should be a concerted attempt to preserve this wall in as close to its 

original form as possible with like-for-like repairs and retention of the coping stones.  

3. Neuadd Maldwyn Buildings 

Tudalen 35



 

 

The proposed conversion is generally sympathetic with retention of much of the key 

layout and fabric. Where there is some loss at the rear with alterations to the Council 

Chamber and demolition of the Members Committee Room these elements of the layout 

should be recorded in detail photographically as a condition of consent.  

We would therefore have no objection to the proposals. Further consideration should be 

given to the retention of the northern boundary wall. The photographic survey condition is 

supplied below along with guildance on what is required and information on sources of 

archaeological contractors to complete the photographic survey.  

Suggested planning condition to facilitate a photographic survey prior to development: 

Development shall not begin until an appropriate photographic survey, (equivalent to an 

Historic England Level 1 Photographic Survey - Understanding Historic Buildings, May 

2016) of the existing buildings has been carried out in accordance with details to be 

submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority. The Level 1 photographic 

survey will be completed by an archaeological contractor. The resulting digital 

photographs should be forwarded on appropriate digital media to the Local Planning 

Authority and the Development Control Archaeologist (Clwyd-Powys Archaeological 

Trust, Coed y Dinas, Welshpool, SY21 8RP. Email: mark.walters@cpat.org.uk Tel: 01938 

553670/552045). After approval by the Local Planning Authority, a copy of the 

photographs should also be sent to the Historic Environment Record Officer, Clwyd-

Powys Archaeological Trust, Coed y Dinas, Welshpool, SY21 8RP for inclusion in the 

regional Historic Environment Record and an appropriate archive location.  

Reason: To secure a full photographic record of the original buildings prior to alteration, 

conversion or demolition.  

 

PCC-(N) Highways 2nd Dec 2020 

In response to your consultation on the above the County Council as Highway Authority 

[HA] for the County Class II classified highway B4381 Severn Road Welshpool have 

reviewed the application and offer the following comments: 

The site fronts Severn Road in Welshpool which provides carriageway width c7.5m and 

footways of c2.4m (development side) and 2m. Across the frontage of the site is a 

pedestrian zebra crossing.  

Severn Road provides a link between the A483 Trunk Road and the town centre offering 

connections with the town, railway station and key industrial areas on the east of 

Welshpool. 

Tudalen 36



 

 

The Transport Statement (TS) has analysed trip generation rates for the site using 

industry recognised TRICS data and concludes that there will be a reduction in traffic 

levels (para 3.5.2). This is based on data for sites considered to be representative of the 

current and proposed use. The HA comparison of this data and the general TRICS data is 

included at Annex A.  

The comparator data for existing use shows significantly higher trips than the overall data. 

This is not unusual in that the comparator data focusses on a much smaller sample of 

similar and more comparable sites. For the proposed use the reverse applies in that 

comparator data provides a lower number of trips than if the overall residential TRICS 

data is used. Given the nature of the development the TRICS standard trip rate is likely to 

be overstated. Based on the comparison at Annex A it would seem reasonable that there 

will be no increase in trips and that there will likely be a beneficial reduction. 

Access from Severn Road is currently provided by 3 sperate access points and there are 

no proposals to amend these. The width of these is 5.0m, 4.1m and 3.5m (W to E).  None 

of these would be considered sufficiently wide to accommodate unrestricted 2-way 

vehicle flows. The decision to retain in/out flows as per the existing site layout is therefore 

welcomed. 

Severn Road is within a 30mph speed limit. No speed data has been included with the TS 

but perceived speeds are considered to be below this. The presence of the pedestrian 

crossing, junctions and other urban features are likely contributors to lower speeds. 

Visibility at all 3 points of access is below current standards offering at best 17 metres 

compared with a recommended 31 metres at 25mph under Manual for Streets. The 

boundary railings are of a type that do no not aide visibility greatly and there are a 

number of other impediments to visibility. No accident review has been included with the 

TS to consider if there is a safety issue. Given existing use of the site and the likely 

reduction in vehicle usage the HA does not consider it appropriate to recommend 

conditions relating to visibility. We recommend however that the applicant consider 

incorporating improvements. 

The HA notes the direction given by Welsh Government in respect of the emergency 

access near Chalfont. No comment is offered in this respect as we believe the area to 

front the Trunk Road which is the responsibility of Welsh Government. Should Welsh 

Government opinion change we can provide further comment on request. 

The application proposes a significant reduction in parking from current site provision. 

The TS includes an assessment for the proposed development (paras 3.1.2 and 3.4) 

under the CSSW Parking Standard adopted by the HA. There appears to be a minor 

discrepancy between parking numbers in the TS and those shown on the drawing 

submitted with the application (1573 CAW LMA 00 XX DR A 1200 P8). The HA has used 

Tudalen 37



 

 

this drawing in its assessment as it believes this is the latest proposed layout. 

The HA considers that the development should be assessed under the CSSW Parking 

Standard as Special Purpose Housing - Self­ contained elderly persons dwellings 

(wardened) as staff will be in attendance at all times. This appears consistent with the TS 

statement at para 3.4. After application of the Sustainability Criteria and resulting 

allowance for a reduction in provision, the parking requirement based on the standard is 

27. This compares with 26 shown on the drawing although the TS indicates 27 being 

provided. This is the case if the service vehicle parking is included. The Standard 

indicates a requirement for 3 motorcycle spaces (none identified in the application) and 8 

cycle spaces (6 identified in the application). A breakdown of the HA assessment is 

provided at Annex B. 

Whilst there are minor discrepancies in the parking provisions the site appears capable of 

accommodating the requirements within the Standard. 

It is recommended that consideration be given to application of the following conditions to 

any consent: 

1. Prior to the occupation of any dwelling, provision shall be made within the curtilage 

of the site for the parking of vehicles in accordance with the requirements of CSS Wales 

Parking Standards being not less than 27 vehicle parking spaces, 1 service vehicle 

parking, 3 motorcycle spaces and 8 cycle stands together with turning space such that all 

vehicles serving the site may both enter and leave the site in a forward gear. The parking 

and turning areas shall be retained for their designated use for as long as the 

development hereby permitted remains in existence. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of LDP 

policies DM13 and T1. 9. 

2. The gradient of any vehicle access/egress shall be constructed so as not to 

exceed 1 in 15 for the first 15 metres measured from edge of the adjoining carriageway 

along the centre line of the access/egress and shall be retained at this gradient for as 

long as the development remains in existence. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of LDP 

policies DM13 and T1. 

3. Prior to the occupation of any dwelling the area of the access to be used by 

vehicles is to be finished in a suitably bound material for a distance of 5.5 metres from the 

edge of the adjoining carriageway. This area will be maintained to this standard for as 

long as the development remains in existence. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of 

Tudalen 38



 

 

Powys LDP Policy DM13 and T1. 10. 

4. No surface water drainage from the site shall be allowed to discharge onto the 

county highway.  

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of LDP 

policies DM13 and T1. 

 

PCC Highways                                                                                           12 January 2020 

In response to your re-consultation on the above the County Council as Highway 

Authority [HA] for the County Class II classified highway B4381 Severn Road Welshpool 

have reviewed the additional information with the application and offer the following 

comments: 

The site fronts Severn Road in Welshpool which provides carriageway width c7.5m and 

footways of c2.4m (development side) and 2m. Across the frontage of the site is a 

pedestrian zebra crossing.  

Severn Road provides a link between the A483 Trunk Road and the town centre offering 

connections with the town, railway station and key industrial areas on the east of 

Welshpool. 

The Transport Statement (TS) has analysed trip generation rates for the site using 

industry recognised TRICS data and concludes that there will be a reduction in traffic 

levels (para 3.5.2). This is based on data for sites considered to be representative of the 

current and proposed use. The HA comparison of this data and the general TRICS data is 

included at Annex A.  

The comparator data for existing use shows significantly higher trips than the overall data. 

This is not unusual in that the comparator data focusses on a much smaller sample of 

similar and more comparable sites. For the proposed use the reverse applies in that 

comparator data provides a lower number of trips than if the overall residential TRICS 

data is used. Given the nature of the development the TRICS standard trip rate is likely to 

be overstated. Based on the comparison at Annex A it would seem reasonable that there 

will be no increase in trips and that there will likely be a beneficial reduction. 

Access from Severn Road is currently provided by 3 sperate access points. The width of 

these is 5.0m, 4.1m and 3.5m (W to E).  None of these would be considered sufficiently 

wide to accommodate unrestricted 2-way vehicle flows. The latest proposal seeks to 

close the eastern access point. This is not considered detrimental to the operation of the 

Tudalen 39



 

 

site. 

Severn Road is within a 30mph speed limit. No speed data has been included with the TS 

but perceived speeds are considered to be below this. The presence of the pedestrian 

crossing, junctions and other urban features are likely contributors to lower speeds. 

Visibility at all 3 points of access is below current standards offering at best 17 metres 

compared with a recommended 31 metres at 25mph under Manual for Streets. The 

boundary railings are of a type that do no not aide visibility greatly and there are a 

number of other impediments to visibility. No accident review has been included with the 

TS to consider if there is a safety issue. Given existing use of the site and the likely 

reduction in vehicle usage the HA does not consider it appropriate to recommend 

conditions relating to visibility. We recommend however that the applicant consider 

incorporating improvements. 

The HA notes the directions previously given by Welsh Government in respect of the 

emergency access near Chalfont. No comment is offered in this respect as we believe the 

area to front the Trunk Road which is the responsibility of Welsh Government. Should 

Welsh Government opinion change we can provide further comment on request. 

The application proposes a significant reduction in parking from current site provision. 

The TS includes an assessment for the proposed development (paras 3.1.2 and 3.4) 

under the CSSW Parking Standard adopted by the HA. 

The HA considers that the development should be assessed under the CSSW Parking 

Standard as Special Purpose Housing - Self­ contained elderly persons dwellings 

(wardened) as staff will be in attendance at all times. This appears consistent with the TS 

statement at para 3.4. The HA previously considered that the Sustainability Criteria could 

be applied but has subsequently determined that it should not be used in this situation.  

The applicant has further clarified the number of staff on site at any one time compared 

with numbers employed. This clarification results in a lower number of parking spaces 

being required. The HA assessment of parking requirement based on the CSSW parking 

standard is included at Annex B. A Care Team of 3 or 4 has been identified in the 

submission. If the site were considered within a Zone 1 setting it is considered that these 

would need to be added into the staff assessment. As the site is considered to be in the 

Zones 2 to 6 category it is considered appropriate to include these within the visitor 

parking allocation. 

The assessment at Annex B indicates a desired parking provision of 38 parking spaces 

with additional spaces for 2 motorcycles and 8 cycles. The latest proposal (drawing No. 

1573 CAWLMA 00 XX DR A 1800 Rev. P3) provides for 27 vehicle, 3 motorcycle and 10 

cycle spaces. 

Tudalen 40



 

 

The site is located close to the Town centre with 2 public car parks with 600m (Berriew 

Street) and 625m (Mill Lane) of the development. Severn Road is on a bus route and the 

railway station is within 380m of the site. The current use of the site as office 

accommodation with meeting facilities has been known to exceed parking capacity on 

busy days when larger meetings take place. On these occasions overflow parking has 

been accommodated within the public car parks which have adequate space. Parking in 

the streets around the site is well controlled with parking restrictions limiting on-street 

parking opportunities thus avoiding the potential for overflow parking to cause issues for 

residents and businesses in the area. The proposed layout continues to provide good 

circulatory flow within the site thus facilitating the easy drop-off/pick-up of passengers. 

The area to the front and side of the building that is being retained as parking and 

circulatory areas currently provides for around 45 vehicle spaces which could be retained. 

The proposed reduction in the number of spaces allows for improved ease of access to 

spaces and removes some from close proximity to the building and in areas of circulatory 

flow.  

The proposed 27 spaces satisfies the requirement for 21 residents and staff parking but 

only makes allowance for 6 visitor parking spaces, a shortfall of 11 spaces against the 

desirable number. This is not considered unrealistic given the close proximity to public 

parking facilities, drop-off/pick-up facilities and informal parking opportunities available 

within the retained open area. If the Planning Authority considered that the full 38 spaces 

should be provided it is considered that there is scope to within the site to achieve this 

and it may be appropriate to condition this provision if approval is given. 

It is recommended that consideration be given to application of the following conditions to 

any consent: 

1. Prior to the occupation of any dwelling, provision shall be made within the curtilage 

of the site for the parking of vehicles in accordance with the requirements of CSS 

Wales Parking Standards being not less than 38 vehicle parking spaces, 2 

motorcycle spaces and 8 cycle stands together with turning space such that all 

vehicles serving the site may both enter and leave the site in a forward gear. The 

parking and turning areas shall be retained for their designated use for as long as 

the development hereby permitted remains in existence. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of LDP 

policies DM13 and T1. 9. 

2. The gradient of any vehicle access/egress shall be constructed so as not to 

exceed 1 in 15 for the first 15 metres measured from edge of the adjoining 

carriageway along the centre line of the access/egress and shall be retained at this 

Tudalen 41



 

 

gradient for as long as the development remains in existence. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of LDP 

policies DM13 and T1. 

3. Prior to the occupation of any dwelling the area of the access to be used by 

vehicles is to be finished in a suitably bound material for a distance of 5.5 metres 

from the edge of the adjoining carriageway. This area will be maintained to this 

standard for as long as the development remains in existence. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of 

Powys LDP Policy DM13 and T1. 10. 

4. No surface water drainage from the site shall be allowed to discharge onto the 

county highway.  

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the provisions of LDP 

policies DM13 and T1. 

 

Cadw                                                                                                     8 September 2020 

Thank you for your consultation, I can confirm we have no comments to make. 
 
Representations 
 
Public representations from six persons have been received at the time of writing this 
report. The letters can be summarised as follows: 
 

- No need locally for the development 
- Concern on impact to Grade II listed building adjoining site 
- Too Community Estate in appearance- an eyesore 
- Too dense of development 
- Non-sympathetic design 
- Loss of privacy to neighbouring properties 
- Increase in traffic 
- Scale of development not in keeping 
- Materials out of keeping with Neuadd Maldwyn 
- Boundary treatment unacceptable 
- Impact of Refuse and Recycling Store 
- Insufficient Ecological Appraisals 
- Balconies not in keeping 
- Insufficient parking and highway safety 
- Impact of Solar PV Panels 
- Strain on Local Resources (Social Services, Hospital etc) 

Tudalen 42



 

 

- Discriminative development (elderly only) 
- C3 development should provide new Open Space 

 
In addition the Powys Ramblers have commented: 
 
The nearby right of way would not appear to be adversely affected by the proposed 
development. In the event of permission being granted can the applicant please be 
informed about the importance of making sure that the footpath is not obstructed during 
any development works and is kept open throughout.  
 
Planning History 
 

App Ref Description Decision Date 
 
20/0660/CAC Redevelopment of former office 

building and site to provide an extra 
care facility, which will include 66 no. 
self-contained 1 & 2 bedroom 
apartments with supporting facilities. 
Alterations to Chalfont, and the 
demolition of the single storey 
outbuildings. 

Application 
Withdrawn 

27th Oct 2020 

 
20/0661/LBC Redevelopment of former office 

building and site to provide an extra 
care facility, which will include 66 no. 
self-contained 1 & 2 bedroom 
apartments with supporting facilities. 
Alterations to Chalfont, and the 
demolition of the single storey 
outbuildings. 

Pending 
Consideration 

 

 

 
 
Principal Planning Constraints 
 
  

  
  
 

 
Principal Planning Policies 
 

Policy Policy Description Year Local Plan 
 
TAN24 The Historic Environment  National Policy 
 
DM2 The Natural Environment  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 

Conservation Area  
Listed Building  
Scheduled Ancient Monument   

Tudalen 43



 

 

 
DM3 Public Open Space  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM4 Landscape  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM5 Development and Flood 

Risk 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM6 Flood Prevention 

Measures and Land 
Drainage 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
DM7 Dark Skies and External 

Lighting 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM13 Design and Resources  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM14 Air Quality Management  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H1 Housing Development 

Proposals 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H3 Housing Delivery  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H5 Affordable Housing 

Contributions 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP1 Housing Growth  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP3 Affordable Housing Target  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP5 Settlement Hierarchy  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP6 Distribution of Growth 

across the Settlement 
Hierarchy 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
SP7 Safeguarding of Strategic  Local Development 

Tudalen 44



 

 

Resources and Assets Plan 2011-2026 
 
T1 Travel, Traffic and 

Transport Infrastructure 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGBIO Biodiversity and 

Geodiversity SPG (2018) 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGCON Conservation Areas  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGRE Renewable Energy SPG  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGRES Residential Design Guide  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
PPW Planning Policy Wales 

(Edition 10, December 
2018) 

 National Policy 

 
TAN5 Nature Conservation and 

Planning 
 National Policy 

 
TAN8 Renewable Energy  National Policy 
 
TAN11 Noise  National Policy 
 
TAN12 Design  National Policy 
 
TAN15 Development and Flood 

Risk 
 National Policy 

 
TAN16 Sport, Recreation and 

Open Space 
 National Policy 

 
TAN18 Transport  National Policy 
 
TAN23 Economic Development  National Policy 
 
 
Other Legislative Considerations 
 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
 
Equality Act 2010  

Tudalen 45



 

 

 
Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)  
 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
 
Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 
 
Site Location and Description 
 
Neuadd Maldwyn is the former Offices for Powys County Council located within the 
settlement boundaries for Welshpool. The application building itself is Grade II listed 
with a number of Grade II listed buildings also surrounding the site. The application site 
in its entirety falls within the Conservation Area for Welshpool. 
 
To the north of the application site is the former market site for Welshpool which now 
hosts a number of retail and commercial units. To the east is the A483 Trunk Road 
roundabout, whilst to the south runs the County Highway known as Severn Road. To 
the west there are then a number of residential and commercial properties known as 1-4 
Clive House which are Grade II listed. 
 
Consent is sought for the change of use of the former Neuadd Maldwyn Office building 
to an Extra-Care Facility which proposes an extension to accommodate the residential 
units. This includes the use to Chalfont as an ancillary building to the Extra Care Facility 
and removal of a single storey extension to Chalfont (an existing building within the 
curtilage of Neuadd Maldwyn). 
 
A listed building consent application (20/0661/LBC) also accompanies this full 
application which has been referred to the Welsh Ministers for determination in light of 
the ownership of the building by Powys County Council. 
 
Officer Appraisal 
 
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004  
  
Members are advised to consider this application in accordance with Section 38 (6) of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which requires that, if regard is to be 
had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under the 
Planning Acts, the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise.  
 
Use Class 
 
Consent is sought for the erection of a 66 residential unit Extra Care Facility within 
Welshpool utilising the former Neuadd Maldwyn Council Office building.  
 
Under the Use Classes Order 1987 (as amended) Class C2 (Residential institutions) is 

Tudalen 46



 

 

defined as: 
 

- Use for the provision of residential accommodation and care to people in need of 
care (other than a use within class C3 (dwelling houses)) 

- Use as a hospital or nursing home 
- Use as a residential school, college or training centre. 

 
“Care" is defined in Article 2 of the Use Classes Order 1987 as:-  
 
“care” means personal care for people in need of such care by reason of old age, 
disablement, past or present dependence on alcohol or drugs or past or present mental 
disorder, and in class C2 also includes the personal care of children and medical care 
and treatment 
 
Clwyd Alyn Housing Association have identified the need in Welshpool for the 
development of an independent living ‘extra care’ development. The scheme will include 
66 apartments including a mixture of 1 and 2 bed units, receptionist area, communal 
restaurant, laundry, social spaces and other supporting facilities including Care Team 
Offices. 
 
Units will be rented on an individual basis with an element of Care being provided by 
reason of their age and or disablement.  
 
Given the element of care being provided within the building it is considered that the unit 
as whole falls within a C2 Use Class. This will form part of the wider considerations of 
the application as will be addressed below. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 10 (December 2018) sets out the land use 
planning policies of the Welsh Government. It is supplemented by a series of Technical 
Advice Notes (TANs), Welsh Government Circulars, and policy clarification letters, 
which together with PPW provide the national planning policy framework for Wales.   
 
The primary objective of PPW is to ensure that the planning system contributes towards 
the delivery of sustainable development and improves the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, as required by the Planning (Wales) Act 
2015, the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and other key legislation.  
 
 “Sustainable development” means the process of improving the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by taking action, in accordance with the 
sustainable development principle, aimed at achieving the well-being goals.  Acting in 
accordance with the sustainable development principle means that a body must act in a 
manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.  
 

Tudalen 47



 

 

Policy H3 of the Local Development Plan (2018) (LDP) seeks to achieve an appropriate 
range and mix of housing types to meet local needs, in particular the needs of the 
County’s ageing population and decreasing household size including specialist housing 
needs such as supported accommodation, sheltered housing, care homes, low rise 
accessible development or bungalows and extra care developments. 
 
It is projected that by 2026 31.3% of Powys’ population will be aged over 65.  
 
The LDP therefore recognises the needs of the oldest in the population and the 
importance of access to services, public transport, and accommodation requirements 
which must be taken into account. This need has also been identified by Powys County 
Council Social Services Team and is identified within Powys County Council’s 
Corporate Improvement Plan 2025. 
 
In light of the above and the recognised need for facilities for older people it is therefore 
considered that this extra care facility fundamentally complies with relevant planning 
policy. 
 
The LDP strategic policies also seek to ensure that developments are appropriately 
located and suitable in scale and type. Ensuring developments are appropriately located 
so that the older population have access to all types of services and public transport 
which are vital to ensure that they can continue to live independently for longer. 
 
Welshpool is identified as a Town under the LDP. Towns are the principal location for 
accommodating housing being home to 41% of Powys’ population. Towns act as an 
important service centre providing a range of services, facilities and employment for 
their own population and their surrounding areas.  
 
The application site is located within the settlement development limit for Welshpool and 
therefore for the purposes of Policy H1 is considered to provide an extra care facility 
within an appropriate sustainable location fundamentally complying in principle with 
relevant planning policy. 
 
Design and External Appearance  
  
With respect to design and appearance, reference is made to LDP Policy DM13. This 
policy indicates that development proposals must be able to demonstrate a good quality 
design and shall have regard to the qualities and amenity of the surrounding area, local 
infrastructure and resources.   
  
The application proposes a three-storey extension with a link to the existing building. 
The proposed extension is designed in two blocks with a central linking section. Each 
section is three storey in height and will measure approximately 12 metres to ensure lift 
access to all floors. The length of the eastern extension measures approximately 38.5 
metres whilst the section to the western elevation of the building measures 
approximately 45.9 metres, both of which measure approximately 18.7 metres in width. 

Tudalen 48



 

 

The extension in total with the addition of the link to the existing building measures 
approximately 90 metres. The extension will be finished with facing brickwork with 
powder coated aluminium guttering and downpipe with dark grey window and doors. 
The roof and extension linking sections will be profiled in metal cladded sheeting. 
 
Careful consideration must be given to the overall scale of the extension to be located 
to the rear of Neuadd Maldwyn. The site is located within the Conservation Area for 
Welshpool and is located within the grounds of a Grade II listed building and therefore 
sensitivity to the design is crucial to ensure a well thought out development for not only 
as an extension to the listed building but also any impact upon the surrounding area. 
 
Neuadd Maldwyn itself is a brick-built building in a Neo-Georgian style. The original 
building was only a small office block until it was extended significantly firstly in the late 
1930s, and then again in 1959. The building has a strong vertical and horizontal 
emphasis across its frontage through the range of symmetrical pane sashed windows 
and doorway features. 
  
Following discussions, amendments were made to the overall scheme to ensure that 
the vertical and horizontal emphasis of the existing building is carried through to the 
extension. Whilst the design is contemporary it is considered that this provides a 
positive contrast between the listed building and the new development whilst also 
retaining some of the existing character of the original building to ensure that the 
development sits in cohesion together, not imitating, but showing a natural extension to 
the building through the years. 
  
Whilst it is acknowledged that the extension is large in scale, its positioning set behind 
the existing building results in approximately only 30 metres of the extension to the side 
of the building being visible from Severn Road. From then the North of the site whilst the 
full length of extension would be visible this would be complemented with the modern 
re-development of the former Market which now hosts a Tesco and various retail unit 
buildings along with other contemporary designed buildings and thus would not appear 
to be out of character or appearance with that retail development area.  
 
The height of the proposed extension would sit higher than the existing building which 
did raise some initial concern over any potential dominance this may have over the 
listed building and to the surrounding area. Visualisations were produced in support of 
the application alongside further detailing on the type of solar PV panels to be used. 
The viewpoints were chosen from Severn Road and within and surrounding the 
application site. What the visualisations indicate is that given the positioning of the 
extension to the rear of the building and noting how stepped back it is from those initial 
reception areas to the building into the site then the proposed extensions would not be 
seen as dominating the existing building in terms of scale. Alongside therefore the 
choice in materials for the roof being dark in colour with solar PV Panels which sit flush 
with the proposed roof plane it is considered that whilst higher than the existing building 
it would not cause a significant enough of an impact to justify an overall objection to the 
scheme.  

Tudalen 49



 

 

 
Concerns were raised regarding the balconies proposed throughout the development as 
this is not a feature known within the Conservation Area for Welshpool. The importance 
of balconies was raised especially in respect to the current pandemic in which private 
outdoor space can be argued as more important than ever before. The balconies were 
amended in scale on some elevations and materials altered to glass to ensure that the 
visual impact from them is minimised. On balance therefore it is not considered that this 
design feature could justify a reason of refusal alone and subject to the materials as 
proposed could be designed to an acceptable level. 
  
In light of the above it is considered that the proposed development fundamentally 
complies with relevant planning policy and a condition will be recommended to ensure 
that materials are agreed prior to their first use. 
  
Built Heritage  
  
Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation areas) Act 1990, requires 
Local Planning Authorities considering applications for planning permission for works 
which affect a listed building to have special regard to certain matters, including the 
desirability of preserving the setting of the building. The setting is often an essential part 
of a building's character especially if a park, garden or grounds have been laid out to 
complement its design or function. Also, the economic viability as well as the character 
of historic buildings may suffer and they can be robbed of much of their interest and of 
the contribution they make to townscape or the countryside if they become isolated from 
their surroundings, e.g. by new traffic routes, car parks, or other development.  
 
The application site itself is Grade II listed with a number of other listed buildings being 
located to the west of the application site. The site falls within the Conservation Area for 
Welshpool 
 
It is considered that, whilst the design of the proposed extension is contemporary, that it 
does not detract from the special qualities of Neuadd Maldwyn, a Grade II listed 
building. Additionally, Chalfont, a curtilage listed building within the grounds proposes 
the removal of single storey addition to the building. It is not considered that the removal 
of the extension compromises the material character of that building nor to the setting of 
the Grade II listed building.  
 
Please note that the listed building consent application (20/0661/LBC), is with Welsh 
Government for determination. It is therefore considered that the listed building 
application including works to the curtilage listed building known as Chalfont are subject 
to separate independent review from the Welsh Government.   
 
However, based on the comments above, it is considered that the proposed 
development does not harm the Grade II listed building or its setting. 
  
There are other Grade II listed buildings located within the vicinity of the site, including 

Tudalen 50



 

 

No’s 1-4 Clive Place and their gates, gate piers & boundary walls, but given the location 
of the extension to these buildings (to their rear) with intervening proposed landscaping 
between these and the site, it is not considered that these buildings or their settings are 
harmed.   
 
Consideration has also been given to the Welshpool Conservation Area in which the 
development is located within. The northern boundary of the application forms the edge 
of the Conservation Area so the new retail area directly to the north of the application 
site falls outside of the boundary. Whilst the wall, which currently forms the boundary of 
the site and forms the boundary of the Conservation Area will be reduced in height the 
existing headstones will be reused to replicate the wall as current at a lower level to 
enable a new fence providing a safe permitter is secured for the site inside this walled 
boundary. It is therefore considered that the significance of the wall as the boundary to 
the Conservation Area will be retained, albeit at a lower level.  
 
The key views from within the Conservation Area are from Severn Road. As addressed 
previously given the location of the proposed extension predominately to the rear of the 
existing Neuadd Maldwyn building it is not considered that the development would 
either detract or harm from the special character of the Conservation Area and the 
extension has been designed to preserve the character of the existing building through 
a complementary design. 
 
There are several trees which will be removed as part of the development however 
these as will be addressed further below are of low value. Those which are deemed of 
high value in terms of biodiversity and amenity value are to be retained and will be 
secured using conditions. 
 
On balance, it is therefore considered that the re-use of this current unoccupied listed 
building is the best way to secure its future protection whilst providing a recognised local 
need for the settlement of Welshpool. 
 
Highway Safety 
 
Policy T1 and DM13 of the Powys Local Development Plan 2018 state that 
development proposals should incorporate safe and efficient means of access to and 
from the site for all transport users, manage any impact upon the network and mitigate 
adverse impacts. 
 
Access from Severn Road is currently provided by three separate access points. The 
amended proposal seeks to close the eastern access point; none of the accesses are 
considered sufficiently wide to accommodate unrestricted 2-way vehicle flow and 
therefore a one-way system will be operated as per the current use of the site. Based 
on the evidence provided it would be reasonable to conclude that there will be no 
increase in trips and that there will likely be a beneficial reduction from the current 
existing use. 
 

Tudalen 51



 

 

The proposed development will include 27 parking spaces, 3 motorcycle and 10 cycle 
spaces and a pickup/drop off point within the curtilage of the site. Whilst the building 
itself will include buggy stores on each floor accessible internally via lifts.  
 
Upon receipt of additional information the Highway Authority noted that there would be 6 
staff on the site at any one-time. However, even with the reduced number of staff than 
previously thought there would be a shortage of parking spaces provision by 11 parking 
spaces which is the maximum number per standards. 
 
In instances such as this consideration needs to be given to the location of the 
proposed development. Technical Advice Note 18 confirms this by stating that  
“Maximum parking standards should not be applied so rigidly that they become 
minimum standards. Maximum standards should allow developers the discretion to 
reduce parking levels.” 
 
Regard should be given to:  
 
• public transport accessibility and opportunities or proposals for enhancement;  
• targets and opportunities for walking and cycling;  
• objectives for economic development including tourism;  
• the availability in the general area of safe public  on- and off- street parking provision; 
and  
• potential for neighbouring or mixed-use developments sharing parking spaces, for 
example at different times of the day or week. 
 
TAN 18 goes on to confirm that “Some car free housing development may be 
appropriate in locations with good walking, cycling and public transport links and in 
areas where parking is controlled. On-site cycle and parking provision for those with 
disabilities will be required if such on-street parking cannot be provided” (paragraph 
4.15) 
 
The site is located close to the Town centre with 2 public car parks within close 
proximity to the application site (600 metres Berriew Street and 625 metres Mill Lane). 
Severn Road is on a bus route and the railway station is within 380 metres of the site. 
Given the restricted nature of Severn Road (double-yellowed) it is not considered that 
the development could exacerbate any on-street parking within the surrounding area. 
Additionally, there is walking and cycling opportunities by the way of public footpaths 
and also the Montgomeryshire Canal towpath which is within 166 metres of the 
application site. 
 
The Highway Officer notes that the proposed reduction in the number of spaces allows 
for improved ease of access to spaces and removes some from close proximity to the 
building and in areas of circulatory flow which is supported. 
 
The Highway Authority have therefore considered that the proposed 27 spaces satisfies 
the requirement for 21 residents (required by CSSW Parking Standard as a Special 

Tudalen 52



 

 

Purpose Housing - Self­ contained elderly persons dwellings (wardened) as staff will be 
in attendance at all times) and staff parking but only makes allowance for 6 visitor 
parking spaces, a shortfall of 11 spaces against the desirable number.  
 
This is however not considered unrealistic as confirmed by the Highway Officer given 
the close proximity to public parking facilities, drop-off/pick-up facilities and informal 
parking opportunities available within the retained open area. 
 
The Highway Authority whilst therefore offering no objection to the scheme as proposed 
do go on to state that “If the Planning Authority considered that the full 38 spaces 
should be provided it is considered that there is scope to within the site to achieve this 
and it may be appropriate to condition this provision if approval is given.” 
It is noted that the areas in question are currently proposed as amenity land and an 
area secured for an infiltration system which would therefore be unsuitable for any 
additional parking provision.  
 
On balance, given the proximity of the development to the Town Centre of Welshpool 
which boasts numerous public transport options and footpath/ cycle opportunities and 
the guidance of TAN18 which supports relaxation of parking standards in such places it 
is considered that in this instance the development as currently proposed is considered 
to be acceptable. However, this decision is very much on balance and Members may 
wish to consider the balance between parking provision and amenity land for the 
proposed development and alternative conditions attached. 
 
In addition to the County Highways, consideration has been given in respect to an 
emergency access off the A483 Trunk Road roundabout. The Welsh Government 
(responsible for all Trunk Roads) upon receipt of additional information has confirmed 
that they have no objection to the amended scheme as received and has recommended 
a condition to ensure that no drainage is allowed to discharge into the trunk road 
drainage scheme.  
 
Subject to appropriately worded conditions it is therefore considered on balance that the 
proposed development can be managed to an acceptable level.  
 
Biodiversity 
 
With respect to biodiversity, specific reference is made to LDP policy DM2; as such the 
PCC Ecologist and Natural Resources Wales were consulted with regard to this 
application. 
 
The Ecologist and Natural Resources Wales reviewed the proposed plans as well as 
local records of protected and priority species and designated sites.   
  
SSSI and SAC  
  
Two statutory designated sites are located within 500 metres of the proposed 

Tudalen 53



 

 

development;  
  

 Montgomery Canal SSSI (approx. 90 metres from the site)  
 Montgomery Canal SAC (approx. 90 metres from the site)  

 
Given the proximity of the proposed development to the Montgomery Canal SAC, the 
potential for the proposed development to impact the Montgomery Canal SAC during 
the construction and operation phases of the development and the potential for a Likely 
Significant Effect on the Montgomery Canal SAC and/or its associated features has 
been considered.   
  
Following consultation with the Powys Ecologist they advise that having reviewed the 
information provided by the applicant and reviewing OS map and aerial images of the 
area, it has been determined that the proposed development would not result in a likely 
significant effect to the Montgomery Canal SAC and/or its associated features. A HRA 
Assessment has been completed as part of assessment. 
  
No objection has been raised by Powys Ecology or NRW, as such it is considered that 
the development will not impact on these statutory designated sites.  
 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment 
 
An Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) of potential impact of the proposed 
development on trees present on and adjacent to the site has been made in accordance 
with BS5837:2012. The Arboricultural Impact Assessment, produced by Ascerta, states 
that six trees (locally native and ornamental species), two groups of ornamental trees 
and part of a coniferous hedge will be removed to accommodate the development, 
including the access road.  
 
These trees/hedges were all considered to be of moderate or low value with the 
exception of one Douglas Fir classed as moderate-high specimen value.  
 
A further seven individual trees, four groups of trees and two hedges are all to be 
retained within the development, including a Giant Sequoia and a Pinus nigra 
(considered high value specimens). The retained trees and hedges comprise a mixture 
of locally native and ornamental species.  
 
A landscaping scheme has been submitted in support of the application providing 
details of species, location, numbers and site preparation, planting and aftercare 
specifications for additional planting within the application site. It is considered that the 
species chosen will enhance the biodiversity present on site through improved habitat 
areas for birds, small mammals and insects. The trees as identified to be retained within 
the proposed development have been identified including protective working methods 
around such trees. The plan has been considered as being in accordance with 
recommendations for replacement planting proposed in the submitted AIA.  
 

Tudalen 54



 

 

Lighting 
 
It will be necessary to minimise the amount of nocturnal light on the site to avoid 
adverse impact to nocturnal wildlife, particularly to bats, and to reduce light pollution, in 
accordance Powys LDP Policies DM2 and DM7.   
  
Any external lighting proposed will need to demonstrate compliance with the 
recommendations outlined in the BCT and ILP Guidance Note 8 Bats and Artificial 
Lighting (12th September 2018).  
  
It is, therefore, recommended that the submission of an External Lighting Design 
Scheme is secured through an appropriately worded planning condition.  
  
Protected Species 
 
A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal initially supported the application however following 
comments from NRW and the Powys Ecologist an updated Bat Nocturnal Surveys 
report dated 02/11/2020 by Ascerta was submitted in support of the application.  
  
NRW and the Powys Ecologist have confirmed that provided all the recommended 
reasonable avoidance measures and mitigation as identified in section 7 of the bat 
report are implemented, they do not consider that the development is likely to be 
detrimental to the maintenance of the population of the species concerned at a 
favourable conservation status in its natural range.  
  
With regards to other species the site was considered unsuitable for supporting 
dormouse and great crested newt due to lack of suitable habitat features, absence of 
known populations in the vicinity and poor connectivity to the wider landscape.  
 
A condition will be attached any grant of consent ensuring that a Construction 
Environment Management Plan (CEMP) is submitted and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. This will include protection over nesting birds and hedgehogs. 
  
As such, considering the above and the comments received from NRW and the Powys 
Ecologist it is considered that the development is in accordance with policy DM2 of the 
Powys LDP, TAN5 and PPW. 
 
Neighbouring Amenities 
 
Policy DM13 of the LDP seeks to ensure that the amenities enjoyed by the occupants or 
users of nearby or proposed properties shall not be unacceptably affected by levels of 
noise, dust, air pollution, litter, odour, hours of operation, overlooking or any other 
planning matter. 
 
Concerns have been raised by public representations and the Town Council on a 
number of concerns. Whilst it is considered that a majority of the concerns raised have 

Tudalen 55



 

 

been addressed above in the principle of development and design sections, the 
remaining concerns can be addressed as follows: 
 
It is also noted that in addition to concerns raised by local residents, further information 
was requested by the Environmental Health Officer in respect to noise and odour 
created from the site from the kitchen areas proposed and also the storage of waste. 
These will be addressed individually as follows: 
 
Noise 
 
A noise impact assessment was submitted in support of the application which 
considered noise from any fixed plant as part of the development and also noise 
associated from the adjoining Tesco supermarket. 
 
For the nearest sensitive receptors (NSRs) and in line with BS4142:2014, the noise 
assessment has recommended that the cumulative rating level of all plant associated 
with the development does not exceed the typical background levels at the NSRs.  
 
This means that if the selected plant includes acoustic features such as tonality or 
intermittency which attract penalties, the corrected rating level will still not exceed the 
background levels. Based on the data collected from the noise survey, Table 6.1 of the 
assessment shows the recommended daytime and nighttime plant noise limits 
respectively. 
 
Subject to an appropriately worded condition it is therefore considered that noise for the 
occupiers of the development and NSRs can be managed to an acceptable level. 
 
Odour 
 
Residents of the development will use refuse stores located within the proposal building 
itself.  A main refuse store is proposed within the ground floor of the new block, and a 
further smaller one within the existing building.  Refuse will be separated for recycling.  
In addition, a bin store area has been located along the western boundary of the 
application site. Concerns to which have been raised from neighbouring residential 
properties. 
 
The bin store will be enclosed with a 1800mm high close boarded timber fence with 
washdown/drainage facilities provided within the enclosure to ensure appropriate 
management of the area. Recycling will be collected weekly.  
 
Subject to the provision of the enclosure and drainage facilities it is considered that any 
odour from the area can be mitigated and a condition attached to ensure this. 
 
In light of the above the Environmental Health Officer confirmed that they had no 
objection to the scheme as proposed in accordance with relevant planning policy. 
 

Tudalen 56



 

 

Privacy 
 
Concerns have been raised in respect to the loss of privacy for neighbouring residential 
properties.  
 
The nearest residential receptors to the application site are those along Clive Place to 
the western boundary of the application site. Whilst it is acknowledged that the 
proposed extension will extend closer to the boundaries of the properties there remains 
approximately 47 metres between either development (window to window). 
 
The Residential Design Guide SPG states that in instances where a proposed window 
to a lounge, dining room, bedroom or kitchen will directly face a similar window of a 
neighbouring property the distance between them should be at least 21 metres. 
 
It is acknowledged that the guidance states that in instances where buildings are at 
different heights, as is this case, then the minimum distances may need to be 
increased.  
 
It is noted that the distance involved with windows in this instance are more than double 
the recommended guidance limit as contained within the SPG. Whilst it is noted that the 
proposed extension will be located within 5 metres of the boundary for No 3 Clive Place 
or approximately 15 metres for No 4 Clive Place given the orientation of both 
developments and further to the reduction of scale of balconies along this elevation it is 
considered that the proposed extension would not dominate or result in a loss of privacy 
to any residential properties.  
 
Open Space 
 
Concerns have been raised that insufficient public open space is to be provided as part 
of the development and requests that a contribution is made for the provision of new 
outdoor play pitch space within Welshpool have been received.  
 
It is noted that the comments specifically relate to the C3 Use Class (dwellinghouse) for 
the development rather than C2 (residential institution) to which this application seeks 
consent for.  
 
Fields in Trust provides guidance for Outdoor Sport and Play Facilities within Wales. A 
glossary has been provided as part of the document which specifically states that it 
relates to residential uses within a Class C3 of the Town and Country Planning Use 
Classes Order but excludes specialist forms of housing such as housing aimed at 
specialist groups (e.g. sheltered housing, student accommodation etc.) or housing not 
permanently occupied such as holiday homes and those with an element of care. 
 
It is therefore considered that in this instance the provision of outdoor sport and play 
facilities would not be required in this instance given the specialist nature of the 
accommodation for older generations. However, it is still believed that it is important to 

Tudalen 57



 

 

note that the development itself does provide amenity land around the development 
which includes proposed new walkways, garden areas and vegetable patches in 
accordance with Technical Advice 16 (TAN16) which aims to improve the health and 
well-being of people in Wales, including older people and their access to such space. 
 
It is therefore considered that on this basis an appropriate level of amenity space has 
been provided in support of the application and the specialised use and no further 
provision will be required in connection with policy DM3 of the Local Development Plan. 
 
Scheduled Ancient Monument 
 
The following Scheduled Ancient Monuments (SAMs) have been identified within close 
proximity to the application site: 
 

- Domen Castell Mound and Bailey Castle MG019 (138 metres north-east) 
- Railway Transfer Dock at Welshpool MG254 (70 metres north-east) 

 
It is noted that between either SAM and the proposed development site there are 
various built development and landscaping. Cadw have been consulted and have 
confirmed that they have no objection to the scheme in the terms of impact upon the 
setting of the SAMs. It is therefore considered that any impact would be negligible and 
therefore offer no objection in this respect. 
 
Flood Risk 
 
The planning application proposes residential use which is considered to be highly 
vulnerable development under Technical Advice Note 15.  NRW have confirmed that 
their Flood Risk Map confirms the site to be within Zone A of the Development Advice 
Map (DAM) contained in TAN15.  Zone A is considered to be areas which are “to be at 
little or no risk of fluvial or tidal/coastal flooding”. 
  
NRW have reviewed the Flood Consequence Assessment (FCA) report dated 
20/03/2020 by The Alan Johnston Partnership LLP which accompanies the application.   
 
NRW confirm that they support the various mitigation measures recommended to 
address any residual flood risks, such as sensible adjacent ground recontouring away 
from the main built development and ensuring internal floor levels are above adjacent 
ground levels. NRW have recommended that the advice within the FCA should be 
incorporated within the detailed design to secure its implementation. 
 
A condition will be attached to ensure that any development complies with the FCA 
report and mitigation as outlined. Subject to an appropriately worded condition it is 
therefore considered that the risk would be little and would offer no objection to the 
scheme as proposed. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

Tudalen 58



 

 

 
In light of the above it is therefore considered that on balance the proposed 
development fundamentally complies with relevant local and national planning policies. 
The recommendation to Members is therefore one of conditional consent. 
 
Conditions 
 
 1 The development shall begin not later than five years from the date of this 
decision. 
 
 2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved 
plans and documents CAW LMA 01 XX DR A 2123 P8, CAW LMA 01 XX DR A 2130 
P8, CAW LMA 01 XX DR A 2121 P8, CAW LMA 01 XX DR A 2122 P8, CAW LMA 01 
XX DR A 2131 P8, CAW LMA 03 XX DR A 9034 P9, CAW LMA 01 02 DR A 2102 P10, 
CAW LMA 01 01 DR A 2101 P10, CAW LMA 00 XX DR A 2110 P8, CAW LMA 01 RF 
DR A 2103 P10, CAW LMA 01 XX DR A 2120 P8, CAW LMA 00 XX DR A 1200 P9, 
CAW LMA 00 XX DR A 1500 P3, CAW LMA 00 XX DR A 1400 P9, CAW LMA 01 00 DR 
A 2109 P10, CAW LMA 00 XX DR A 1800 P3, CAW LMA XX XX DR A 1810 P3, CAW 
LMA 00 XX DR A- 1000 P5, CWA LMA 05 XX DR A 1601 P1, Flood Consequence 
Assessment by The Alan Johnston Partnership LLP dated 20/03/2020 Ref CAW-AJP-
ZZ-XX-RP-C-3000. 
 
 3 Prior to the occupation of any dwelling, provision shall be made within the 
curtilage of the site for the parking of vehicles in accordance with the requirements of 
CSS Wales Parking Standards being not less than 27 vehicle parking spaces, 3 
motorcycle spaces and 10 cycle stands together with turning space such that all 
vehicles serving the site may both enter and leave the site in a forward gear. The 
parking and turning areas shall be retained for their designated use for as long as the 
development hereby permitted remains in existence. 
 
 4 The gradient of any vehicle access/egress shall be constructed so as not to 
exceed 1 in 15 for the first 15 metres measured from edge of the adjoining carriageway 
along the centre line of the access/egress and shall be retained at this gradient for as 
long as the development remains in existence. 
 
 5 Prior to the first occupation of the development the area of the access to be used 
by vehicles is to be finished in a suitably bound material for a distance of 5.5 metres 
from the edge of the adjoining carriageway. This area will be maintained to this standard 
for as long as the development remains in existence. 
 
 6 No surface water drainage from the site shall be allowed to discharge onto the 
county highway. 
 
 7 No drainage from the development site shall be connected to or allowed to 
discharge into the trunk road drainage system, and the proposed access shall be 
constructed such that the access road does not drain onto the trunk road. Positive 

Tudalen 59



 

 

drainage systems will need to be in place to capture any surface water runoff from 
entering the public highway. 
 
 8 The development shall be undertaken in strict accordance with the following: 
   
i) Recommendations for bats (mitigation and enhancements) in Bat Nocturnal Surveys, 
by Ascerta, Ref: P.1268.19, Rev. A, dated November 2020  
ii) Recommendations for nesting birds and hedgehog (mitigation and enhancements) 
identified in section 7 of Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, by Ascerta, Ref: P.1268.19 
Rev. C, dated November 2020  
iii) Tree Removal Plan and Tree Protection Plan in Appendix 2 of the Arboricultural 
Impact Assessment, by Ascerta, Ref: P.1268.19, dated March 2020. 
iv) Planting Plan, Drawing no. P.1268.19.05 v) Pollution Prevention Plan, by Ascerta, 
Ref: P.1268.19, dated November 2020  
 
The measures identified shall be adhered to and implemented in full and maintained 
thereafter.  
 
 9 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition and ground 
clearance, an Arboricultural Method Statement shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The Statement shall be prepared in accordance with 
the Arboricultural Impact Assessment, by Ascerta, Ref: P.1268.19, dated March 2020. 
The approved measures shall be adhered to and implemented in full. 
 
10 Prior to commencement of development, an External Lighting Design Scheme to 
avoid and reduce potential impacts on nocturnal wildlife shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Scheme shall be complaint 
with BCT and ILP Guidance Note 8 Bats and Artificial Lighting (12th September 2018). 
The approved scheme shall be adhered to and be implemented in full. 
 
11 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition and ground 
clearance, a Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall include as a 
minimum the following details:  
i) Details of construction management  
ii) Identified roles and responsibilities  
iii) Pollution prevention measures  
iv) Biosecurity risk assessment and method statement  
v) Tree removal and protection measures, and arboricultural method statement  
vi) Protected and priority species mitigation for bats, nesting birds and hedgehog  
 
The approved measures shall be adhered to and implemented in full. 
 
12 The Bin Store as indicated on drawing No: CAW LMA 00 XX DR A 1800 P3 shall 
be constructed in full accordance with the specifications as detailed upon that drawing 
prior to its first beneficial use and shall remain as such in perpetuity. 

Tudalen 60



 

 

 
13 Prior to their first use full details of all external materials to be used in the 
proposed extensions shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The materials as approved shall thereafter be used as agreed only. 
 
14 The operation of the site must at all times be run in full accordance with the 
recommendations contained within Table 6.1 of the Noise Impact Assessment by SRL 
Technical Services Limited dated 9 November 2020. 
 
15 The use of the development site hereby permitted is Class C2 (residential 
institutions) as defined under the Use Classes Order 1987 (as amended). No other use 
class is hereby permitted other than that specified as above. 
 
16 Development shall not begin until an appropriate photographic survey, 
(equivalent to an Historic England Level 1 Photographic Survey - Understanding 
Historic Buildings, May 2016) of the existing buildings has been carried out in 
accordance with details to be submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The Level 1 photographic survey will be completed by an archaeological 
contractor. The resulting digital photographs should be forwarded on appropriate digital 
media to the Local Planning Authority and the Development Control Archaeologist 
(Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust, Coed y Dinas, Welshpool, SY21 8RP. Email: 
mark.walters@cpat.org.uk Tel: 01938 553670/552045). After approval by the Local 
Planning Authority, a copy of the photographs should also be sent to the Historic 
Environment Record Officer, Clwyd-Powys Archaeological Trust, Coed y Dinas, 
Welshpool, SY21 8RP for inclusion in the regional Historic Environment Record and an 
appropriate archive location.  
 
Reasons 
 
 1 Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990. 
 
 2 To ensure adherence to the approved plans in the interests of clarity and a 
satisfactory development. 
 
 3 In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Powys Local Development 
Plan policies T1 and DM13, TAN 18 (2007) and Planning Policy Wales. 
 
 4 In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Powys Local Development 
Plan policies T1 and DM13, TAN 18 (2007) and Planning Policy Wales. 
 
 5 In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Powys Local Development 
Plan policies T1 and DM13, TAN 18 (2007) and Planning Policy Wales. 
 
 6 In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Powys Local Development 
Plan policies T1 and DM13, TAN 18 (2007) and Planning Policy Wales. 

Tudalen 61



 

 

 
 7 In the interest of highway safety in accordance with Powys Local Development 
Plan policies T1 and DM13, TAN 18 (2007) and Planning Policy Wales. 
 
 8 To comply with Powys County Council's LDP Policies DM2, DM4, DM13  in 
relation to The Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy 
Wales (Edition 10, 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 
6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
 9 To comply with Powys County Council's LDP Policies DM2, DM4, DM13  in 
relation to The Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy 
Wales (Edition 10, 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 
6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
10 To comply with Powys County Council's LDP Policies DM2, DM4, DM13 in 
relation to The Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy 
Wales (Edition 10, 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 
6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
11 To comply with Powys County Council's LDP Policies DM2, DM4, DM13 in 
relation to The Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of Planning Policy 
Wales (Edition 10, 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 
6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 
12 To ensure the amenities of neighbouring residential properties are ensured in 
accordance with policy DM13 of the Local Development Plan and Planning Policy 
Wales (2018). 
 
13 To ensure a well-designed proposal in accordance with policy DM13 and SP7 of 
the Local Development Plan, Technical Advice Note 12 and 24 and Planning Policy 
Wales (2018). 
 
14 To ensure the amenities of neighbouring residential properties are ensured in 
accordance with policy DM13 of the Local Development Plan and Planning Policy 
Wales (2018). 
 
15 To ensure adherence to the approved plans in the interests of clarity and a 
satisfactory development. 
 
16 To secure a full photographic record of the original buildings prior to alteration, 
conversion or demolition in accordance with policy SP7 of the Local Development Plan 
(2018). 
 
 
Informative Notes 
 

Tudalen 62



 

 

 
 1 General Notes Any works undertaken within or forming part of the highway shall 

meet the requirements of Section184 of the Highways Act 1980, and shall only 
be commenced with the specific agreement of the Welsh Government.  

  
The Section184 agreement is managed by our Trunk Road Agents on our behalf, for 

North and Mid Wales please apply to the North and Mid Wales Trunk Road 
Agent.  

  
The Applicant shall commission and pay for a Safety Audit of the scheme, (Stages 1 - 4) 

in accordance with the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges GG 119. The 
Applicant shall agree the required measures with the Welsh Government before 
works commence on site and will be responsible for meeting all costs associated 
with these works 

 
 
 2 Bats - Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended) 
 
It is an offence for any person to: 
o Intentionally kill, injure or take any bats. 
o Intentionally or recklessly damage, destroy or obstruct access to any place that a 

bat uses for shelter or protection. This is taken to mean all bat roosts whether 
bats are present or not.  

Under the Habitats Regulations it is an offence to: 
o Damage or destroy a breeding site or resting place of any bat. This is an 

absolute offence - in other words, intent or recklessness does not have to be 
proved.  

The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2010 (as amended)  that works to trees or  buildings where 
that work involves the disturbance of a bat is an offence if a licence has not been 
obtained from Natural Resources Wales. If a bat is discovered while work is 
being undertaken, all work must stop and advice sought from Natural Resources 
Wales and the Council's Ecologist. You can also call the National Bat helpline on 
0345 1300 228 or email enquiries@bats.org.uk 

 
 
 3 No public rights of way should be obstructed during the development process 

and at no time should any materials be placed or stored on the line of any public 
right of way; any damage caused to the surface of any public right of way must 
be made good to at least its current condition or better. Should the public 
footpath be required to be temporarily closed for development purposes then the 
applicant should make contact with Countryside Services directly to discuss, prior 
to any works taking place. Any application for a temporary closure needs to be 
processed and approved before the footpath can be legally stopped-up for a 

Tudalen 63



 

 

defined period. 
 
 
4 It should be noted that in addition to planning approval proposed developments 

require approval from the Sustainable Drainage System Approval Body (SAB), 
prior to any construction works commencing on site, where there are new 
developments of more than 1 house or where the area of the project proposals 
with drainage implications is likely to exceed 100m2 (including access tracks, 
areas of hard standing etc.). Standard 5 of the SAB seeks to ensure that, 
wherever possible the identified SUDs scheme makes the best use of the site to 
maximise benefits for biodiversity (as well as for amenity, water quantity and 
water quality). Further information on the requirements of SAB can be found at: 
https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5578/Sustainable-Drainage-Approval-Body-SAB  

 
5 The developer's attention is also drawn to the legal requirement for all sites to 

enter into a Section 104 sewer adoption agreement with Hafren Dyfrdwy before 
any sewer connection can be approved, in line with the implementation Schedule 
3 of the Floods and Water Management Act 2010. Full details of this are provided 
on our website www.hdcymru.co.uk under the 'New Site Developments' section. 

 
__________________________________________________ 
Case Officer: Gemma Bufton, Principal Planning Officer 
Tel: 01597 827505 E-mail: gemma.bufton1@powys.gov.uk     

 

Tudalen 64



Car Park

Bowling Green

Car Park

S
lip

w
ay

12

P
e
n
tr
e
fe

lin

Court

6

2

7

Dolanog

9

Gwynedd

5

6

Depot

11

1

1

Dolanog

Ethelda

1

3

New

Fire

Menevia

W
el

sh
po

ol

Station

3

Rose

Glan

2

El Sub Sta

Aqueduct

El

Elmhurst

Powys County

Cottages

Station

1

Clive Place

Amb Sta

W
el

sh
po

ol

1

House

1

Police

Youth

Sub

Chalfont

3

L
e
ig

h

Court

Ashworth

N
e
th

e
r

1

6

Garth

Gardens

4

Filling Station

Haven

8

Sta

Clive House

13

T
e
rr

a
ce

2

Twr

Gilm
our

W
elstead

GreenwoodVilla
s

W
ha

rf

Council Offices

Cottage

20

Depot

Camlas

Motte & Bailey

B4381

H
O

W
E
LL

 R
O

A
D

SEVERN ROAD

M
ILL LANE

G
R

E
E

N
F
IE

LD
S

A
48

3

S
M

IT
H

F
IE

L
D

 R
O

A
D

75.2m

76.8m

74.4m

75.9m

Posts

Bridge

Posts

Posts

Posts

Posts

LB

Fn

Posts

Pont
Howell

TCB

La
nd

in
g 

S
ta

ge
s

Weir

The Clerk's

FB

Tk

Mast (Telecommunication)

FB

Gorsedd Circle

FB

Aqueduct

Posts

Site boundary
1.06 hectare

Rev.

Dr'n

Title

Project

Drawing number 

Rev. Revision description Ch'd Date

VISUAL SCALE 1:2500  @ A3

50m 200m150m100m0m

Lovelock Mitchell Architects

3 Stanley Street, Chester, CH1 2LS
Tel +44 (0) 1244 404321

e-mail: admin@lovelockmitchell.com
web:      www.lovelockmitchell.com

Notes

Figured dimensions are to be used in all case ● Dimensions should not 
be scaled from drawing ● All existing dimensions should be checked 
on site before commencement of the work ● Any discrepancies in 
dimensions should be clarified with the Architect prior to 
commencement of the work ● No deviation from this drawing will be 
permitted without the prior written consent of the Architect ● This 
drawing is to be read  in conjunction with all the relevant Mechanical 
and Electrical drawings ● This drawing is to be read  in conjunction 
with the relevant Structural Engineer's drawings, structural calculations 
and recommendations ● This drawing is to be read  in conjunction with 
the relevant Fire Safety Strategy drawings ● This drawing is copyright 
and to be returned to the architect on completion of the contract.

LMA Ref.

A3

P5

D:\Revit local files\CAW-LMA-00-ZZ-M3-A-0001_SiteModel_Blanca.Pozuelo.rvt

Clwyd Alyn Housing - Neuadd Maldwyn
Severn Road, Welshpool

Site_LocationPlan

1573 CAW-LMA-00-XX-DR-A-1000

N

Scale: 1 : 2500

Location Plan
1

P1 First Issue of Drawing ST NM 19.02.20

P2 Drawings updated following
DTM

ST NM 05.03.20

P3 Issued for Pre-Application
Consultation (PAC)

BP NM 20.03.20

P4 Issued for Planning and Listed
Building Consent Applications

ST NM 23.04.20

P5 Issued for Planning Application BP NM 20.08.20

T
udalen 65



M
ae'r dudalen hon w

edi'i gadael yn w
ag yn fw

riadol



 

 

 
 
 

Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee Report 
 

Application 
Number: 

20/1870/HH 
 

Grid Ref: E: 322914 

N: 308207 

Community 
Council: 

 Welshpool Community Valid Date: 17.11.2020 

Case 
Officer: 

Gwyn Humphreys 

 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Seddon 
 
Location: Annegra, Borfa Green, Welshpool, SY21 7QE   
 
Proposal: Demolition of existing porch, extension to existing roof covering new porch, 
to cover replacement structure 
 
Application Type: Householder 
 
 
The reason for Committee determination 
 
As the Applicant is an Officer working within the Council. 
 
 
Consultee Responses 
 
Consultee Received 

 
Town Council  

No comments have been received at the time of writing this report. 

 

PCC-Building Control 26th Nov 2020 

Building Regulations application required. 

  

 

Tudalen 67

4.3



 

 

PCC-(N) Highways 4th Dec 2020 

Based on the information provided, the Highway Authority does not wish to comment on 

this application. 

 

Hafren Dyfrdwy 30th Nov 2020 

With Reference to the above planning application the company's observations regarding 

sewerage are as follows: 

As the proposal has minimal impact on the public sewerage system I can advise we have 

no objections to the proposals and do not require a drainage condition to be applied. 

Hafren Dyfrdwy advise that there may be a public sewer located within the application 

site. Although our statutory sewer records do not show any public sewers within the area 

you have specified, there may be sewers that have been recently adopted under the 

Transfer Of Sewer Regulations 2011. Public sewers have statutory protection and may 

not be built close to, directly over or be diverted without consent and contact must be 

made with Hafren Dyfrdwy to discuss the proposals. Hafren Dyfrdwy will seek to assist in 

obtaining a solution which protects both the public sewer and the building. 

The developer's attention is also drawn to the legal requirement for all sites to enter into a 

Section 104 sewer adoption agreement with Hafren Dyfrdwy before any sewer connection 

can be approved, in line with the implementation Schedule 3 of the Floods and Water 

Management Act 2010. Full details of this are provided on our website 

www.hdcymru.co.uk under the 'New Site Developments' section. 

 

PCC-Ecologist  

No comments received at the time of writing this report. 

 

Natural Resources Wales (North) DPAS 14th Dec 2020 

Thank you for consulting Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural Resources Wales (NRW) on 

the above. 

NRW does not object to the proposal. In our opinion, as explained below, the proposal is 

not likely to adversely affect any of the interests listed in our 'Consultation Topics' 

document (September 2018) which is published on our website. We have not considered 

Tudalen 68



 

 

potential effects on other matters and do not rule out the potential for the proposed 

development to affect other interests, including environmental interests of local 

importance.  

Protected Species 

We have reviewed the Book-a-Bat Survey report submitted in support of the above 

application dated 11 November 2020 by Environment Systems and we concur with its 

conclusions and recommendations. 

No European Protected Species (EPS) were found present within the area affected by the 

proposal and the potential for bat roosting was considered to be negligible. 

We welcome the recommendations for reasonable avoidance measures and ecological 

enhancements made in the bat report and we do not consider that the development is 

likely to be detrimental to the maintenance of the population of the species concerned at 

a favourable conservation status in its natural range.  

If bats are found or seen during works, all work must stop immediately and advice sought 

from NRW before works can restart. 

 
Representations 
 
Following the display of a site notice on 29/11/2020, no public representations have 
been received at the time of writing this report. 
 
 
Planning History 
 
From an examination of the Council’s records, the application site appears to have no 
relevant planning history. 
 
 

 
Principal Planning Policies 
 

Policy Policy Description Year Local Plan 
 
PPW Planning Policy Wales 

(Edition 10, December 
2018) 

 National Policy 

 
TAN5 Nature Conservation and 

Planning 
 National Policy 

 

Tudalen 69



 

 

TAN12 Design  National Policy 
 
TAN18 Transport  National Policy 
 
SP5 Settlement Hierarchy  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP7 Safeguarding of Strategic 

Resources and Assets 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM2 The Natural Environment  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM4 Landscape  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM7 Dark Skies and External 

Lighting 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM13 Design and Resources  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
T1 Travel, Traffic and 

Transport Infrastructure 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H7 Householder Development  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGBIO Biodiversity and 

Geodiversity SPG 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGRES Residential Design SPG  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
 
Other Legislative Considerations 
 

Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
 
Equality Act 2010  
 
Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)  
 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
 
Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 
 

Tudalen 70



 

 

 
Officer Appraisal 
 
Site Location & Description of Development 
 
The application site is located within the Town Council area of Welshpool, and is also 
located within the settlement development boundary for Welshpool, which is identified 
as a ‘Town’ by Policy SP5 of the adopted Powys Local Development Plan (2011-2026). 
The site relates to Annegra; an existing detached, two storey, split-level dwelling house 
located amongst a street scene comprised largely of dwellings similar in terms of their 
scale and external finish. The site is accessed via a private road off the U4413 County 
Highway, and is surrounded by neighbouring residential properties to the north, west 
and south; with an area of open space/woodland located to the east. 
 
This application seeks planning permission for the demolition of an existing 
conservatory porch, and the construction of a new larger single storey extension in its 
place. The proposal also includes the re-roofing of the whole dwelling, to include the 
replacement of an existing ‘stepped’ section on the northern roof plane with a pitched 
roof. The proposed extension would measure approximately 6.5 metres in width and 
approximately 2.7 metres in depth. It would have a lean-to roof with a height to the 
eaves of approximately 2.6 metres and a height to the ridge of approximately 3.7 
metres, to match that of the host dwelling house. The new roof would be finished with 
roof tiles, whilst the extension would be finished externally with materials to match those 
of the host dwelling; namely red brick and white uPVC fenestration. 
 
 
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004  
  
Members are advised to consider this application in accordance with Section 38 (6) of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which requires that, if regard is to be 
had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under the 
Planning Acts, the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
Policy H7 (Householder Development) of the adopted Powys Local Development Plan 
(2011-2026) is of relevance in the assessment of this application, and sets-out the 
principle of development for proposals of this nature; 
 
“Proposals for ancillary development, including residential annexes, shall be provided 
as an extension to a dwelling. Where this is not practical, the following considerations 
will apply: 
 

1. Ancillary buildings used for all purposes shall be designed to be subservient to 
and grouped with the main dwelling. 

Tudalen 71



 

 

 
2. Ancillary buildings providing residential accommodation shall not be self-

contained or have the facilities necessary for occupation independent of the main 
dwelling. Proposals should form a subordinate addition to the property, sharing 
access and amenity space with the main dwelling.” 

 
The application proposes the demolition of an existing conservatory porch and the 
construction of a new extension in its place. The existing conservatory is not considered 
to be of any particular architectural merit, and as such there would be no objection to its 
demolition in-principle. Given that the proposed extension would be attached to the host 
dwelling house, in-place of an existing structure, in this instance the proposal is 
considered to be compliant with the above policy. 
 
As such, officers consider the proposed development to be acceptable in-principle. This 
is however subject to an assessment of the broader planning criteria addressed in turn 
below. 
 
Design, Scale & Visual Impact 
 
With respect to design, specific reference is made to Policy DM13 of the Powys Local 
Development Plan (2011-2026). This policy indicates that development proposals must 
be able to demonstrate a good quality design and shall have regard to the qualities and 
amenity of the surrounding area, local infrastructure and resources. It states that, in 
terms of design, proposals will only be permitted where the following criteria are 
satisfied; 
 

1. “Development has been designed to complement and/or enhance the character 
of the surrounding area in terms of siting, appearance, integration, scale, height, 
massing, and design detailing. 

 
2. The development contributes towards the preservation of local distinctiveness 

and sense of place.” 
 
Further design-specific guidance is set-out within the adopted Residential Design SPG. 
 
As previously noted, the existing conservatory porch, located on the western elevation 
of the dwelling house, is not considered to be of any particular architectural merit. As 
such, there is no objection to its demolition in design-terms. 
 
With regard to the proposed extension, whilst it is acknowledged this would be larger in 
scale than the existing conservatory, officers nevertheless consider the overall scale of 
the extension would be proportionate and subservient to the scale of the host dwelling 
house in its current form. Indeed, whilst the extension would not be set-down from the 
ridge of the host dwelling house, it would nevertheless be viewed as clearly subservient 
within the surrounding street scene, and it would not dominate the western elevation of 
the existing dwelling, nor adversely impact upon the character of the host dwelling 

Tudalen 72



 

 

house. 
 
The proposed re-roofing of the dwelling house and the reconfiguration of the northern 
roof plane is considered to be acceptable in design-terms and would positively enhance 
the external appearance of the dwelling. The roof of the dwelling would be finished with 
new roof tiles, which noting the site’s context and design of the existing dwelling, is 
considered to be appropriate in this instance. 
 
The proposed extension would be finished externally with materials to match those of 
the host dwelling house, namely red brick and white uPVC fenestration. The use of 
matching materials is considered to be an acceptable design-approach in this instance, 
and would ensure the extension is not viewed as an out-of-context addition within the 
host street scene. 
 
Given that the application site is located within the Welshpool settlement, with 
surrounding built development, it is not considered the proposal would have any impact 
upon the surrounding landscape, in-line with LDP Policy DM4. 
 
In light of the above, subject to the inclusion of a suitably worded condition to ensure 
compliance with submitted plans, officers consider the proposals would be acceptable in 
this regard, and fundamentally compliant with relevant planning policy. 
 
Impact upon Neighbouring Privacy & Amenity 
 
In considering the impact upon amenities enjoyed by occupiers of neighbouring 
properties, consideration has been given to the adopted Residential Design SPG and 
LDP Policy DM13 (Criterion 11). 
 
The proposed extension would be located on the western elevation of the existing 
dwelling house, and would therefore be set away from neighbouring properties. Indeed, 
the extension would be set-off the northern elevation of the neighbouring dwelling, 
Penybryn, by approximately 9 metres, which given the extension’s single storey scale 
and its position north of this neighbouring property, is considered to be acceptable. 
Similarly, the extension would be sited approximately 14 metres north-east of No. 82 
Borfa Green. As such, given its limited single storey scale, officers consider there would 
be no adverse effect upon these neighbours by way of overbearing or overshadowing 
impacts. Indeed, the proposal is considered to be comply with both the 25 and 45 
degree rules, as outlined within the adopted Residential Design SPG. 
 
It is noted the application also proposes the re-roofing of the existing dwelling and the 
reconfiguration of the northern roof plane. Whilst the proximity of the neighbouring 
dwelling to the north of the site, Tara Gwyn, is acknowledged, officers consider the 
minor alterations proposed to the roof would not have the potential to result in any 
adverse impact upon the amenity of these neighbouring residential occupiers. 
 
With regard to the potential for overlooking as a result of the proposal, it should be 

Tudalen 73



 

 

noted that no new windows are proposed within the southern elevation of the extension, 
facing towards Penybryn. Whilst two new roof lights are proposed within the southern 
roof plane, due to the pitch of the roof these would not offer any intrusive views towards 
neighbouring dwellings or gardens. Whilst it is acknowledged that the western elevation 
would include openings, it is considered these would not offer any greater or additional 
views than those available from the existing conservatory, and as such there would be 
no unacceptable level of overlooking in this direction as a result of the proposed 
development. 
 
In light of the above, the proposal is considered to comply with the relevant planning 
policy and guidance, and would therefore be acceptable in this regard. 
 
Highway Safety & Parking 
 
Criterion 10 of LDP Policy DM13 states that development proposals should meet all 
highway access requirements (for transport users) and parking standards. This is 
reinforced by Policy T1 (Travel, Traffic and Transport Infrastructure) of the Powys LDP, 
which refers to the transport network implications of development, and the importance 
of highway safety in all development proposals. 
 
The proposed development would result in the number of bedrooms within the dwelling 
increasing from three at present to four. However, noting the dwelling would already 
have the maximum parking requirement of three spaces, in-line with the CSS Wales 
Parking Standards, there would be no requirement for additional parking provision to be 
provided on-site as part of the development. The Local Highway Authority have been 
consulted on the proposals, and have confirmed they do not wish to comment upon the 
application. 
 
In light of the above, officers consider the proposed development to be fundamentally 
acceptable in this regard. 
 
Biodiversity 
 
With respect to biodiversity, specific reference is made to LDP Policy DM2 which seeks 
to protect, positively manage and enhance biodiversity and geodiversity interests, and 
safeguard protected important sites. This is supported by TAN 5 (Nature Conservation 
and Planning) and Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10). 
 
Gungrog Flash SSSI is located approximately 400 metres east of the application site, 
the Montgomery Canal SSSI and SAC is located approximately 510 metres south-east 
of the application site, and Bron y Buckley Wood SSSI is located approximately 750 
metres west of the site. There are also five separate areas of ancient woodland located 
within 1km of the application site, with the closest of these being located approximately 
300 metres south-west of the site. In light of the minor scale of development proposed, 
its location wholly within an existing residential curtilage, and the intervening built 
development lying between the application site and these designated sites identified, it 

Tudalen 74



 

 

is considered by officers that the proposed development would not detrimentally affect 
the sites or their features. 
 
The proposed works would involve the demolition of an existing structure, and would 
also affect the ridge and eaves of the existing dwelling house. As such, a bat survey 
report has been submitted as part of the application in order to assess the potential 
impacts upon protected and priority species at the site. No European Protected Species 
(EPS) were found present within the area affected by the proposal and the potential for 
bat roosting was considered to be negligible. NRW have been consulted upon the 
contents of the report, and have confirmed no objection to the development based upon 
the information submitted. 
 
The application proposes biodiversity enhancement in the form of the installation of a 
bat box on an existing Oak tree within the north-eastern corner of the application site, as 
outlined within the submitted bat report. This measure is considered to be acceptable 
given the scale of development proposed, and would help to achieve biodiversity 
enhancement at the application site and within the surrounding area. The enhancement 
measure will be secured through the inclusion of an appropriately worded condition with 
any grant of consent. 
 
In light of the above, subject to the recommended condition, officers consider the 
proposed development to be compliant with relevant planning policy in this regard. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION – Conditional Consent 
 
In light of the above assessment and consideration, it is considered that the proposed 
development complies with relevant planning policy and the officer recommendation is 
therefore one of conditional consent. 
 
 
Conditions 
 

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun no later than 
the expiration of five years from the date of this permission. 

 
2. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the following 

approved plans and documents: 
 
Application Form 
2034-MA(00)0001 – Location & Site Plan 
2034-MA(00)0002 – Existing Floor Plans 
2034-MA(00)0003 – Existing Elevations 
2034-MA(00)0004 – Proposed Plans 
2034-MA(00)0005 – Proposed Elevations 
Book-a-Bat Survey Report, Dated: 11/11/2020, By: Environment Systems 

Tudalen 75



 

 

 
3. The biodiversity enhancement as shown on plan no. 2034-MA(00)0001 and page 

7 of the Book-a-Bat Survey Report shall be implemented as approved prior to the 
first beneficial use of the extension hereby permitted, and shall be maintained 
thereafter for as long as the development remains in existence. 
 

 
 

Reasons 
 

1. To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. 

 
2. For the avoidance of doubt as to the proposed development and to accord with 

Circular 016:2014 on The Use of Planning Conditions for Development 
Management. 

 
3. To comply with Policies DM2, DM4 and DM13 of the Powys Local Development 

Plan in relation to The Natural Environment and to meet the requirements of 
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 2018), TAN 5: Nature Conservation and 
Planning and Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
 

 
Informative Notes 
 
PCC – Ecology 
 
Bats - Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of Habitats 
and Species Regulations 2017. 
 
It is an offence for any person to: 

 Intentionally kill, injure or take any bats. 

 Intentionally or recklessly damage, destroy or obstruct access to any place that a 
bat uses for shelter or protection. This is taken to mean all bat roosts whether 
bats are present or not.  

 
Under the Habitats Regulations it is an offence to: 

 Damage or destroy a breeding site or resting place of any bat. This is an 
absolute offence - in other words, intent or recklessness does not have to be 
proved. 

 
The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2017 that works to trees or buildings where that work involves the 
disturbance of a bat is an offence if a licence has not been obtained from Natural 
Resources Wales. If a bat is discovered while work is being undertaken, all work must 

Tudalen 76



 

 

stop and advice sought from Natural Resources Wales and the Council's Ecologist. You 
can also call the National Bat helpline on 0345 1300 228 or email 
enquiries@bats.org.uk. 
 
Birds - Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 
 
All nesting birds, their nests, eggs and young are protected by law and it is an offence 
to: 

 intentionally kill, injure or take any wild bird  

 intentionally take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird whilst it is in use or 
being built  

 intentionally take or destroy the egg of any wild bird 

 intentionally (or recklessly in England and Wales) disturb any wild bird listed on 
Schedule1 while it is nest building, or at a nest containing eggs or young, or 
disturb the dependent young of such a bird.  

 
The maximum penalty that can be imposed - in respect of a single bird, nest or egg - is 
a fine of up to £5,000, six months imprisonment or both.  
 
The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to remove or work on any hedge, tree or building 
where that work involves the taking, damaging or destruction of any nest of any wild bird 
while the nest is in use or being built (usually between late February and late August or 
late September in the case of swifts, swallows or house martins).  If a nest is discovered 
while work is being undertaken, all work must stop and advice sought from Natural 
Resources Wales and the Council's Ecologist.  
 
Protected Species 
 
Work should halt immediately and Natural Resources Wales (NRW) contacted for 
advice in the event that protected species are discovered during the course of the 
development.  To proceed without seeking the advice of NRW may result in an offence 
under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 and/or the Wildlife & 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) being committed. NRW can be contacted at: Tel: 
0300 065 3000. 
 

 
__________________________________________________ 
Case Officer: Gwyn Humphreys, Planner 
Tel: 01597827047 E-mail: gwyn.humphreys@powys.gov.uk     

 

Tudalen 77



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



T
udalen 79



M
ae'r dudalen hon w

edi'i gadael yn w
ag yn fw

riadol



 

 

 
 
 

Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee Report 
 

Application 
Number: 

20/2074/TRE 
 

Grid Ref: E: 322482 

N: 297021 

Community 
Council: 

 Montgomery Community Valid Date: 16.12.2020 

Case 
Officer: 

Gwyn Humphreys 

 
Applicant: S M Hayes 
 
Location: Mulberry Place, Arthurs Gate, Montgomery, Powys, SY15 6QU  
 
Proposal: Application to fell two trees within a conservation area 
 
Application Type: Works to trees in Conservation Area 
 
 
The reason for Committee determination 
 
As the application has been submitted by Cllr. Stephen Hayes. 
 
Consultee Responses 
 
Consultee Received 

 
Town Council  

No comments received at the time of writing this report. 

 
Representations 
 
Due to the type of application, consultation with members of the public is not statutorily 
required, and was therefore not carried out. As a consequence, no public 
representations have been received at the time of writing this report. 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 81

4.4



 

 

Planning History 
 

App Ref Description Decision Date 
 
TREE/2008/0
023 

Removal of Tulip tree and Fir tree 
(TPO) 

 12th Dec 2008 

 
TREE/2016/0
025 

Works to trees subject to TPO's 
and a tree within a conservation 
area 

Approve 12th Aug 2016 

 
Principal Planning Constraints 
 
Montgomery Conservation Area 
 
Principal Planning Policies 
 

Policy Policy Description Year Local Plan 
 
PPW Planning Policy Wales 

(Edition 10, December 
2018) 

 National Policy 

 
TAN5 Nature Conservation and 

Planning 
 National Policy 

 
TAN10 Tree Preservation Orders  National Policy 
 
TAN24 The Historic Environment  National Policy 
 
SP5 Settlement Hierarchy  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP7 Safeguarding of Strategic 

Resources and Assets 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM2 The Natural Environment  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM13 Design and Resources  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGBIO Biodiversity and 

Geodiversity SPG 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGCON Conservation Areas SPG  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 

Tudalen 82



 

 

 
Other Legislative Considerations 
 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
 
Equality Act 2010  
 
Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)  
 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
 
Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 
 
 
Officer Appraisal 
 

Site Location & Description of Development 
 
The application site is located within the Town Council area and settlement 
development boundary for Montgomery, which is identified as a ‘Town’ by Policy SP5 of 
the adopted Powys Local Development Plan (2011-2026). The site relates to Mulberry 
Place, a detached residential dwelling house which benefits from a relatively large 
garden. The site is accessed via Arthur’s Gate (U4809) and is surrounded by 
neighbouring residential properties in all directions. The site is located wholly within the 
Montgomery Conservation Area. 
 
This application seeks consent for the felling/removal of two semi-mature trees within 
the garden of Mulberry Place; T1 (Oak) and T2 (Birch). Both trees are located in close 
proximity to the boundary with neighbouring properties along Mortimer Road, to the 
north-east of the site. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
On receipt of the notice of the intention to carry out works to trees within a conservation 
area, the Local Planning Authority may, (1) allow the six-week determination period to 
expire, (2) inform the applicant that the works can go ahead, or (3) make a Tree 
Preservation Order (TPO). 
 
Local Planning Authorities are able to make TPOs in the interests of public amenity, 
however the key issues in considering the creation of a new TPO relate to: visibility, 
individual impact, wider impact and expediency. 
 
TAN 10 sets out the general requirements applied to all proposals relating to works to 
trees within a Conservation Area and trees with Tree Preservation Orders (TPO’s) 
placed upon them. Trees, groups of trees and woodlands of amenity value that make a 
particular contribution to the landscape or that are noted for their beauty or local rarity 
will be protected. Proposals for development that unacceptably adversely affects trees 

Tudalen 83



 

 

that are the subject of a TPO or within a Conservation Area will be refused. Applications 
to fell or carry out works on trees which are the subject of a TPO or within a 
Conservation Area will be approved if the work is necessary for public safety or to 
secure the future of the trees themselves by appropriate management measures. 
 
Officers note the reason behind the proposed felling of the semi-mature trees is due to 
their location in close proximity to the boundary with neighbouring properties along 
Mortimer Road. Indeed, it is acknowledged that the trees do abut the fence separating 
the garden at the application site and the rear gardens of these neighbouring properties, 
and it is understood that the trees are currently causing issues such as overshadowing 
and they are resulting in a loss of daylight towards the rear of these neighbouring 
properties. Given their position against an existing timber boundary fence, it is also 
acknowledged by officers that the trees do not have the required space to grow to 
maturity in a healthy manner. 
 
Due to the siting of the trees and the fact the application site is surrounded by 
neighbouring residential properties, it should be noted that the trees are not particularly 
visible from nearby public vantage points. As a result, officers consider they do not 
currently positively contribute towards the character and setting of the wider 
Montgomery Conservation Area. As a consequence, officers do not consider the trees 
would warrant the creation of a new Tree Preservation Order. 
 
In light of the above assessment, in this instance the proposed works to remove the two 
semi-mature trees are considered to be acceptable by officers. The trees are not 
currently particularly visible within the wider Montgomery Conservation Area, and their 
removal would increase the levels of light at the rear of neighbouring residential 
properties.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION – Approve 
 
Upon consideration of the notification, it is recommended that the proposed works to the 
trees shall be allowed to proceed as specified below: 
 
Removal of T1 (Oak) and T2 (Birch) within the garden at Mulberry Place. 
 
The works shall be carried out within 2 years from the date of the application.  
 
 
Informative Notes  
 
PCC - Ecology 
 
Bats - Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of Habitats 
and Species Regulations 2010 (as amended) 
 

Tudalen 84



 

 

It is an offence for any person to: 
 

 Intentionally kill, injure or take any bats. 

 Intentionally or recklessly damage, destroy or obstruct access to any place that a 
bat  uses for shelter or protection. This is taken to mean all bat roosts whether 
bats are  present or not.  

 
Under the Habitats Regulations it is an offence to: 
 

 Damage or destroy a breeding site or resting place of any bat. This is an 
absolute offence - in other words, intent or recklessness does not have to be 
proved.  

 
The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and The Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2010 (as amended)  that works to trees or  buildings where that work 
involves the disturbance of a bat is an offence if a licence has not been obtained from 
Natural Resources Wales. If a bat is discovered while work is being undertaken, all work 
must stop and advice sought from Natural Resources Wales and the Council's 
Ecologist. You can also call the National Bat helpline on 0345 1300 228 or email 
enquiries@bats.org.uk 
 
Birds - Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) 
 
The site of the proposed tree works is considered to have potential to support nesting 
birds during the breeding season. All nesting birds, their nests, eggs and young are 
protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended).  
 
It is therefore an offence to: 
 

 intentionally kill, injure or take any wild bird  

 intentionally take, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird whilst it is in use or 
being built  

 intentionally take or destroy the egg of any wild bird 

 intentionally (or recklessly in England and Wales) disturb any wild bird listed on 
Schedule1 while it is nest building, or at a nest containing eggs or young, or 
disturb the dependent young of such a bird.   

 
The maximum penalty that can be imposed - in respect of a single bird, nest or egg - is 
a fine of up to £5,000, six months imprisonment or both.  
 
The applicant is therefore reminded that it is an offence under the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to remove or work on any hedge, tree or building 
where that work involves the taking, damaging or destruction of any nest of any wild bird 
while the nest is in use or being built, (usually between late February and late August or 
late September in the case of swifts, swallows or house martins). If a nest is discovered 

Tudalen 85



 

 

while work is being undertaken, all work must stop and advice should be sought from 
Natural Resources Wales and the Council's Ecologist. 
 
__________________________________________________ 
Case Officer: Gwyn Humphreys, Planner 
Tel: 01597827047 E-mail: gwyn.humphreys@powys.gov.uk     

 

Tudalen 86



T
udalen 87



Tudalen 88



Application No. Proposal Location

20/0157/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition no. 2 
attached to planning 
permission P/2018/0099 
to allow design changes 
to design and layout

Bwlchcaehaidd 
Bwlch-Y-Ffridd
Newtown
SY16 3JB

20/1887/NMA Application for a non-
material amendment to 
planning approval 
19/0671/FUL to reposition 
and reduce the size of the 
proposed extension

St Llwchaiarn's Church
Abermule
Montgomery
Powys

20/1648/RES Reserved matters 
application for the 
erection of 3x dwellings in 
relation to planning 
approval P/2017/0604

Land Adj Severn Oaks 
Holiday Park
Crew Green
Shrewsbury
Powys
SY5 9AS

Bausley With 
Criggion 
Community

Approve 16/10/2020 Reserved Matters 07/01/2021

Abermule And 
Llandyssil 
Community

NMA 
Approved

11/11/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

30/11/2020

Aberhafesp 
Community

Consent 04/02/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

11/12/2020

Delegated List 

143 Applications

Excel Version
Go Back

Parish Name Decision Date Application Application Type Date Decision 
Issued

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 1 of 30

T
udalen 89

5



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1944/NMA Non Material Amendment 
to planning approval 
19/1382/HH (fenestration 
and internal layout 
alterations and reduction 
and alteration to location 
of proposed terrace)

Shotton Farm
Pecknall Lane
Pecknall
Halfway House
Powys
SY5 9DP

20/2059/NMA Application for a non-
material amendment to 
planning approval 
20/0993/HH in relation to 
amendments to the 
ground floor window 
arrangements of the rear 
extension

Brook Cottage 
Alberbury
Crew Green
SY5 9AN

20/1612/HH Erection of detached 
garage

1- The Fron 
Coedway
Crew Green
SY5 9AT

20/0974/FUL Improvements to 
Chestnut House and 
conversion/change of use 
of adjoining outbuilding to 
form additional dwelling 
and form new access.

Chestnut House 
Berriew
Welshpool
SY21 8PL

02/12/2020

Berriew 
Community

Approve 24/06/2020 Full Application 10/12/2020

Approve 19/11/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

14/12/2020

Approve 15/12/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

08/01/2021

Consent 14/10/2020 Householder

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 2 of 30

T
udalen 90



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1025/DIS Discharge of conidtions 
14, 15 and 19 from 
planning permission 
P/2017/1509 in relation to 
hedgerow, landscaping 
and floor levels

Hanbury
Berriew
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8AT

20/2013/NMA Non material amendment 
application to the wording 
of conditions 2 and 10 of 
planning permission 
18/0805/FUL in respect of 
the approved plan 
(relocation of passing bay 
2)

Tyn Yr Wtra
Brooks
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8QN

19/2039/RES Application for reserved 
matters following the 
approval of P/2016/0793 
for the erection of 30 
dwellings and related 
infrastructure

Erection Of Dwellings At 
The Site Of Old School
Neuadd Terrace
Bronllys
Aberhonddu
Powys

20/0914/DIS Discharge of condition 4 
of planning approval 
19/1978/FUL

The Old School House
Bronllys
Brecon
Powys
LD3 0HP

Bronllys 
Community

Approve 13/12/2019 Reserved Matters 15/12/2020

Approve 10/06/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

03/12/2020

Bettws 
Community

Approve 27/11/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

16/12/2020

Approve 24/09/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

07/01/2021

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 3 of 30

T
udalen 91



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/0360/FUL Erection of a storage 
shed

Bowling Club Pavilion
North Road
Builth Wells 
Powys
LD2 3BU

20/1874/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 3 & 4 of 
planning approval 
20/0742/FUL

Maesperthi Caravan Site
Penegoes
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8UN

20/0989/FUL Conversion of agricultural 
building to dwelling, 
installation of sewage 
treatment plant and all 
associated works

Waen 
Bwlch-Y-Ffridd
Newtown
SY16 3JF

20/1596/DIS Discharge of condition 5 
of permission 20/0821/HH 
in relation to lighting

Oerffrwd Cottage 
Clatter
Caersws
Powys 
SY17 5NP

20/1694/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 4 of planning 
approval 20/1119/HH

10 Maesydre
Caersws
Powys
SY17 5HX

20/1510/HH Retrospective application 
for the erection of a shed

6 Maes-Yr-Eglwys
Llanwnog
Caersws
SY17 5LA

14/12/2020

Caersws 
Community

Approve 15/07/2020 Full Application 16/12/2020

Approve 12/10/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

07/01/2021

Approve 14/10/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

10/12/2020

Approve 19/10/2020 Householder

Cadfarch 
Community

Approve 18/11/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

03/12/2020

Builth Wells 
Community

Approve 06/03/2020 Full Application 10/12/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 4 of 30

T
udalen 92



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1622/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 2 of 
planning approval 
P/2017/0839 in relation to 
approved plans

Land At 1 Cledan Gardens
Carno
Caersws
Powys
SY17 5JT

20/1795/DEM Prior notification 
application for the 
demolition of part of the 
former Laura Ashley 
factory and headquarters 
complex (factory and 
office buildings)

Laura Ashley Ltd
Carno
Caersws
SY17 5LG

20/1593/LBC Insulation of roof Ty Croes
Llanymynech
Powys
SY22 6ER

20/1611/REM Section 19 application in 
relation to variation of 
condition 2 of planning 
permission P/2017/1161 
(change to plans - 
fireplace)

Ty Croes
Llanymynech
Powys
SY22 6ER

20/2016/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 3 of planning 
approval 20/1540/HH

The Lodge 
Llangyniew
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 9EW

Castle 
Caereinion 
Community

Approve 09/12/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

07/01/2021

Carreghofa 
Community

Approve 30/09/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

18/12/2020

Consent 30/09/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

07/12/2020

Carno 
Community 
Council

Approve 08/10/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

03/12/2020

Permitted 
Developm
ent

30/11/2020 Demolition Notification 08/01/2021

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 5 of 30

T
udalen 93



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/2046/NMA Application for a non-
material amendment to 
planning approval 
M19363 to vary condition 
4 to new rural enterprise 
condition as per TAN6

Dol Y Neuadd 
Cwm Golau
Cyfronydd
SY21 9HA

20/1212/FUL Construction of a slurry 
lagoon and all associated 
works

Land At The Gaer 
Farmhouse 
Golfa
Welshpool
SY21 9BD

20/1213/FUL Erection of an extension 
to existing agricultural 
building for use as 
manure store and all 
associated works

Land At The Gaer 
Farmhouse 
Golfa
Welshpool
SY21 9BD

20/1653/FUL Erection of a storage 
building (part 
retrospective)

Montgomery Natural Spring 
Water
Crosslikey Supermarket
Churchstoke
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6AR

20/1592/RES Application for reserved 
matters following the 
approval of P/2017/0654 
for the erection of 3 
dwellings, garages and 
associated works

Land At The Firs 
Churchstoke
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6AH

17/12/2020

Churchstoke 
Community

Approve 30/09/2020 Full Application 26/11/2020

Approve 05/10/2020 Reserved Matters 18/12/2020

Approve 17/12/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

08/01/2021

Consent 13/08/2020 Full Application 17/12/2020

Consent 13/08/2020 Full Application

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 6 of 30

T
udalen 94



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1929/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 & 8 
of planning approval 
19/1459/RES

Land Opposite Manor 
Cottage 
White Grit 
Minsterley
SY5 0JL

20/1663/HH Retrospective application 
for the installation of a 
handrail above the car 
port to create a balcony

Trydar Barn
Churchstoke
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6TQ

20/1828/NMA Application for non-
material amendments to 
permission 19/1857/RES  
to alter the design and 
relocation of garage

Plot 5, Site Adj Belmont 
Cilmery
Builth Wells
Powys
LD2 3GE

20/1595/DIS Discharge of conditions 3 
and 4 of listed building 
consent 19/1062/LBC

Llwyn Gwyn
Garth
Llangammarch Wells
Powys
LD4 4BD

20/1555/DIS Discharge of condition 14 
of planning permission 
19/1496/FUL in relation to 
landscaping

Field Adjacent Penycae 
Bungalow
Clyro
Hereford
Powys
HR3 6JU

Clyro 
Community

Approve 30/09/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

09/12/2020

Householder 07/12/2020

Cilmery 
Community

NMA 
Approved

09/11/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

11/12/2020

Split 
Decision

05/10/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

03/12/2020

Approve 16/11/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

16/12/2020

Consent 14/10/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 7 of 30

T
udalen 95



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1578/DIS Discharge of conditions 6, 
8, 9, 10 and 29 of 
planning permission 
19/1741/FUL

Land Off Kilvert View
Kilverts View
Clyro
Hereford
Powys
HR3 5NQ

20/1567/HH Single storey extension Ty-Lle-Heulog 
Clyro
Hereford
HR3 5SG

20/1745/DIS Application for discharge 
of Condition no. 21 
(Detailed Lighting Design 
Scheme) of planning 
permission 19/1741/FUL.

Housing Development At 
Land Off Kilvert View 
Kilverts View
Clyro
Hereford
HR3 5NQ

20/1466/HH Erection of extensions to 
dwelling

2 Crossways Court
Howey
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 5RJ

20/1539/HH Removal of lean-to and 
part of dwelling and 
erection of extensions

Cwmnantgwyn 
Llangynog
Builth Wells
Powys
LD2 3RQ

Duhonw 
Community

Approve 12/10/2020 Householder 08/12/2020

01/12/2020

Disserth And 
Trecoed 
Community

Approve 25/09/2020 Householder 09/12/2020

Approve 02/10/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

01/12/2020

Approve 06/10/2020 Householder 01/12/2020

Approve 29/10/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 8 of 30

T
udalen 96



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1302/RES Application for reserved 
matters following the 
approval of P/2017/0154 
for the erection of 5 
dwellings and associated 
works

Land Adjoining 'The 
Garage' 
Adfa
Newtown
Powys 
SY16 3DD

20/1246/FUL Demolition of agricultural 
buildings and erection of a 
replacement building and 
all other associated works

Crug Nant 
Adfa
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3DF

20/1433/FUL Alterations to existing 
access and associated 
works

Pine Lodge 
Leighton
Welshpool
SY21 8LP

20/0031/LBC Replacement of windows 
and doors, removal of 
ground floor non load 
bearing wall and creation 
of new door opening in 
existing walls to first floor.

Holly Bush
Leighton
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8HJ

20/1897/HH Erection of a conservatory 2 Heritage Green
Forden
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8LH

20/1498/DIS Discharge of condition 4 
from planning permission 
P/2017/1378 in relation to 
lighting

Pen Y Bont 
Cemmaes Road
Machynlleth
SY20 8JY

Glantwymyn 
Community

Approve 22/09/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

03/12/2020

Forden With 
Leighton & 
Trelystan Com

Approve 09/09/2020 Full Application 13/01/2021

Consent 17/01/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

10/12/2020

Consent 19/11/2020 Householder 13/01/2021

Dwyriw 
Community

Approve 19/08/2020 Reserved Matters 16/12/2020

Approve 23/09/2020 Full Application 25/11/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 9 of 30

T
udalen 97



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1534/FUL Erection of 2 dwellings 
and formation of vehicular 
access (resubmission of 
20/0775/FUL)

Plot 1
Cemmaes
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 9PR

20/1821/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 4, 6, 9, 10 and 
11 of planning approval 
20/0349/FUL in relation to 
tree and hedgerow plans, 
landscaping scheme, 
biodiversity 
enhancements, 
contamination 
information, remediation 
scheme and monitoring 
and maintainance 
schemes

Glantwymyn Health Centre 
Glantwymyn
Cemmaes Road
Machynlleth
SY20 8LB

20/1764/NMA Non material amendment 
to planning consent 
20/0999/HH in respect of 
1. To add fibre cement 
wall cladding to the upper 
section of the extension 
and 2. Replace the sun 
tunnel with a skylight.

6 Station Road
Boughrood
Brecon
LD3 0YF

Glasbury 
Community

Approve 15/12/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

18/12/2020

Approve 22/09/2020 Full Application 03/12/2020

Approve 06/11/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

16/12/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 10 of 30

T
udalen 98



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/0473/LBC Demolition of existing 
double garage and 
erection of a replacement 
double garage

Boughrood Castle 
Boughrood
Brecon
LD3 0YH

20/0472/HH Demolition of existing 
double garage and 
erection of a replacement 
double garage

Boughrood Castle
Boughrood
Brecon
LD3 0YH

20/1903/HH Removal of hedgerow and 
erection of a wall

The Smithy
Guilsfield
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 9ND

20/1815/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 5 of planning 
approval 20/0852/HH

Langdale 
Guilsfield
Welshpool
SY21 9PP

20/2058/NMA Non Material Amendment 
to planning approval  
P/2015/1129 to vary 
Condition 6 to state - prior 
to any works on the 
barn.....

Burgedin Hall 
Pool Quay
Welshpool
SY21 9LN

20/1673/HH Construction of a two 
storey side extension

6 Gwernyfed Avenue
Three Cocks
Brecon
LD3 0RT

Gwernyfed 
Community

Approve 16/10/2020 Householder 07/12/2020

Guilsfield 
Community

Approve 11/11/2020 Householder 06/01/2021

Approve 13/11/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

07/01/2021

Approve 15/12/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

08/01/2021

Consent 01/04/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

01/12/2020

Consent 02/04/2020 Householder 01/12/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 11 of 30

T
udalen 99



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1819/NMA Application for a non-
material amendment 
against planning approval 
19/1301/RES in regards 
to the internal layout

Plot 9
Black Mountain View
Felindre
Brecon
Powys

20/1650/NMA Application for a non-
material amendment to 
planning approval 
18/0922/RES to amend to 
condition 15. Planting of a 
new hedgerow proposed 
in lieu of translocation of 
existing hedgrow

Land Adjacent To 
Southeast Of Village Hall
Sarn
Newtown
Powys
SY16 4HQ

20/1494/HH Erection of extensions 
and a garage and 
alterations to dwelling

Lexington Court
Kerry
Newtown
Powys
SY16 4LU

20/1584/FUL Replacement dwelling, 
demolition of outbuilding, 
proposed new vehicular 
access and the 
remodelling of existing 
dwelling.

Little Mill 
Kerry
Newtown
SY16 4LP

Kerry 
Community

Approve 28/10/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

06/01/2021

Consent 08/10/2020 Householder 29/12/2020

Consent 09/10/2020 Full Application 16/12/2020

Approve 29/10/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

26/11/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 12 of 30

T
udalen 100



Delegated List 

143 Applications

19/1291/OUT Erection of an affordable 
dwelling with septic tank 
drainage

Plot Adjacent To Gwenygoe
Sarn
Newtown
Powys

20/1939/TRE Works to trees in a 
Conservation Area - 
Management, height 
reduction, shaping and 
removal of trees at 
perimeter boundaries. 
Accompanying Plan 
20087.01.01 and 
Schedule listed in Table 1 
refer

The Laurels
Penybont Road
Knighton
Powys
LD7 1HB

20/0198/FUL Conversion of redundant 
farm building to a 
dwelling, formation of 
vehicular access road and 
all associated works

Barn At
Lower Woodhouse
Knighton
Powys
LD7 1LR

20/0199/LBC Listed building consent for 
conversion of redundant 
farm building to a dwelling 
and associated works

Barn At
Lower Woodhouse
Knighton
Powys
LD7 1LR

20/1180/LBC Installation of a ventilation 
vent

Flat 9, Church View
Cemetery Road
Knighton
LD7 1AJ

Listed Building 
Consent

02/12/2020

17/12/2020

Knighton 
Community

Closed 25/11/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

12/01/2021

Consent 04/02/2020 Full Application 13/01/2021

Consent 04/02/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

13/01/2021

Consent 28/09/2020

Refused 21/08/2019 Outline planning

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 13 of 30

T
udalen 101



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1727/HH Demolition of garage, 
erection of a single storey 
side extension and 
internal alterations

High Thorne 
Presteigne Road
Knighton
LD7 1HY

20/1726/CLE Section 191 Application 
for a Lawful Development 
Certificate for the existing 
use and occupation of an 
existing annexe 
outbuilding within the 
curtilage of a residential 
property for purposes 
ancillary and incidental to 
the dwelling house

Ty-Gwilym
Llanfihangel Bryn Pabuan
Builth Wells
LD2 3SH

20/1561/DIS Discharge of condition 13 
of approval 19/1046/RES - 
relating to landscaping

Land At Tyn Y Pant
Llananno
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 6TT

20/1788/HH Rear extension to existing 
bungalow to provide 
home office spaces and 
snug within roof space 
(part retrospective)

Pandy Rhos
Llanbrynmair
Powys
SY19 7DY

20/1626/HH Demolition of existing car 
port and shed, and the 
erection of single storey 
extension

Lowgate
Llandinam
Powys
SY17 5BY

Llandinam 
Community

Approve 05/10/2020 Householder 30/11/2020

Llanbrynmair 
Community

Approve 05/11/2020 Householder 06/01/2021

Llanbadarn 
Fynydd 
Community

Approve 13/10/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

10/12/2020

Llanafan-Fawr 
Community

Consent 30/10/2020 Certificate of 
Lawfulness - Existing

16/12/2020

Consent 13/11/2020 Householder 13/01/2021

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 14 of 30

T
udalen 102



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1629/DIS Discharge of conditions 4 
and 5 of planning 
permission 19/0078/FUL 
in relation to drainage 
details and timber window 
details

Broneirion 
Llandinam
SY17 5DE

20/1824/DIS Discharge of condition 3 
of listed building consent 
18/1155/LBC in relation to 
timber window details

Broneirion
Llandinam
Powys
SY17 5DE

20/0249/FUL Construction of a neolithic 
style passage tomb and 
covering mound

Neolithic Barn
Pantmawr
Llanidloes
Powys

20/1597/FUL Proposed extension to 
existing veterinary clinic 
and associated works

Unit 5A
Ddole Road Veterinary 
Clinic
Ddole Industrial Estate 
Road
Llandrindod
Powys
LD1 6DF

20/1882/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 5 of planning 
approval 19/1583/FUL

Land At Rear Of Rhoslyn
High Street
Llandrindod
Powys
LD1 6AG

10/12/2020

Llandrindod 
Wells 
Community

Approve 19/10/2020 Full Application 15/12/2020

Approve 11/11/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

16/12/2020

Approve 02/11/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

05/01/2021

Approve 02/11/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

03/12/2020

Refused 11/02/2020 Full Application

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 15 of 30

T
udalen 103



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1478/DIS Discharge of condition 3 
of planning approval 
20/0012/FUL in relation to 
external lighting

Parc Noyadd Park, Fire 
Station 
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 5DF

20/0240/RES Reserved matters 
application for the 
approval of access, 
appearance, landscaping, 
layout and scale in 
connection with outline 
approval for 9 dwellings 
under permission 
P/2017/0623

Land Adjoining Windy 
Ridge
Arddleen
Llanymynech
Powys
SY22 6PY

20/1830/VAR Discharge of Section 106 
Agreement attached to 
planning permission 
M/2005/0285 in relation to 
affordability

The Brambles
Sarnau
Llanymynech
Powys
SY22 6QJ

20/1667/HH Erection of an extension 37 Llwyn Perthi
Arddleen
Llanymynech
Powys
SY22 6QX

20/1656/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 2 of 
20/0588/HH to reduce the 
size of the extension and 
to substitute plans

19 Llwyn Perthi
Arddleen
Llanymynech
Powys
SY22 6QX

17/12/2020

Llandrinio And 
Arddleen 
Community

Approve 13/03/2020 Reserved Matters 17/12/2020

Approve 30/10/2020 Discharge/Modificatio
n of S106

03/12/2020

Consent 14/10/2020 Householder 14/12/2020

Consent 16/10/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

Refused 16/09/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

30/11/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 16 of 30

T
udalen 104



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1736/FUL Erection of a 3 bay 
extension to commercial 
unit including MOT bay 
installation

Unit 4 Foxen Business Park
Four Crosses 
Llanymynech
Powys
SY22 6ST

20/0922/LBC Listed building consent for 
replacement of asbestos 
based slates with natural 
slates on main roof of 
house (excluding eastern 
wing which has 
corrugated roof)

Erfyl House 
Llangadfan
Welshpool
SY21 0EG

20/1750/TRE Reduction in height to a 
sycamore tree within the 
conservation area

1 Mount Einion
High Street
Llanfair Caereinion
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 0QS

20/1904/ELE Notification under 
Electricity Act 1989: 
Overhead Lines 
(Exemption) (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2009 
for upgrade to 11kV 
single phase electricity 
network to three phase by 
adding a third conductor

Land Near Cross Farm
Llanfair Caereinion
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 0DP

Llanfair 
Caereinion 
Community

Approve 06/11/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

03/12/2020

Approve 11/11/2020 Electricity Overhead 
Line

15/12/2020

Llanerfyl 
Community

Consent 16/06/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

04/01/2021

Llandysilio 
Community

Consent 20/10/2020 Full Application 01/12/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 17 of 30

T
udalen 105



Delegated List 

143 Applications

19/1893/FUL Full planning 
(retrospective) for the 
change of use of 
agricultural land for the 
siting of a holiday cabin 
and all associated works

Wern Ganol
Llangedwyn
Llanfechain
Powys
SY22 6XG

20/0978/FUL Full planning application 
for the demolition of 
domestic and agricultural 
buildings and replacement 
with two holiday lets.

Bronhaul
Llanfechian
Powys
SY22 6XD

20/1693/NMA Non material amendment 
to planning permission 
18/0697/RES in relation to 
external materials, 
amending window size, 
style and colour, size 
amendment to porch and 
installation of juliette 
balcony

Plot Adj To The Oaks 
Dolau
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 5TW

20/1641/DIS Discharge of condition 4 
(alterations to external 
elevations), condition 5 
(samples of facing and 
roofing materials) and 
condition 7 (window and 
external door details) of 
listed building consent 
20/0427/LBC

21 High Street
Llanfyllin
SY22 5AA

Llanfyllin 
Community

Approve 12/10/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

03/12/2020

Llanfihangel 
Rhydithon 
Community

Approve 26/10/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

25/11/2020

Llanfechain 
Community

Approve 02/12/2019 Full Application 06/01/2021

Consent 15/07/2020 Full Application 27/11/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 18 of 30

T
udalen 106



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1793/TPO Pollarding of two oak 
trees in rear gardens

15 And 11 Maes Myllin
Llanfyllin
Powys
SY22 5DQ

20/1327/FUL Siting of two holiday 
lodges on existing leisure 
land at Three Valleys 
Shooting Lodge and all 
associated works

Three Valleys Shooting 
Lodge 
Penygarnedd
Oswestry
SY10 0AR

20/1541/HH Addition of a single storey 
glass canopy roof to the 
front of the property

Frondeg 
Llangynog
Oswestry
SY10 0EZ

20/2005/DIS Discharge of condition no. 
3 attached to planning 
approval 20/1515/HH (bat 
conservation plan)

The Waen 
Llangynog
Oswestry
SY10 0HA

20/1460/FUL Conversion and 
alterations of former 
Methodist Church to form 
a residential dwelling

Wesleyan Chapel
Long Bridge Street
Llanidloes
Powys
SY18 6EE

20/1751/HH Erection of an extension 21 Hafren Terrace, 
Glanhafren 
Newtown Road
Llanidloes
SY18 6AT

Llanidloes 
Community

Approve 14/09/2020 Full Application 30/11/2020

Approve 06/11/2020 Householder 21/12/2020

Llangynog 
Community

Approve 28/09/2020 Householder 12/01/2021

Approve 07/12/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

07/01/2021

Approve 27/10/2020 Works to Trees 
subject to a TPO

30/11/2020

Consent 21/08/2020 Full Application 15/12/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 19 of 30

T
udalen 107



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1686/FUL Erection of building to 
provide welcome centre 
with changing facilities, 
installation of a treatment 
plant and associated 
works

Land Adj To Glynhafren 
Old Hall 
Llanidloes
Powys
SY18 6PS

20/1863/NMA Application for a non-
material amendment to 
planning approval 
19/1678/HH to alter the 
design to include dormer 
windows

Prestwylfa
Cymdu
Llanrhaeadr-ym-mochnant
Powys
SY10 0EF

20/1746/NMA Application for Non 
Material Amendment to 
planning approval 
M/2005/0976 and 
19/0706/REM (for 5 
dwellings) to change front 
boundaries from metal 
railings to laurel planting

Residential Development Of 
5 Plots
Parc Bronhyddon
Llansantffraid-ym-mechain
Powys
SY22 6DZ

20/1344/HH Proposed extension and 
alterations

Tyn-Y-Bryn 
3 Maes Y Foel
Llansantffraid-Ym-Mechain
SY22 6AJ

20/1812/TPO Application to remove 2 
Alder trees that are 
subject of Tree 
Preservation Order no 21

Beckwood
Highbury Fields
Llanyre
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 6NF

Llanyre 
Community

Closed 02/11/2020 Works to Trees 
subject to a TPO

18/12/2020

Llansantffraid 
Community

Approve 15/12/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

08/01/2021

Refused 18/09/2020 Householder 25/11/2020

Llanrhaeadr-Ym-
Mochant 
Community

NMA 
Approved

16/11/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

30/11/2020

Llanidloes 
Without 
Community

Approve 21/10/2020 Full Application 16/12/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 20 of 30

T
udalen 108



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/2047/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 8, 10, 12, 13 & 
15 of planning approval 
20/0857/REM

Bro Ddyfi Community 
Hospital 
Maengwyn Street
Machynlleth
SY20 8AD

20/1758/TEL Application for prior 
notification under 
Schedule 2 Part 24 of the 
GPO 1995 for the 
proposed upgrade of 
telecommunications 
installation upgrade and 
associated works

Telecommunications Mast - 
Airwave Tower 
Sennybridge Training Area
Llanfihangel-nant-bran
Brecon
Powys
LD3 8UD

19/1371/REM Section 19 application to 
vary condition 2 from 
planning consent 
P/2018/0446 in respect of 
varying the approved 
plans

Ty Mawr
Meifod
Powys
SY22 6BY

20/1430/FUL Change of use of land 
from equestrian to 
residential. Demolition of 
existing storage barn, 
erection of replacement 
storage barn with home 
office accommodation 
over and erection of an 
oak framed carport.

Geuffordd Farm 
Pentre'r-Beirdd
Guilsfield
SY21 9DP

Meifod 
Community

Approve 28/08/2019 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

25/11/2020

Approve 28/09/2020 Full Application 25/11/2020

Maescar 
Community

Prior 
Approval 
Approved

29/10/2020 Telecommunications 
notification

22/12/2020

Machynlleth 
Community

Approve 15/12/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

12/01/2021

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 21 of 30

T
udalen 109



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1879/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 6 & 8 of 
planning approval 
19/1387/REM

Twll Barn
Pentre'R-Beirdd
Guilsfield
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 9DN

20/1695/FUL Erection of an extension 
to an existing agricultural 
building

Bwlchydderwen 
Llanfyllin
SY22 5ND

20/2040/NMA Non material amendment 
to change the wording of 
condition 4 of 
18/0647/FUL to include 
weaving, spinning, crafts, 
fibre processing and fibre 
product making

Maesnewydd
Meifod
Powys
SY22 6HP

20/1065/RES Application for reserved 
matters following the 
approval of P/2017/1289 
for the erection of a 
dwelling

Land At Pwll Farm 
Hendomen
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6EZ

20/1429/HH Erection of a three bay 
oak framed detached 
residential garage with 
room over reached by an 
external staircase.

Glenydd Barn 
South Street 
Rhayader
LD6 5BH

20/1888/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 3, 4 & 5 of 
planning approval 
20/0476/LBC

6 Broad Street
New Radnor
Presteigne
LD8 2SP

New Radnor 
Community

Approve 11/11/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

07/01/2021

Nantmel 
Community

Approve 17/09/2020 Householder 25/11/2020

Montgomery 
Community

Approve 17/07/2020 Reserved Matters 08/12/2020

07/12/2020

NMA 
Approved

10/12/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

16/12/2020

Approve 18/11/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

12/01/2021

Consent 29/10/2020 Full Application

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 22 of 30

T
udalen 110



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1107/FUL Siting of 6 glamping pods 
including eco-composting 
toilets and associated 
works

The Warren 
New Radnor
Presteigne
LD8 2TN

19/1701/REM Section 73 application to 
remove condition 17 from 
planning consent 
P/2017/1037

Development Off Glandwr 
Glandwr
Newtown
SY16 1JR

20/1462/ADV Retention of an LCD 
media screen and 4 flag 
pole signs

Tesco Stores Ltd
Pool Road
Newtown
Powys
SY16 1DJ

20/1463/ADV Display of 2 no. 6m 
internally illuminated pole 
signs and 1 no. internally 
illuminated freestanding 
dealer name and service 
sign 

Arthurs Of Newtown 
Pool Road
Newtown
Powys
SY16 1DW

20/1464/FUL Installation of 1 X Media 
EV Charger with Screen, 
1 X Fast EV Charger,  1 X 
Rapid Charger and 4 X 
Steel Flag poles

Tesco Stores Ltd
Pool Road
Newtown
Powys
SY16 1DJ

20/1432/LBC Application to reinstate an 
internal door to create 1 
dwelling from 2 dwellings

Rock End
Rock Farm
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3BH

17/12/2020

Approve 29/09/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

08/12/2020

Newtown And 
Llanllwchaiarn 
Community

Approve 29/10/2019 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

25/11/2020

Approve 15/09/2020 Advertisement 
Consent

17/12/2020

Approve 15/09/2020 Advertisement 
Consent

25/11/2020

Approve 15/09/2020 Full Application

Consent 06/08/2020 Full Application 18/12/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 23 of 30

T
udalen 111



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1527/FUL Upgrade of vehicular 
access

The Barns 
Wern Ddu Lane
Newtown
SY16 3DN

20/1624/HH Erection of an extension, 
double garage / store and 
improvements to existing 
access

Closforgan 
Middle Dolfor Road
Newtown
SY16 4BQ

20/1773/ADV Display of an illuminated 
free standing sign,  2 x 
iIlluminated fascia signs 
and a non-illuminated free 
standing Welcome sign

JT Hughes 
Dyffryn Industrial Estate
Pool Road
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3BD

20/1803/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 3 of planning 
approval 19/2042/FUL

Former Red Dragon Public 
House & Newtown Youth 
Centre 
Plantation Lane
Newtown
Powys
SY16 1LQ

19/1702/DIS Discharge of condition 6 
from planning consent 
19/0168/RES in regards 
to the footpath

Development Off Glandwr 
Glandwr
Newtown
SY16 1JR

20/0726/LBC 1 no. replacement window 
(retention of works)

Harpton Granary 
Old Radnor
Presteigne
LD8 2RE

Refused 29/10/2019 Discharge of 
Condition

08/01/2021

Old Radnor 
Community

Consent 11/05/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

08/01/2021

Approve 02/11/2020 Advertisement 
Consent

07/01/2021

Approve 11/11/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

30/11/2020

Approve 07/10/2020 Full Application 06/01/2021

Approve 13/10/2020 Householder 08/12/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 24 of 30

T
udalen 112



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/2125/AGR Erection of a extension to 
an existing agricultural 
building

Llanerchir
Bryngwyn
Kington
Powys
HR5 3QZ

20/1544/HH Demolition of existing side 
extension, erection of 
single storey side and 
rear extension, formation 
of parking area to the 
front of the property.

3 Dolafon Estate
Pen-Y-Bont-Fawr
Oswestry
SY10 0PA

20/1854/HH Satellite dish mounted on 
pole (retrospective)

Felin Cwmwr
Pen-y-bont-fawr
Oswestry
Powys
SY10 0HW

20/0753/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 2 of 
planning approval 
P/2014/0067 to allow for 
an extension of the 
timescale to submit the 
remaining reserved 
matters for phase 2

Land At Jacks View
Norton
Presteigne
Powys

Presteigne 
Community

Approve 18/05/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

08/12/2020

Pen-y-bont 
Fawr 
Community

Approve 17/11/2020 Householder 12/01/2021

Consent 11/11/2020 Householder 06/01/2021

Painscastle 
Community

Prior 
Approval 
Required

08/01/2021 Full Application 08/01/2021

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 25 of 30

T
udalen 113



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1600/FUL Enhancement of the 
existing vehicle access to 
include a hardstanding 
splayed access with 
associated gates, access 
track widening and 
landscaping works

Norton Wastewater 
Treatment Works
Norton
Presteigne
Powys

20/1848/DIS Application to discharge 
planning condition no. 3 
attached to planning 
approval 20/0982/HH 
(biodiversity enhancement 
measures)

Plot 1
 West Of Sunnydale
Knighton Road
Presteigne
LD8 2ET
Powys

20/1861/TRE Application for works to a 
holly tree (to fell) in a 
conservation area

Land Rear Of Greystones
2 St David's Street
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2BP

20/1862/TRE Application for works to a 
tree ( yew tree) in a 
conservation area

Greystones
2 St David's Street
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2BP

08/12/2020

Approve 04/11/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

08/12/2020

Approve 16/10/2020 Full Application 22/12/2020

Approve 04/11/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

07/01/2021

Approve 04/11/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 26 of 30

T
udalen 114



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/1867/HH Replace 2 no. windows on 
second floor and 1 no. 
external door to front 
elevation of dwelling

Ivy House
10 Hereford Street
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2AR

20/1331/FUL Erection of roofing over 
an existing manure store

Neuadd Farm
Rhayader
Powys
LD6 5HH

20/1664/FUL Erection of a replacement 
dwelling

Neuadd Bungalow
Cwmdauddwr
Rhayader
Powys
LD6 5HH

20/1141/FUL Conversion of former 
chapel to a dwelling and 
creation of vehicular 
access

Green Chapel
Pant-Y-Dwr
Rhayader
Powys
LD6 5LL

20/1410/OUT Erection of two open 
market residential 
dwellings, alterations to 
existing vehicular access, 
connection to the existing 
mains drainage system 
and all associated works

Garmon Newydd 
Pant-Y-Dwr
Rhayader
LD6 5LW

St. Harmon 
Community

Approve 10/08/2020 Full Application 30/11/2020

Approve 14/09/2020 Outline planning 16/12/2020

Consent 16/11/2020 Householder 08/01/2021

Rhayader 
Community

Approve 14/08/2020 Full Application 25/11/2020

Approve 08/10/2020 Full Application 07/12/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 27 of 30

T
udalen 115



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/0325/HH Erection of an extension 2 Moorside Villas 
Onllwyn Road
Coelbren
Neath
SA10 9NR

20/1503/HH Erection of an extension 
to existing dwelling

Brynllwyn
Trefeglwys
Caersws
Powys
SY17 5PT

19/1532/RES Application for reserved 
matters following the 
approval of P/2015/0691 
for the erection of 4 
affordable dwellings and 
all associated works

Land Adjacent Ty Perllan
Tregynon
Newtown 
Powys
SY16 3EH

20/1654/DIS Discharge of conditions 3, 
5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 
15 of planning permission 
20/0530/FUL

Rhos Old Farm
Trelystan
Leighton
Powys
SY21 8JB

20/1619/HH Erection of a domestic 
outbuilding

Long Meadow
Bacheldre Lane
Tre-wern
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8EG

Trewern 
Community

Approve 13/10/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

10/12/2020

Consent 09/10/2020 Householder 17/12/2020

Tregynon 
Community

Approve 22/10/2019 Reserved Matters 16/12/2020

Trefeglwys 
Community

Approve 23/09/2020 Householder 30/11/2020

Tawe-Uchaf 
Community

Approve 06/03/2020 Householder 08/12/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 28 of 30

T
udalen 116



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/0554/FUL Erection of 4 holiday 
chalets, formation of new 
access roadway,  
improvements to access 
U2475, installation of 
sewage treatment plant 
and all associated works

Land At Rhos Farm 
Trelystan
Leighton
SY21 8JB

20/1787/TPO Application for works to a 
tree subject to a Tree 
Preservation Order

Old Coach House
Oldford Rise
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 7SY

20/1858/NMA Application for a non-
material amendment to 
planning approval 
19/1611/FUL in relation to 
the planting of 
replacement hedge

Land Adjoining Unit 11
Buttington Cross Enterprise 
Park
Buttington
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 8SL

20/1968/DIS Discharge of condition 27 
of permission 
P/2018/0337 in relation to 
landscaping

Land At Salop Road
Welshpool
Powys

20/1583/HH Erection of an extension The Barns 
Rhos-Y-Meirch
Knighton
Powys
LD7 1PE

Whitton 
Community

Consent 02/10/2020 Householder 25/11/2020

Welshpool 
Community

Approve 26/10/2020 Works to Trees 
subject to a TPO

07/12/2020

Approve 13/11/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

27/11/2020

Approve 01/12/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

08/01/2021

Refused 01/04/2020 Full Application 01/12/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 29 of 30

T
udalen 117



Delegated List 

143 Applications

20/0736/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 12 and 13 of 
planning approval 
P/2014/1022

Former Gurnos School
School Road
Lower Cwmtwrch
Swansea
Powys

20/1953/NMA Application for non 
material amendment to 
planning permission 
20/0178/RES (outline 
consent 18/0674/OUT) in 
respect of alteration of 
external finishes to 
approved dwelling

Plot To The North Of Afon 
Twrch Adjacent To 25 Heol 
Gleien Lower Cwmtwrch 
Swansea
25 Heol Gleien
Cwm-twrch Isaf
Abertawe
Powys
SA9 2TW

20/1434/HH Construction of off-road 
parking in front of house

31 Tan Yr Allt 
Abercrave
Swansea
SA9 1XF

Applicati 143

Ystradgynlais 
Community

Approve 12/05/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

16/12/2020

Approve 26/11/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

09/12/2020

Refused 11/09/2020 Householder 25/11/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
14/01/2021 10:51:58 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 30 of 30

T
udalen 118



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Penderfyniad ar yr Apêl Appeal Decision 

Ymweliad â safle a wnaed ar 23/11/20 Site visit made on 23/11/20 

gan Richard Duggan, BSc (Hons) 

DipTP MRTPI 

by Richard Duggan, BSc (Hons) DipTP 

MRTPI 

Arolygydd a benodir gan Weinidogion Cymru an Inspector appointed by the Welsh Ministers 

Dyddiad:  16th December 2020 Date:  16th December 2020 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/T6850/A/20/3252618 

Site address: Bron Heulwen, Bettws Cedewain, Newtown, SY16 3LF 

The Welsh Ministers have transferred the authority to decide this appeal to me as the 
appointed Inspector. 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a 
refusal to grant planning permission under section 73A of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 for the development of land carried out without complying with conditions subject to 
which a previous planning permission was granted. 

• The appeal is made by Mr Phillip Davies against the decision of Powys County Council. 
• The application Ref: 19/1545/REM dated 22 September 2019, was refused by notice dated  

26 November 2019. 
• The application sought planning permission for the erection of an agricultural dwelling (outline), 

installation of septic tank, construction of vehicular access and alteration to existing access 
without complying with a condition attached to planning permission Ref: M24790 dated  
10 October 1994. 

• The condition in dispute is No. 4 which states: “The occupation of the proposed dwelling shall 

be limited to a person solely or mainly employed, or last employed prior to retirement, in the 
locality in agriculture or in forestry, or a widow or widower of such a person, and to any 
dependents normally residing with such person”.  

• The reason given for the condition is: “It is the approved policy of the local planning authority 
not to permit residential development outside settlements in the absence of special agricultural 
needs and this permission is granted specifically to provide accommodation for a person 

employed in agriculture”. 
 

 

Decision 

1. The appeal is allowed and the planning permission Ref: M24790 granted on 10 

October 1994, is varied by deleting condition No. 4. 

Main Issue 

2. Whether or not there is a continuing need for the occupation of Bron Heulwen to be 

restricted, having particular regard to the need for an agricultural workers’ dwelling in 

the area. 

Reasons 

3. The appeal property is a large detached dwelling located in a relatively isolated 

location in open countryside some three kilometres from Newtown.  Planning 
permission was granted in 1994 for the dwelling as it was justified at the time as 

Tudalen 119

6



Appeal Decision APP/T6850/A/20/3252618 

 

 

    2 

 

being necessary to house an agricultural or forestry worker. That was reflected in the 
imposition of the disputed condition which aimed to ensure that future occupation of 

the dwelling was only by qualifying agricultural or forestry workers (or retired 

workers) and their dependants.  Bron Heulwen now has no links with any adjoining 
agricultural land which is now in separate ownership and it is not ‘tied’ to any land 

other than its own garden.  The issue before me therefore turns on whether there is a 

continuing need for the property to be restricted by the disputed condition. 

4. Policy H1 of the Adopted Powys County Council Local Development Plan (LDP) sets out 

the type of housing development that would be permitted in the open countryside, 
which includes “where the development relates to a need for housing which meets 

current national policy on housing in the open countryside”.  It is clear that the appeal 

dwelling would not be permitted in this location today unless it met an essential rural 

enterprise need in line with national policy and guidance. Therefore, at this time the 
grant of permission without the disputed occupation condition would be contrary to 

Policy H1 of the development plan. 

5. National guidance on planning conditions1 says that, where a rural enterprise 

occupancy condition has been imposed, it will not be appropriate to remove it on 

subsequent application unless it is shown that the existing need for such dwellings for 
rural enterprise workers in the locality no longer warrants reserving the house for that 

purpose.  Additional national guidance2 says that the longstanding mechanism for 

demonstrating the absence of need has been market testing, and evidence of effective 
market testing will be required over a reasonable period, usually at least 12 months. 

The critical aspects of market testing are that: the availability of a property is 

advertised in such a manner that compliant purchasers or tenants are likely to be 

made aware of it; and the price or rent attached to a property reflects the restrictive 
occupancy requirement.  Notwithstanding the clear National Guidance on such matters 

the Appellant has not provided any evidence in this regard.  Therefore, it has not been 

demonstrated that there is no longer a need for the retention of the property as an 
agricultural workers’ dwelling, contrary to the development plan and national policy 

and guidance. 

6. The property has been unlawfully occupied for over 10 years, and a successful 

application was made for a Certificate of Lawful Existing Use or Development (CLEUD)3 

for continued residential use of the appeal dwelling in breach of the agricultural 
occupancy restriction condition.  As such, the Appellant relies on the argument that 

the condition does not meet the tests prescribed for planning conditions within Circular 

16/14 as it is no longer enforceable and should be removed.  To that effect, the 
Appellant has referred me to appeal decisions4 and a number of decisions made by 

English Local Planning Authorities which have approved the removal of occupancy 

conditions.   

 

1 Circular 16/14 ‘The Use of Planning Conditions for Development Management’ 

2 Practice Guidance Rural Enterprise Dwellings - Technical Advice Note 6 Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities 

December 2011 

3 Powys County Council reference: 19/1188/CLE granted on 18 September 2019 

4 APP/Y9507/W/16/3147251 and APP/M9496/W/19/3233160 

Tudalen 120



Appeal Decision APP/T6850/A/20/3252618 

 

 

    3 

 

7. The Council has also cited an appeal decision5 where the Inspector dismissed the 

appeal against the removal of an agricultural occupancy condition.  I have noted the 

conclusions made by the Inspector in that appeal and I accept that the potential future 

occupation of the appeal property by a qualifying person would have the effect of 
breaking the continuity of the breach, and the occupancy condition would again apply 

and would be enforceable.  However, in my opinion, the likelihood of any future 

occupiers of the appeal property complying with the agricultural occupancy condition, 

although not impossible, is very slight mainly due to the financial loss that would 
ensue to the sellers. 

8. I have not been provided with any evidence relating to professionally prepared 

marketing or valuation material or been provided with an actual valuation for the 

appeal property.  Notwithstanding this, I saw that it is a large detached dwelling set 

within spacious grounds and a fall in value of approximately 30%, which is the typical 
reduced valuation for a dwelling subject to an occupancy condition, would likely lead 

to a significant drop in the value of the house.  Given the risk of such a financial loss 

that would confront the sellers and a qualifying person, I am of the opinion that this is 
a scenario that is very unlikely to arise at least for the foreseeable future.  It is highly 

likely that the Appellants would sell the house on to another non-qualifying person 

rather than an agriculture or forestry worker. 

9. The CLEUD is unfettered and the benefits it provides would be transferable to 

subsequent occupiers. Therefore, it is clear that the condition is not enforceable as 
long as the Appellants continue to occupy the dwelling, and neither would it be 

enforceable against any future occupier unless they met the qualification 

requirements. The appeal property could consequently be occupied in breach of the 

condition by any non-qualifying person in perpetuity.   

10. I afford significant weight to the CLEUD and regard the ability to occupy Bron Heulwen 
in breach of the disputed condition as a significant material consideration which would, 

in this specific circumstance, clearly outweigh the conflict with the development plan. 

Consequently, the condition does not meet the 6 tests prescribed in national guidance, 

and it is no longer necessary or reasonable to continue to require the property to be 
occupied by qualifying persons. 

Conclusions 

11. In reaching my decision, I have taken into account the requirements of sections 3 and 

5 of the Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  I consider that this 

decision is in accordance with the Act’s sustainable development principle through its 

contribution towards the Welsh Ministers’ well-being objective of building healthier 
communities and better environments. 

12. For the reasons given above and having regard to all other matters raised I conclude 

that the appeal should succeed.  This means that there are now no restrictions on the 

occupation of Bron Heulwen. 

 

Richard Duggan, INSPECTOR 

 

5 APP/P9502/A/17/3178153 

Tudalen 121



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Penderfyniad ar yr Apêl Appeal Decision 
Ymweliad â safle a wnaed ar 23/11/20 Site visit made on 23/11/20 

gan Richard Duggan, BSc (Hons) 

DipTP MRTPI 

by Richard Duggan, BSc (Hons) DipTP 

MRTPI 

Arolygydd a benodir gan Weinidogion Cymru an Inspector appointed by the Welsh Ministers 

Dyddiad:  15th December 2020 Date:  15th December 2020 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/T6850/A/20/3256889 

Site address: Dyffryn, Breidden Way, Guilsfield, Welshpool SY21 9PU 

The Welsh Ministers have transferred the authority to decide this appeal to me as the 

appointed Inspector. 

• The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 against a 
refusal to grant planning permission. 

• The appeal is made by Mr & Mrs Hares against the decision of Powys County Council. 
• The application Ref: 20/0370/FUL dated 03 March 2020, was refused by notice dated  

1 May 2020. 
• The development proposed is the erection of a dwelling and formation of vehicular access. 
 

 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Main Issues 

2. The main issues are the impact of the development on:  

• the character and appearance of the street scene; 

• the living conditions of the occupiers of Dyffryn and future occupiers of the 

proposed dwelling with regard to outlook and loss of privacy;  

• highway safety; and  

• nature conservation interests. 

Reasons 

Character and Appearance 

3. The appeal site currently comprises the front garden area for the existing property, 
Dyffryn, which is a large detached dwelling set within a very spacious plot, and it is 

proposed to construct a detached dormer bungalow in the garden between the 

existing dwelling and the highway.  

4. Dyffryn occupies a prominent position close to the junction of Breidden Way and Celyn 

Lane within a residential area containing a mix of dwellings in design and size, but 
which display uniformity in terms of their spacing.  The separation distances and 

spaces between properties are relatively constant and set a regular pattern of built 

Tudalen 123



Appeal Decision APP/T6850/A/20/3256889 

 

2 

 

development which creates a strong uniform layout to this residential area.  The 
houses found in the area are generally characterised by being set back from the road 

with an established building line thus creating a regular and coherent street scene.  

Dyffryn itself is set back from the road, in line with the property to the south known as 
Dolruddyn, and this layout contributes to that regularity and coherence.   

5. I did note that the two dwellings either side of the appeal site, Argyll and  

No. 8 Marcella Close, are sited nearer to the road and it is acknowledged that the 

proposed dwelling would be in line with the latter.  I also saw that several properties 

in the area have been built in the gardens of older properties as highlighted by the 
Appellants, but these are generally fronting onto different estate roads rather than 

being built in front of each other along the same road frontage. 

6. Notwithstanding these examples, I am of the opinion that locating a dwelling in front 

of Dyffryn that would project forward of the building line would appear contrived, 

cramped and an awkward addition to the prevailing built form.  Although the dwelling 
would be smaller in scale than Dyffryn it would continue to be seen as a dominant 

feature, compounded by its prominent position on the street.  It would, therefore, 

stand out as a discordant element along the road at odds with the character and 

appearance of the street scene, thus conflicting with Policies H1 and DM13 of the 
Adopted Powys Local Development Plan (LDP). 

7. I have taken into account the Appellant’s submissions that the proposed floor space of 

the dwelling would be approximately 190msq compared to the plot size of 520msq; 

and that there are many other examples of dwellings in the local area where the ratio 

of garden space to the floor space of the property is much smaller.  I have also noted 
that the Community Council supports the development.  However, this does not alter 

my conclusions on the harm to the street scene. 

8. The Council has also referred me to a previous appeal on the property1.  Whilst I have 

noted the conclusions made by the Inspector in that appeal, the layout and scale of 

that development was different to that before me.  In any event, each case must be 
determined on its individual merits. 

Living Conditions 

9. The proposed dwelling would measure approximately 13.8 metres by 12.3 metres and 
5.5 metres in height to the ridge; and its nearest side elevation would be sited 

approximately 8 metres from the front facing (south-eastern) elevation of Dyffryn.  

10. Notwithstanding that there are no windows to habitable rooms within the south- 

eastern elevation of Dyffryn, I consider that the outlook from that property would be 

dominated by a mass of built form in a way that I consider would be overbearing. 
Moreover, the mass and proximity of the proposed dwelling to Dyffryn would result in 

an imposing and oppressive form of development that would be visually over-

dominant, with consequence adverse effects on the living conditions of the occupants 

concerned.  I have similar concerns with regard to the outlook from the ground floor 
windows of the proposed dwelling, especially from the windows that are on the north 

facing elevation in very close proximity to the proposed 1.8m close boarded fence that 

would separate the house and the driveway/parking spaces to Dyffryn. 

11. I saw that a fence has been erected on the proposed boundary between the two 

dwellings and it is proposed to plant some screening on the boundary.  Whilst these 

 
1 APP/T6850/A/18/3197585 

Tudalen 124



Appeal Decision APP/T6850/A/20/3256889 

 

3 

 

features would reduce direct views between both dwellings there remains the 
opportunity that the privacy of the occupants could be compromised, including the 

private amenity space of the proposed dwelling. 

12. For these reasons, the proposed development would have a harmful impact on the 

living conditions of the occupiers of Dyffryn and future occupiers of the proposed 

dwelling with regard to outlook and loss of privacy, thus conflicting with Policies H1 
and DM13 of the LDP. 

Highway Safety 

13. The Council’s reason for refusal states that the proposed development would not 
provide adequate off street vehicular parking and refers to the CSS Wales Parking 

Standards 2014. The proposed dwelling would be a three bedroom house which, 

according to the CSS Wales Parking Standards 2014, would require three parking 

spaces.  The proposed Site Plan2 clearly provides three car parking spaces on the 
western side of the dwelling which complies with the standards being used by the 

Council.   

14. However, the evidence presented by the Council in this appeal suggests that the 

resulting change in the layout of the parking for Dyffryn as a result of the proposed 

development means that the provision of 4 spaces would not be achievable within the 
land owned by the Appellants and would encroach onto highway land.  Whilst I have 

taken into account the legal documents submitted by the Appellant3, without having 

further clarification or this matter I must take a precautionary approach.   
Nevertheless, in the event that I was minded to allow the appeal I could impose a 

condition requiring the Appellants to submit further details of the proposed parking to 

the Council for agreement prior to the commencement of development. 

15. The Council is also concerned that the proposals do not provide sufficient information 

to demonstrate that the development would meet all highway access requirements 
with regard to the location of the proposed gullies and/or the location of the proposed 

surface water soakaway and the detail of the access radii/visibility splays.  Whilst this 

may be the case, this could also be addressed by the imposition of suitably worded 

conditions to ensure that these details would be agreed prior to the commencement of 
development. 

16. Having regard to the above and, given my ability to impose conditions if I were to 

allow the appeal, I conclude that the development would be unlikely to lead to any 

highway safety concerns. 

Nature Conservation 

17. The Council’s ecologist has advised that two statutory designated sites are identified 

close to the proposed development; the Granllyn Special Area of Conservation (SAC) 

and Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) are approximately 159m away.  The 
Council’s ecologist stated that as the SAC/SSSI is designated for its population of 

great crested newts which are a mobile species it is considered that there may be 

some potential for the proposed development to indirectly impact the SAC/SSSI.  
Although the Council has had regard to a previous Preliminary Ecological Assessment4, 

it was considered that the submitted report no longer provides an accurate 

 
2 Proposed Site Plan Ref: 2171.14 
3 Title Plan CYM714062 and Conveyance of Land dated 6 May 1971 
4 Preliminary Ecological Assessment prepared by Greenscape Environmental Ltd, dated December 2017. 

Tudalen 125



Appeal Decision APP/T6850/A/20/3256889 

 

4 

 

representation of the proposed development site and the habitats present and affected 
by the development, and that further information is required5. 

18. Great Crested Newts are protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as 

amended) and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (as 

amended).  Paragraph 6.2.2 of Planning Policy Wales Technical Advice Note (TAN) 5 

‘Nature Conservation and Planning’ indicates that any survey work that is required 
should be carried out before planning permission is granted where there is a 

reasonable likelihood of a protected species being present and affected, otherwise all 

relevant material planning considerations may not have been addressed in making the 
decision.  TAN5 advises that planning permission should not be granted subject to a 

condition requiring a survey to be carried out. 

19. I have taken into account the lack of objection from Natural Resources Wales (subject 

to the implementation of Reasonable Avoidance Measures relating to amphibians 

including Great Crested Newts), and the Council ecologist’s response dated  
19 February 2019 provided by the Appellant.  However, in the absence of an up to 

date ecological assessment of the site I find that there is insufficient evidence 

available to establish the potential impact of the scheme on biodiversity and 

ecology.  Mindful of the relevant national policy advice on protected species in TAN5, 
this is a matter that requires to be understood before planning permission is granted, 

rather than being addressed by planning condition.   

20. I find that the circumstances of this case justifies a precautionary approach in order to 

avoid potentially harmful impact on protected species which would conflict with Policy 

DM2 of the LDP and TAN5. 

Conclusions 

21. Although I have found the scheme acceptable in relation to highway safety, the harm 

that I have identified in terms of the other main issues is unacceptable.  Having 
regard to the above and considered all other matters raised, I conclude that the 

appeal should be dismissed. 

22. In reaching my decision, I have taken into account the requirements of sections 3 and 

5 of the Well Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  I consider that this 

decision is in accordance with the Act’s sustainable development principle through its 
contribution towards the Welsh Ministers’ well-being objective of building healthier 

communities and better environments. 

 

Richard Duggan 

INSPECTOR 

 

 
5 Council Ecologist Consultation Responses dated 1 and 22 April 2020 

Tudalen 126



Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee Tuesday, 27 October 2020 
 

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE TAXI LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HELD BY 
TEAMS ON TUESDAY, 27 OCTOBER 2020 

 
PRESENT 
County Councillor D H Williams [Chair] 
 
County Councillors D R Jones and F H Jump  
 

1.  RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  

 
RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 100(a)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 the public and press were excluded from the meeting 
on the grounds that there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information under Paragraphs 12 and 18 of Schedule 12a Part 7 of the 
above Act in respect of the following items. 

 

2.  APPLICATION FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE LICENCE  

 
2.1. Sub-Committee procedures  

 
The Chair introduced the Sub-Committee and its Clerk. 
 
The Clerk to the Sub-Committee explained the procedures to be followed by the 
Sub-Committee. 
 
2.2. Application for a licence - HC/01/2020  

 
Applicant – HC/01/2020 
 
The Licensing Officer presented the licensing authority’s position.  The Sub-
Committee noted that the Council had introduced a policy in respect of the 
maximum age of 12 years for licensed vehicles, with the aim to raise the 
standard of the licensed fleet.  The Sub-Committee noted the details of the 
application as outlined in the report [copy filed with the signed minutes].  The 
Sub-Committee was being asked to consider whether there were exceptional 
circumstances to approve the renewal of the vehicle licence against policy.   
 
The applicant presented his case.  The Sub-Committee received supporting 
information and also viewed a video of the vehicle.  In addition, the Sub-
Committee were able to question the mechanic responsible for maintaining the 
vehicle.  The applicant advised that he was willing to MOT the vehicle every four 
months instead of every six months.   
 
All parties confirmed that they had been able to make their representations.  The 
Licensing Officer and applicant left the meeting.  The Sub-Committee went into 
private session to consider the application and the evidence they had heard, with 
the support of the Clerk.  The Clerk to the Sub-Committee advised that if the 
Sub-Committee was minded to approve the licence, this would not set a 
precedent.  He advised that any future applications for this vehicle or any other 
vehicle would be considered on their own merits. 
 

Tudalen 127

8



Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee Tuesday, 27 October 2020 
 

 

The Licensing Officer and applicant returned to the meeting and the Clerk to the 
Sub-Committee announced the decision.  In reaching the decision members took 
into account the relevant written and verbal representations.   
 

RESOLVED Reason for decision 

That the vehicle license for the 
vehicle owned by HC/01/2020 be 
approved for 12 months, subject 
to MOTs being undertaken every 
four months. 

That although the vehicle owned 
by HC/01/2020 was older than the 
maximum vehicle age policy the 
licence was approved due to the 
exceptional condition of the 
vehicle. 

 
The Clerk to the Sub-Committee advised that he would confirm the decision in 
writing.  
 
The Chair thanked the applicant for attending.  

 

3.  RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  

 
RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 100(a)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 the public and press were excluded from the meeting 
on the grounds that there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information under Paragraphs 12 and 18 of Schedule 12a Part 7 of the 
above Act in respect of the following item[s]. 

 

4.  APPLICATION FOR A JOINT HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE 
DRIVER'S LICENCE  

 
4.1. Sub-Committee procedures  

 
The Chair introduced the Sub-Committee and its Clerk. 
 
The Clerk to the Sub-Committee explained the procedures to be followed by the 
Sub-Committee. 
 
4.2. Application for a licence - JD/02/2020  

 
Applicant – JD/02/2020 
 
The Licensing Officer presented the licensing authority’s position as outlined in 
the report [copy filed with the signed minutes].   
 
The applicant explained the circumstances around his application.  In response 
to questions the applicant apologised for not notifying the licensing authority of 
the offences when they occurred, as required under licensing rules.  He also 
responded to questions from the Sub-Committee about his convictions for traffic 
offences. 
 
All parties confirmed that they had been able to make their representations. 
 

Tudalen 128



Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee Tuesday, 27 October 2020 
 

 

The Licensing Officer and applicant left the meeting and it was agreed that an 
officer would contact the applicant regarding the Sub-Committee’s decision, as 
the applicant was not able to return to the meeting to hear the decision. 
 
The Sub-Committee went into private session to consider the application and the 
evidence they had heard, with the support of the Clerk.   
 
The Licensing Officer returned to the meeting and the Clerk to the Sub-
Committee announced the decision.  In reaching the decision members took into 
account the relevant written and verbal representations.   
 

RESOLVED Reason for decision 

That the application for a driver’s 
licence for JD/02/2020 be refused. 
 
 
 

That the applicant was not 
considered a fit and proper 
person to hold a licence as he had 
been convicted of a number of 
traffic offences and had not 
notified the licensing authority of 
his convictions or of his 
disqualification immediately. 

 
The Clerk to the Sub-Committee advised that he would confirm the decision in 
writing and this would contain details of the right to appeal.  
 
The Chair thanked all for attending. 
 

 
 

County Councillor D H Williams [Chair] 

Tudalen 129



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee Monday, 30 November 2020 
 

 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE TAXI LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HELD BY 
TEAMS ON MONDAY, 30 NOVEMBER 2020 

 
PRESENT 
County Councillor D R Price [Chair] 
 
County Councillors G Jones and D Selby 
 
 

1.  RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  

 
RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 100(a)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 the public and press were excluded from the meeting 
on the grounds that there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information under Paragraphs 12 and 18 of Schedule 12a Part 7 of the 
above Act in respect of the following item[s]. 

 

2.  REVIEW OF A JOINT HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE 
DRIVER'S LICENCE  

 
2.1. Sub-Committee procedures  

 
The Chair introduced the Sub-Committee and its Clerk. 
 
The Clerk to the Sub-Committee on behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 
explained the procedures to be followed by the Sub-Committee. 
 
2.2. Review of a licence - JD/03/2020  

 
Licence holder – JD/03/2020 
 
The Licensing Officer presented the licensing authority’s position as outlined in 
the report [copy filed with the signed minutes].  The Sub-Committee confirmed 
that they had read the two references.  
 
JD/03/2020 presented his case, apologised for his actions and responded to 
questions from the Sub-Committee.  The Sub-Committee noted that the 
Magistrates Court had considered his case and had allowed him to keep his 
driving licence.  JD/03/2020 confirmed that he did not have customers in his taxi 
when the offences took place. 
 
All parties confirmed that they had been able to make their representations.  The 
Clerk advised he would contact JD/03/2020 with the Sub-Committee’s decision. 
JD/03/2020 and the Licensing Officer left the meeting. 
 
The Sub-Committee considered, in private, the review, with the support of the 
Clerk.   
 
The Licensing Officer returned to the meeting to hear the decision.  In reaching 
the decision members took into account the relevant written and verbal 
representations.   
 

Tudalen 131



Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee Monday, 30 November 2020 
 

 

RESOLVED Reason for decision 

That JD/03/2020 be allowed to 
retain his joint hackney and 
private hire driver’s licence. 
 
 
 

Taking into account the court’s 
decision to allow JD/03/2020 to 
retain his licence, the Sub-
Committee was satisfied that he 
was a fit and proper person. 

 
 
The Chair thanked all for attending. 

 
 

County Councillor D R Price [Chair] 

Tudalen 132


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaeorol
	4 Ceisiadau cynllunio i'w hystyried gan y Pwyllgor.
	4.2 20/0659/FUL Neuadd Maldwyn, Ffordd Hafren, Y Trallwng, SY21 7AS
	200659FUL location plan
	Sheets
	1000 - Site_LocationPlan



	4.3 20/1870/HH Annegra, Borfa Green, Y Trallwng, SY21 7QE
	201870HH location plan

	4.4 20/2074/TRE Mulberry Place, Arthurs Gate, Trefaldwyn, Powys, SY15 6QU
	202074TRE location plan

	5 Penderfyniadau'r Pennaeth Eiddo, Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd o dan bwerau dirprwyedig
	6 Penderfyniad ar yr apel
	Appeal Decision - 3256889

	8 Cofnodion yr Is-Bwyllgorau Trwyddedu Tacsis
	Minutes , 30/11/2020 Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee


